

                    CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 


 


                              15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012 (425) 745-1891 


  
 


  


 


Pam Pruitt, Mayor • Brian Holtzclaw, Mayor Pro Tem 


Mark Bond • Mike Todd • Vince Cavaleri • John Steckler 


   


 


Regular meetings of the Mill Creek City Council shall be held on the first, second and fourth Tuesdays of 
each month commencing at 6:00 p.m. in the Mill Creek Council Chambers located at 15728 Main Street, Mill 
Creek, Washington. Your participation and interest in these meetings are encouraged and very much 
appreciated. We are trying to make our public meetings accessible to all members of the public. If you 
require special accommodations, please call the office of the City Clerk at (425) 921-5725 three days prior to 
the meeting.  


 


The City Council may consider and act on any matter called to its attention at such meetings, whether or not 
specified on the agenda for said meeting. Participation by members of the audience will be allowed as set 
forth on the meeting agenda or as determined by the Mayor or the City Council.  


 


To comment on subjects listed on or not on the agenda, ask to be recognized during the Audience 
Communication portion of the agenda. Please stand at the podium and state your name and residency for 
the official record. Please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. Time limitations shall be 
at the discretion of the Mayor or City Council.  


 


Study sessions of the Mill Creek City Council may be held as part of any regular or special meeting. Study 
sessions are informal, and are typically used by the City Council to receive reports and presentations, review 
and evaluate complex matters, and/or engage in preliminary analysis of City issues or City Council business.  


   


 


Next Ordinance No. 2019-845 


Next Resolution No. 2019-578 


January 22, 2019 


City Council Meeting 


6:00 PM 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 


A. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda   
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 


B. Snohomish Health District  


(Jeff Ketchel, Administrator)   
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 


C. Vintage Development Agreement Amendment 


(Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager)   
 
OLD BUSINESS 







 
D. 2019 Community Events  


(Joni Kirk, Director of Communications & Marketing)   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 


E. Prosecution Services Agreement 


(Greg Elwin, Chief of Police)    
F. Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish County Department 


of Emergency Management  


(Greg Elwin, Chief of Police)   
 


G. Appointment of Community Interview Panel for the City Manager 


(Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager)   
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 


H. Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $283,108.14 


(Audit Committee: Councilmember Todd and Councilmember Steckler)   
I. City Council Meeting Minutes of October 2, 2018  


 
REPORTS 
 


J. Mayor/Council   
K. City Manager 


• Council Planning Schedule    
L. Staff 


• Art & Beautification Board Meeting Minutes of November 14, 2018 


• Art & Beautification Board Meeting Minutes of December 12, 2018  
 
AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION 
 


M. Public comment on items on or not on the agenda  
 
RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 


(Confidential Session of the Council) 
 


N. • Discuss potential litigation pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) 
  


No action will be taken.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 


Page 2 of 111







A Shared Vision for Health
City of Mill Creek and 


Snohomish Health District


City Council Presentation


January 22, 2019


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #B


.


Snohom
ish H


ealth D
istrict (Jeff Ketchel, Adm


inistrator)
Page 3 of 111







Snohomish Health District 2


Working Together for 


Mill Creek


Simpler Safer Healthier


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #B


.


Snohom
ish H


ealth D
istrict (Jeff Ketchel, Adm


inistrator)
Page 4 of 111







Infrastructure – Rebuilding an Agency


 Online Services – Environmental Health, Vital Records


 Recruiting


 IT Services


 Phones


 Board and Committee Packets


 Code Publishing


 Records Retention


 Online Learning Management


 Website


 Financial System


 Electronic Medical Record


 Fleet Management


 Rucker Building


Snohomish Health District 3


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #B


.


Snohom
ish H


ealth D
istrict (Jeff Ketchel, Adm


inistrator)
Page 5 of 111







Key Initiatives


 Performance Management


 Quality Improvement


 Workforce Development


 Community Health Assessment


 Community Health Improvement Plan


 Strategic Plan


Snohomish Health District 4


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #B


.


Snohom
ish H


ealth D
istrict (Jeff Ketchel, Adm


inistrator)
Page 6 of 111







 Point-in-Time Survey of Overdoses


 Burden of Disease


Snohomish Health District 5


Opioids – Data


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #B


.


Snohom
ish H


ealth D
istrict (Jeff Ketchel, Adm


inistrator)
Page 7 of 111







 Needle Cleanup Kits


 Medicine Security


 Schools


 Resource Guide


Snohomish Health District 6


Opioids – Prevention


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #B


.


Snohom
ish H


ealth D
istrict (Jeff Ketchel, Adm


inistrator)
Page 8 of 111







 Grand Rounds


 Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome


 Pharmacists


 Veterinarians


 Dentists


Snohomish Health District 7


Opioids – Healthcare


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #B


.


Snohom
ish H


ealth D
istrict (Jeff Ketchel, Adm


inistrator)
Page 9 of 111







Snohomish Health District 8


Foundational Public Health 


Services 2019-21 Request


– Capabilities


Infrastructure, Communication, Emergency 
Preparedness, Policy, Governance


– Reinforcing Capacity to Local Public Health


Communicable Disease, Environmental 
Health, Assessment


– Innovation Projects and DOH


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #B


.


Snohom
ish H


ealth D
istrict (Jeff Ketchel, Adm


inistrator)
Page 10 of 111







Healthy People.


Healthy Environment.


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #B


.


Snohom
ish H


ealth D
istrict (Jeff Ketchel, Adm


inistrator)
Page 11 of 111







CITY or


Agenda Item #L
w A s H 1 N c. '1‘0 N Meeting Date: January 22, 2019


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City ofMill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN
VINTAGE AT MILL CREEK AND THE CITY OF MILL CREEK
TO MEMORIALIZE REALLOCATION OF SPACE FROM THE
POLICE PRECINCT TO THE SENIOR CENTER


PROPOSED MOTION:


Authorize the City Manager to execute an Amendment to Development Agreement (City
Contract 2015-1231) to memorialize a previous City and Developer agreement to provide an
additional 500 square feet of space to the Senior Center in lieu of space for a new police precinct.


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


On October 6, 2015, the City Council authorized the approval of the Development Agreement
with Vintage at Mill Creek with Ordinance No. 2015-798. (City Contract 2015-1231)


After the execution of the Development Agreement and during construction of the project. the
City and the Developer agreed to reassign approximately 500 square feet of space that had been
intended for use as a police precinct to the Senior Center to provide space for their programing
needs. The agreement to reallocate the space from the police precinct to the senior center was
formally reported by the City Manager to the City Council within a “Senior Center Update" on
January 23, 2018 (see attached Senior Center Update). The proposed amendment to the
Development Agreement memorializes this reallocation of space.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


Approval to amend Development Agreement to reflect previously approved changes.


ATTACHMENTS:
0 Proposed Ordinance amending Development Agreement — Attachment 1
0 Ordinance No. 2015-798 (Approved original Development Agreement) — Attachment 2
0 City Contract 2015-1231 (existing Development Agreement) — Attachment 3
0 Senior Center Update (from January 23, 2018 Council meeting) — Attachment 4


/ It Stowe
nterim City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 12 of 111







Atttaqhment 1


ORDINANCE NO.2019-


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK, WASHINGTON,
AMENDING A 2015 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
CITY OF MILL CREEK AND VINTAGE AT MILL CREEK, LLC
PURSUANT TO MILL CREEK MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 17.19
AND RCW 36.70B.170 ET SEQ. FOR THE PURPOSE OF
RELINQUISHING500 SQUAREFEET OF SPACE IN THE VINTAGE
AT "MILL CREEK DEVELOPMENT TO THE MILL CREEK SENIOR
CENTER, AND AUTHORIZING CITY STAFF TO TAKE
APPROPRIATE ACTION TO AMEND THE COVENANT ON BS 15-65;
AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.


WHEREAS, on March 25, 2008, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2008-676,
approving the East Gateway Urban Village Comprehensive Plan and Development Code
amendments ("EGUV Amendments"); and


WHEREAS, on March 9, 2015, Vintage at Mill Creek ("Developer") submitted
Binding Site Plan application BS 15-65 for property located within the EGUV District; and


WHEREAS, the EGUV District requiresthat the City and the Developer enter into a
- Development Agreement as a component of the review and approval process for the Binding


Site Plan; and


WHEREAS, on October 6, 2015, the City Council adopted Ordinance 2015-798
entering into a Development Agreement concerningCity of Mill Creek Binding Site Plan 15-
65 in the East Gateway Urban Village, and recorded that documentunder Snohomish County
Auditor’s File No. 201510260323 (“Original DA”); and


WHEREAS, the approved Development Agreement provided 2,800 square feet of rent-
free space for the Mill Creek/Northshore Senior Center and 500 square feet of space for a City
police precinct station within the development, and required the Developer to provide walls,
?ooring, utility outlets, paint, door and trim for the spaces; and


WHEREAS, after executing the Original DA and during construction, the City and
Developer agreed to enlarge the area of the Senior Center by reassigning approximately 500
square feet of space that had been designated and intended for use as a City police precinct
station to the Senior Center. The agreement to do so was formally reported by City Manager
Polizzotto to the City Council via a Senior Center Update on January 23, 2018; and


WHEREAS,Section 17.1 of the Original DA allows for modification of the Agreement
as follows: "This Agreement may be modi?ed only upon mutual consent of the Mill Creek
City Council and Developer. Either Party may seek a modi?cation by giving written notice
thereof to the other Party. No Party is obligated to agree to any modi?cation of this Agreement.


1


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 13 of 111







Modi?cation may require compliance with the public notice and hearing requirements of
RCW 36.70B.200 et seq. or other applicable laws then in effect"; and


WHEREAS, a public hearing on the proposed modi?cation to the Original DA was
scheduled for January 22, 2019 before the City Council; and


WHEREAS, notice of the public hearing on the proposed modi?cation to the Original
DA was duly advertised in the Everett Herald on January 13, 2019, all in accordance with
MCMC l4.07.030; and


WHEREAS, on January 22, 2019, the City Council duly convened and held the
scheduled public hearing to solicit, obtain, consider and evaluate public comments and
Developer comments on the proposed modi?cation to the Original DA; and


WHEREAS, the City Council ?nds that the proposed modi?cation to the Original DA as
requested by the Developer, attached hereto as Exhibit A, is consistent with MCMC Chapter
17.19,the EGUV Design Guidelines, the City's development regulations, and RCW 36,708,170


et seq.; and


WHEREAS, the City Council desires to enter into the proposed modi?cation of the
Original DA to memorialize the reallocation of space and insure its recognition in the public
record as part and parcel of the Original DA; and


WHEREAS, the City Council ?nds that adoption of the modi?cation to the Original
DA as provided in this Ordinance will further the public health, safety, and general welfare;


NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK,
WASHINGTON, ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:


Section 1. The City Council adopts the recitals set forth above as its ?ndings.


Section2. The City Council approves the modi?cation to the Original 2015
Development Agreement between the City and Developer pursuant to MCMC Chapter 14.03,
MCMC Chapter 17.19, and RCW 36.708.l70 et seq, which modi?cation is attached hereto at
Exhibit A:


Section 3. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute said
modi?cation and take such other appropriate action as needed to implement the modi?cation
and to amend BS 15-65 as speci?ed in Exhibit A.


Sectign 4. If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this
Ordinanceor its application to any person or situation be declared unconstitutional or invalid
for any reason, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this
Ordinance or its application to any other person or situation. The City Council hereby declares
that it would have adopted this Ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause,
phrase or portion thereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections,
sentences, clauses, phrases or portions be declared invalid or unconstitutional.


2


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 14 of 111







Section 5. This Ordinance shall be effective ?ve days following the publication of
the attached summary, which is hereby approved.


Adopted this day of , 2019, by a vote of for,
against, and abstaining.


APPROVED:


MAYOR PAI\/IELA PRUITT


ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:


GINA PFISTER, CITY CLERK


APPROVED AS TO FORM:


OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
SCOTT M. MISSALL, CITY ATTORNEY


FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK:
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL:
PUBLISHED:
EFFECTIVE DATE:
ORDINANCE NO.:


Attachments: EXHIBIT A


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 15 of 111







EXHIBIT A
TO MILL CREEK ORDINANCE 2019-


After recording return to:


Gina P?ster, Acting City Clerk
City of Mill Creek
15728 Main Street
Mill Creek, Washington 98012


Document Title(s) First Amendment to DevelopmentAgreement for
Mill Creek BS 15-65 (EGUV)


Reference Number(s) of related 201510260323 [and 201608090042]
documents


Grantor(s) City of Mill Creek


Vintage at Mill Creek, LLC


Grantees(s) Vintage at Mill Creek, LLC
City of Mill Creek


Abbrev. Legal Description The Northeast quarter of the Northeast quarter of the
Northwest quarter of, Section 33, Township 28N,
Range 5 EWM


Assessor's Property Tax 28053300201300
Parcel/Account Number


FIRST AMENDMENT TO 2015 DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT BETWEEN MILL CREEK
AND VINTAGE AT MILL CREEK LLC -- Page 1 of 8
{WFMI853579.DOCX;2/05739.000002/}


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 16 of 111







EXHIBIT A
TO MILL CREEK ORDINANCE 2019-


FIRST AMENDMENT
TO 2015 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT


BETWEEN CITY OF MILL CREEK AND VINTAGE AT MILL CREEK, LLC


REGARDING BS 15-65 (EAST GATEWAY URBAN VILLAGE)


1.0 Parties


1.] This First Amendment to 2015 Development Agreement Between City of Mill
Creek and Vintage at Mill Creek, LLC for Regarding BS 15-65 (East Gateway Urban Village)
("First Amendment") is entered into on the Effective Date set forth below by and between the City
of Mill Creek, a Washington municipal corporationhaving its principal place of business at 15728
Main Street, Mill Creek, Washington 98012 ("City"), and Vintage at Mill Creek, LLC, a
Washington limited liability company, having its principal place of business at 369 San Miguel
Drive, Suite #135, Newport Beach, California 92660-7813 ("Vintage"). The City and Vintage
may be individuallyreferred to as "Party" and collectivelyas the "Parties."


2.0 Recitals


2.1 In 2015 the Partiesentered into a DevelopmentAgreement concerning City of Mill
Creek Binding Site Plan 15-65 in the East Gateway Urban Village, and recorded that document
under Snohomish County Auditor’s File No. 20150260323 (“Original DA”).


2.2 The Original DA provided a rent-free space for the Mill Creek/Northshore Senior
Center at 4111 133rd Place SE in Mill Creek, and required Vintage to provide walls, ?ooring,
utility outlets, paint, door and trim for the space.


2.3 After executing the Original DA and during construction, the City and Vintage
agreed to enlarge the area of the Senior Center by reassigning approximately 500 square feet of
space that had been designated and intended for use as a City police precinct station to the Senior
Center. The agreement to do so was formally reported by City Manager Polizzotto to the City
Council via a Senior Center Update on January 23, 2018.


2.4 The Parties desire to enter into this First Amendment to memorialize the
reallocationof space and insure its recognition by the Parties and public as part and parcel of the
Original DA.


FIRST AMENDMENT TO 2015 DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT BETWEEN MILL CREEK
AND VINTAGE AT MILL CREEK LLC -- Page 2 of 8
{W1-‘Ml853579.DOCX;2/05739.000002/}


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 17 of 111







EXHIBIT A
"TOMILL CREEK ORDINANCE 2019-


2.5 This First Amendment has beenadopted and approved in accordance with the
applicableprocedural requirements speci?ed under State law and City code, and Section 7.3 of the
Original DA.


NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, bene?ts, and tenns and
conditionsof this agreement, the receipt and suf?ciency of which is herebyacknowledged, the
Parties hereby amend the Original DA as follows:


3.0 Terms and Conditions


3.1 Material Recitals. The foregoing Recitalsare incorporated herein as material terms
of this First Amendment.


3.2 Propegy Description. The propertyaffected by this First Amendment is fully
described in Section 4.0 of the Original DA , incorporatedherein, and recited as follows:


THE NORTHEASTQUARTEROF THE NORTHEASTQUARTEROF THE NORTHWESTQUARTEROF SECTION33,
TOWNSHIP28 NORTH,RANGE5 EAST,W. M., IN SNOHOMISHCOUNTY,WASHINGTON;


EXCEPTTHE EASTERLY389 FEETAS MEASUREDALONGTHENORTHERLYLINEOF SAIDNORTHEASTQUARTER
OF THENORTHEASTQUARTEROF THENORTHWESTQUARTER;


EXCEPTTHATPORTION CONVEYEDTO SNOHOMISHCOUNTYBYQUITCLAIMDEEDRECORDEDUNDER
AUDITOR'SFILENO. 219641;


EXCEPTTHATPORTIONCONVEYEDTO THECOUNTYOF SNOHOMISH,STATE OF WASHINGTONFOR ROAD
PURPOSETHROUGHDEEDRECORDEDMARCH27, 1992 UNDERRECORDINGNO. 9203270216, RE RECORDED
BYDEEDRECORDEDJUNE3, 1992 UNDERRECORDINGNO. 9206030420.


3.3 Authority. This First Amendment is authorized by and entered into under the
authority of MCMC Chapters 14.03 and 17.19, and the Revised Code of Washington ("RCW")
section 36.70B.170 et seq. for the purposes set forth herein and in the Original DA. The Mill
Creek City Council has found that this First Amendment is in the public interest and ?arthers the
public health, safety and welfare, all as set forth in Council Ordinance 2019-


3.4 Enlarged Space Allocation. Section 9.3.2.1 of the Original DA is amended to
enlarge the space allocation for the Senior Center from 2,800 sq. ft. to 3,413 sq. ft, as follows:


9.3.2.1 Terms of Commercial Property Leases. In exchange for the City allowing the
Leasing Of?ce and Residential Amenity Space on the ground ?oor, Developer will, in


FIRST AMENDMENTTO 2015 DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT BETWEEN MILL CREEK
AND VINTAGE AT MILL CREEK LLC -- Page 3 of 8
{WFMI853579.DOCX;2/05739.000002/}


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 18 of 111







EXHIBIT A
TO MILL CREEK ORDINANCE 2019-


good faith, attempt to enter into a lease with a minimum term of 25 years for ;,;4_l__2§2800
square feet of ground ?oor commercialspace with an independent, City approved, non-
pro?t senior center that offers recreational, social, and/or learning activities to community
seniors, including residents and non-residentsof the Property. Such lease will be on
commercially reasonable terms and will provide that Developer will build the initial
mutually-agreed upon tenant improvements for the space (including but not limited to
walls,?ooring, utility outlets, paint, doors, and trim) and lease the space to the senior center
for no more than the Developer’s cost of providing utilities to the allocated space; provided
that the lease may allocate certain other commercially reasonable costs to the tenant,
including the responsibility to pay for any damage caused by the tenant, and customary
maintenance and repair, insurance, casualty, condemnation and other provisions. The
senior center will be responsible for ?imishing the space and operating its own senior
oriented activities and programs. The senior center’s members will have access and use of
the Residential Amenity Space (if any) operated by the Developer on such tenns and
conditions as Developer may establish for the use of such space. However, Developer
may, in its discretion, exclude other membersof the public from accessing the Residential
Amenity Space.


3.5 Deleted Paragraph. The second (unnumbered) paragraph of Section 9.3.2.1 of the
Original DA is deleted in its entirety, as follows:


3.6 Authority. By executing this First Amendment, each Party represents and warrants
that it has taken all necessary steps under its corporate authority and/or applicable City or state law
to authorize such act, and that its execution of this First Amendment is knowing, voluntary, made
upon consultationwith legal counsel, and is valid and binding for all purposes.


FIRST AMENDMENT TO 2015 DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT BETWEEN MILL CREEK
AND VINTAGE AT MILL CREEK LLC -- Page 4 of 8
{WFMI853579.DOCX;2/05739.000002/ }


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 19 of 111







EXHIBIT A
TO MILL CREEK ORDINANCE 2019-


3.7 Integration. This Agreement constitutesthe entire agreement between the Parties
as to the subject matter herein. No prior oral or written agreements respecting same shall be valid,
and any such agreements shall be consideredto be merged and subsumed herein.


3.8 Effective Date. The effective date of this First Amendment shall be
("Effective Date").


3.9 Recording. This First Amendment shall be promptly recorded in the King County
Recorder’s Of?ce by Vintage and a confonned copy thereof delivered to the City within 30 days
of execution and approval of the City Council.


3.10 Continuing Effect of Original DA. Except as expressly modi?ed herein, the terms
and conditionsof the Original DA are not altered or affected, shall remain in ?ll] force and effect,
and shall apply to the First Amendment as though fully set forth in the Original DA.


3.11 Covenant Rurming with Land. From and after the Effective Date, this First
Amendment shall be a covenant running with the Property and/or an equitable servitude on the
Property, and shall be binding on the Parties and their successors and assigns, and on all subsequent
owners, purchasers, lessees or lessors, tenants, transferees, and transferors of every nature as set
forth herein.


WHEREFORE, the Parties hereby execute this First Amendment by their authorized
signatures below.


City of Mill Creek: Vintage at Mill Creek, LLC


, By:
Robert Stowe, Interim City Manager Its:


Ryan Patterson
ATTEST:


Gina P?ster, City Clerk


FIRST AMENDMENT TO 2015 DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT BETWEEN MILL CREEK
AND VINTAGE AT MILL CREEK LLC -- Page 5 of 8
{WFMI853S79.DOCX;2/05739.000002/ }


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 20 of 111







EXHIBIT A
TO MILL CREEK ORDINANCE 2019-


APPROVED AS TO FORM:
Of?ce of the City Attorney


Scott M. Missall, City Attorney


FIRST AMENDMENT TO 2015 DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT BETWEEN MILL CREEK
AND VINTAGE AT MILL CREEK LLC - Page 6 of 8
{WFMI853579.DOCX;2/05739.000002/}


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 21 of 111







EXHIBIT A
TO MILL CREEK ORDINANCE 2019-


STATE OF WASHINGTON )
) ss:


COUNTY OF SNOHOMISH )


I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidencethat Robert S. Stowe is the person who
appeared before me, and acknowledged that he signed this instrument, on oath stated that he was
authorizedto execute the instrument, and acknowledged it as the Interim City Manager for the
City of Mill Creek, to be the free and voluntary act of such party for the uses and purposes
mentioned in this instrument.


DATED: , 2019.


Print Name:
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the state of
Washington, residing at:


My Appointment Expires:


FIRST AMENDMENT TO 2015 DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT BETWEEN MILL CREEK
AND VINTAGE AT MILL CREEK LLC -- Page 7 of 8
{WFM1853579.DOCX;2/05739.000002/}


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 22 of 111







EXHIBIT A
TO MILL CREEK ORDINANCE 2019-


STATE OF )
) ss:


COUNTY OF )


I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Ryan Patterson the person who
appeared before me, acknowledged that he signed this instrument, on oath stated that he was
authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as the of
Vintage at Mill Creek, LLC, to be the free and voluntaryact of suchparty for the uses and purposes
mentioned in this instrument.


DATED: , 2019.


Print Name:
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the state of
Washington, residing at:


My Appointment Expires:


FIRST AMENDMENT TO 2015 DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT BETWEEN MILL CREEK
AND VINTAGE AT MILL CREEK LLC -- Page 8 of 8
{WFMl853579.DOCX;2/05739.000002/ }


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 23 of 111







Attachment2


ORDINANCENO. 201577‘T5


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK, WASHINGTON,
APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY
OF MILL CREEK AND VINTAGE AT MILL CREEK PURSUANT TO
MILL CREEK MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 17.19 AND RCW
36.70B.170 ET SEQ. FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF PROPERTY
LOCATED WITHIN THE EAST GATEWAY URBAN VILLAGE; AND
ESTABLISHINGAN EFFECTIVE DATE.


WHEREAS,on March 25, 2008, the City Counciladopted Ordinance No. 2008-676,


approving the East Gateway Urban Village Comprehensive Plan and Development Code


amendments("EGUVAmendments"); and


WHEREAS,the EGUV Amendmentsincludedadoptionof an illustrativemaster plan to


guidedevelopmentwithinthe East Gateway UrbanVillage;and


WHEREAS, the EGUV Amendments includedadoptionof a new Mill Creek Municipal


Code ("MCMC")Chapter 17.19, entitled East Gateway Urban Village, to establish the East


Gateway Urban Village zone district ("EGUV District") and provide for development


regulations,designstandards,andguidelinesfor futuredevelopment in the EGUV District;and


WHEREAS, MCMC Chapter 17.19 requires every developmentoccurringwithin the


EGUVDistrictto prepare andobtainapprovalof a detailedmaster plan ("DMP") that includes(i)


a Binding Site Plan and (ii) a Development Agreement approved in accordancewith RCW


36.70B.170et seq.; and


WHEREAS, on July 1, 2008, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2008-684,


approving design guidelines for development within the EGUV District ("EGUV Design


Guidelines");and
. _


WHEREAS, the EGUV Design Guidelinesconstitute development regulations under


RCW 36.70.A.030(7) that will be used in conjunctionwith MCMC Titles 14 to 18 and the


BindingSite Plans and developmentagreements to be approvedfor projects within the EGUV


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 24 of 111







District,all to ensure that developmentwithinthe EGUVDistrictis consistentwith the EGUV


Amendmentsand the communityvisionre?ected therein;and


WHEREAS,on March 9, 2015, Vintage at Mill Creek ("Developer") submittedBinding


Site Plan applicationBS 15-65 for property located within the EGUV District, which property


has the following legal description("Property"):


TheNortheastQuarterof the NortheastQuarterof the NorthwestQuarterof Section33,
Township28 North,Range5 ‘East,W. M., in SnohomishCounty, Washington;except the
easterly389feet as measuredalongthenortherlylineof saidNortheastQuarterof the
NortheastQuarterof theNorthwestQuarter;except that portionconveyed to Snohomish
County by QuitClaimDeedrecordedunderAuditor's FileNo. 219641; except that
portionconveyed to the County of Snohomish,State of Washington for road purpose
through deed recorded March27, 1992underRecordingNo. 9203270216,re-recordedby
deed recordedJune 3, 1992under RecordingNo. 9206030420.


WHEREAS, on March26, 2015, BS 15-65was deemed complete for vesting purposes


pursuant to MCMC14.0S.O40;and


V


WHEREAS, the City Council is charged with legislativereview and approval authority


of the Development Agreement (“DA”), pursuant to MCMC Chapter 14.03, setting forth


developmentstandardsand other terms, conditions,and provisionsapplicableto developmentof


theProperty;and


WHEREAS, the Hearing Examiner is charged with reviewing Binding Site Plans


pursuant to MCMCChapter 14.03;and


. WHEREAS, said DA, upon approvalby the City Council, becomesa development


regulationthat will be binding on the Property and the HearingExaminer'sreviewof BS 15-65;


and


WHEREAS, public notice of the publichearing on the proposedDA was sent to the


owners of property situated within 500 feet of the subject property on August 25, 2015, was


postedon the subjectproperty on August 21,2015, andwas duly advertisedin the Everett Herald


on August 21, 2015, all in accordancewith MCMC14.07.030;and


2


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 25 of 111







WHEREAS,on September1, 2015, the City Councilheldthe scheduledpublichearing to


solicit,obtain,considerand evaluatepubliccomments and Developercomments on the proposed


DA; and


WHEREAS,discussionon the proposedDA was continuedto a future meeting and was


scheduledbeforethe City Councilfor continueddiscussionon October6, 2015; and


WHEREAS, the City Council?nds that the proposedDA as recommendedby City staff


and Developer is consistentwith the EGUVAmendments, MCMC Chapter 17.19, the EGUV


DesignGuidelines,theCity's developmentregulations,andRCW36.70B.170et seq.; and


WHEREAS, the City Councilfurtherfinds that adoptionof the DA as provided in this


Ordinancewill further the publichealth, safety, and generalwelfare.


NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK,


WASHINGTON,ORDAINSAS FOLLOWS:


Sectign 1. The City Counciladopts the recitals set forth above as ?ndings, and


conclusions.


Section2. The City Councilapprovesand authorizesthe City Manager to sign the


DevelopmentAgreement betweenthe City andVintage at Mill Creek, attachedand incorporated


as Exhibit A, pursuant to MCMCChapter 14.03,MCMCChapter 17.19,and RCW 36.70B.170


et seq.


Section3. The DevelopmentAgreementapprovedby Section2 above shallbe signed


by the Developerand submittedto the CityManager withinten (10) days of the effectivedateof


thisordinance.The Development Agreement shallthereafterbe signed by the City Manager and


shall be recorded by the City at the Developer's expense pursuant to Section 7.1 of the


DevelopmentAgreement.


Section4. If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this


Ordinanceor its applicationto any person or situationbe declaredunconstitutionalor invalidfor


any reason, suchdecisionshallnot affectthe validityof the remaining portionof this Ordinance


or its applicationto any other person or situation.The City Councilhereby declaresthat it would


have adoptedthis Ordinanceand each section, subsection,sentence, clause, phrase or portion


thereof irrespectiveof the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses,


phrasesor portionsbe declaredinvalidor unconstitutional.


Section5. This Ordinance shall be effective ?ve days following the publicationof


the attachedsummary, which is hereby approved.
3


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 26 of 111







Passed in open meeting his 6"‘day of October 2015 by a vote of for,
[2 against, and abstaining.


ATTEST/AUTI-IENTICATED:


/l4ML./'
. CHELIN, CITY CLERK


APPROVED AS TO FORM:
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY


?
EHANEMOLONEY, CITY ATTORNEY


FILEDWITH THE CITY CLERK: I'DZ‘?N?
FAssED BY THE CITY COUNCIL: I"/b II9’


PUBLISHED: I9 / II/I4
EFFECTIVE DATE: IOzIb II‘;


ORDINANCENO.: ‘Z019’ 7”! 8


Exhibit A: Approved Development Agreement with Mill Creek EGUV, LLC


G:\EXECUTIVE\\\’I’\Ordinances\DevclupmcIIl AgrccnIcnI Vintage III MillCrcekdoc


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 27 of 111







""‘ ‘


201500342
Hllllllllllll


Attachment3


Kellyg=3lae}i?,"cit&qier};
City o£.,_MiH-ereegg,-.._--'_ 08/09%15723M-ain.Sn'e'e_t.-"' -:3’
Mill Creek,lbfas?ingtdn-280%


lllllllllllllllllfllIllllllllllllllll
/lllllll


229:25SNOHONSHcoumli"39””.
......__'.


2 '-
'-


."'" s.-4"-'.. . .


REj_'.1z.v-‘«_;‘:(:_.oi11:r’:_1,T.(,‘);;C'_"91?.1zE(:1‘DEVELOPER ENTITY


.'B;_eveIopmentAgreement for BS 15-65(EGUV)


ReferenceNumber(s)of relateiii":'...':.'.Z~'.Z_0'§1.5,1-0‘2.'3v0323
documents


DocumentTitle(s)


of 1»1_j_1nc’i31eg;k
vintggeét Cigeek,LP


Abbrev. Legal Description


\"l;a:_tag’i§.;:1.t-Pb'I'i.ll__1:'3'1.'°eek,LP
cit3&'-o_r__;y_1_i,u.g:ieek...__


The Nortl:1"¢.:a§’t'it1u;l1r_térof the Northeast of the
Northwest.gu'értgrf;o£;--Section33,Township 28N,
Range 5 E


2s0533o020130i1,_
o , .u


°°°°°°°°° °'


Assessor's Property Tax
Parcel/AccountNumber


'1 - .
'-....,..: “J


.u
0‘.


BS IS-65 DevelopmentAgreement Pag¢‘:"-|_.t_>’l':‘2‘0


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 28 of 111







I


‘I


t


I. I. , .
la .


u.’


1'.


_
f__


..


A?-er.1=e'é.'(’>-r(‘l'i'ii£‘I.-iéturn to:
._,." ._.' ._---1,. '3.


Shane f.»/Iol§_>.r3.ey-,'&Iity;_:A%‘t_or!1331'5'f°.__
City of‘A_/fill°Cr<=._¢:.1c’_f-.,_
15728Maiin'St'r'eet",. .'=-" --


MillCreek, V_&_/'.'a'§hi._r;gt'é)'n"9;i.i'.(.J.i'§.‘"3.
vs


Document Title"(.s)’'0.........,
.- '


_ r


ReferenceNumbe1;(s)j'.of53
documents ''~


'.


of Mill Creek


:‘Vi_:itag}e.at_MillCreek,LLC
"


MillCreek, LLC


BS 15-65Development Agreement


___cit’yofMi11_§;:ee_1;


The]\Io?i;epst'qu2:13§erof theNortheastquarter of the
Ne‘1'*'lhw:es't'qg_1_21t"'rcr__x5f‘,Section33, Township28N,
Ra?ge5'~E-


. ..
"\.
_:. ..


Inn. r_- -0‘. °-_


3‘ .- .-
0 I


'- .
" " nu '-


I' :- .
C ,-
-_ .F .-L _


i‘


.r'
u _.o'


.".
.-'
. I


:'~ -_ .
I I-
'u, '5 .'


I.


"u I‘
‘.--, ..


'.
‘-... - '


.--
'1


d' __.a"-.'


-_ :_.:


.


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 29 of 111







_,fI-5""f°:£>rN7rAGEAT MILL CREEK, LLC


\
prnnmc SITE PLAN(BS 15—65)


.-,-3,,‘ ' ' '


7


' "' 201510260323002


CONTRACT2o15—l25l
.(


. crrv or MILL CREEK
" " (__,,l:)I_i‘.VELOPMENTAGREEMENT


. Forum:


5"f..--IlSl-TiIE‘E.Q.STGATEWAYURBANv1LLAcE
'-_.-' .,-' _,...


p. "
o


I-


1.0 Parties ‘ix _,"-
s,-.


n


\®73a.rf-n¢r'.S/>r',0


-
I.


1.] ThisDevelbiiiriéniftgféement("Agreement")is enteredintoon the EffectiveDate
set forthbelowbetween theC_itY'_9£l_\_/.lil~l._Cree_k,a Washingtonmunicipalcorporationhaving its
rinci al lace of businessat l~5728Mai‘Street, MillCreek,Washington98012("City"),and


Vintageat MillCreek,
" '


'


, a‘3.,}ll?a':‘.ljt_i_iigton_l.‘iini.ted", aving its principalplace
of business at 369 San Miguel'jDrive,.-Suite"#l_35;'Newport Beach, California92660-7813
("Developer"). The City and Dcye'I_9pe'rr_r_;ay'be individually referred to as "Party" and
collectivelyas the "Parties."


1.2 The Parties enter into this Agra=,_:ne'ntfor"ar_1dconsiderationof the mutual
bene?tsand advantages of thisAgreement. T=he'Partjes'agi-ee‘tocomplywithall of the terms and
conditionsofthis Agreement. .~\\.~"~ .-"


,- .‘u''
2.0 Purpose


2.1 Mill Creek Municipal Code (“MClVl;C”)5.__f$ec[ion_.-‘1119.020 requires every
developmentin theEast Gateway UrbanVillage (“EGUV_'f_)zgningdist?ct-.toobtainapprovalof
a detailedmaster developmentplan. The detailedmaster development--planincludesa binding
site plan and a development agreement with the City. The;’de\;éloprn,i;nt;-‘agreementis to be
approved by the City Counciland the bindingsite plan is to bereviewed-'a_nd'approvedby the
Cir_y’sHearing Examiner.TheHearingExaminer'sdecisionis appcalable-to‘th_e.CiryCouncil.


2.2 This Agreement serves as the development agreementfor5.t!ie"'E’rc_ijt-;c't'_,(whichis
describedin Section 5 .1). The Agreement is not intendedto con.?ict"v_zitho_r./st'ippl’aInt'__1=gxisting
state and local regulationsthat otherwisegovern the Project. ThisAgreeq1e'iit_.dties_mt'st?£fveas
an approval of any permit or any speci?c proposal within Developer’s:_"a1JI>.lic'2'itiot'1for;the
Project, The Agreement sets forthnegotiatedterms and conditionsapplicaBle"t.9-?iture--Project
approvals and the ongoing obligations and rights of the parties a?er Project 'appr_ov'al_...=‘Ihesé
negotiated terms and conditions supplement the terms and conditions of"
Developer's proposedBSP (as de?ned in Section5.1) remainssubject to review and._appr6_va'Jby_ '-._


the City‘s Hearing Examiner. After the BSP is approved, relatedpermits (e.g. building,a_nd____.5
designreview)willbe subjectto reviewandapprovalby thosedesignatedto reviewsuclipeirrgitsk__
(e.g.building code cf?cial and designreviewboard).


__.~"'


___


BS I5-65 Development Agreement Page2 of 20 ,.-'


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 30 of 111







-I
'- "their respective rights, duties,obligations,privilegesand commitmentswith regard to the


-~"Pr9pE:rt}<-.iin_clProject for the durationof this Agreement.


u


i..
.


The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement will bene?t the Parties by assuring


___‘Theterms and conditionsof this Agreement apply to the Property and Project as
dé:i_ined_'_an’él"d_es'cr._ibedherein.


3.0 ?3e?aii;oiis-
.1


,.. u'_. __F-
.d'


3.1 are initially de?ned and or describedat the indicatedsections
of thisAgréeznenty‘ ‘ ""'—"'-. -' I _


‘:0xv..I'.-\ ‘I. _


Bi'r1’djng"S_ije'P_l_a;_r_1("BSP")(Section 5.1)
Cor“r}rnert§ial"PropertyUse Agreement (Section 9.3)
Design,Gu;_dsIi"ri_esCSect_i_on8.2)
East Geitei.=ivay-._Ui‘ha’r_r}o’-i}l_a_.g't=,(“EGUV"')(Section 2.1)
Effective‘~Dat€(Se’c'ti9n"19.4)
EGUVRegulatiQ.IlS'(Se._b°t'i'on8.2)
EngineeringStudy"(Sed1i'ojr8,.2.3)__
MasterDevelopiiieritililalii(_‘,'.l\‘/1_Dl"')".(_Section7.3)
Mill CreekMunicipalqocié..("McMc")(Section2.1)
Project (Section5.1’)--’"'


Project Approvals(Se"'r-;,’_£_i_.0n"‘8.3)
Property (Section 4.1)
Road Construction(Section _1,0:4)
Vested Term (Section 8.4) K‘ "


o o
.0


4.0 Property Description


4.1 The property which is the subject of.-t_hi"s'A'gree'_i,nen1__consistsof the parcel legally
describedin attached Exhibit A ("Property"). Devcl'o'per'_in'tend.s__tc5"purchasethe Property ?-om
its current owner, Robert J. Mollgaard, as his separatefes:tate€‘_‘O3}vner”).In the event that
Developer purchases the Property from the Owner, and ’e;l_eéts'~t_op?oeéedwith the Project, this
Agreement shall bind Developer and the Property pursuantito-~St'§'_ctit3n__l-9i§,_below.A tax parcel
map generally depicting the Property is attached as Exhibit Rf Referencesto "Property" shall
includethe Projectdescribed in Section 5.1 below.


'-
o '
. .-'


a o “


4.2 The parcels comprising the Property bear Snohomisl.i~I__Cl:)_11n°t:')":-"tietxparcelnumbers
("TPN"): 28053300201300.


'


.-
0


.1


BS 15-65DevelopmentAgreement


- .-
1


.
o


Pa.'éé_.s-of'2.<i"
,_ .


I.
'


O
-


_.J .


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 31 of 111







" Project Description.
.,-~"applit‘;ation_.todevelop the Property. The speci?c applicationis BindingSite Plan BS 15-65. The


"“P_rojec_t_’:.--generallyconsists of subdividing one parcel for the purposeof developingtwo ?ve-


’. .4"-._ ..5.0""..___.Pi"<')jectDescription


Developer has submitted a Binding Site Plan (“BSP”)


story-*'l5_g.uil'd_i_I1g§withcommercialuses and parking on the ground ?oor plus residentialunits
abovef'(“Pfoj_e,et”¥:1"}}¢.residentialunits will be restricted to residents55 years of age or older. A
map generally_dé_p'icting_t|_1_’eproposedProject is attachedas Exhibit C.


6.0 Aut,li'ii:1:f,it=_y>""."_"§:"‘.WI_.


6.1 §'fL11_’g,l_1oi"’i_ty‘-:""Agreement is a development agreement authorized by and
entered into undér_,thea.utii_iJrity_ofMCMC Chapters 14.03 and 17.19, and the Revised Code of
Washington (”RCVY_'.'-)"s__ec't'io;1,§6TQOB.l70 et seq. This Agreement establishescertain terms and
conditionspertaining to developmentpf‘theProject and the Property, and establishesan overall
framework for curreritxand’*.,fuiUie--‘devefopmentof the Property, but is not exclusivenor a
comprehensive list of de‘velop_m€nt,_requircmentsa?ecting the Property. Other requirements for
development of the Propc;i5ty_...-w'_i_l_l“-,_l:ie"establishedduring the review process for speci?c
components of the EGUVReg_ulati.§n§;des§ribedinSection 8.2 below and under the applicable
provisionsof the MCMC. .-


I
-‘H -


0
I.‘


7.0 Development Review Proé'c'§ui3es_.fo'i"Project


7.1 Approval of Agreement. This Ag1‘eerpen_tbeen processed in accordancewith
RCW 36.70B.170et seq. and MCMC l4.0§».030._,-App_r_a’val_.bfthis Agreement by the Mill Creek
City Council is requiredbefore any other d‘e_velop_me’iitapprovalsaffecting the Property may be
heard, decided, or granted. Following executionb_y...tltfe°'.-P-arti_es,City shall promptly record this
Agreement with the Snohomish County Auditoils.Of?c_e--atDeveloper'sexpense. In the event
that this Agreement is recordedand Developerdoesnqt’a_cq'uir_éthe Property or proceed with the
Project, Developer and the City will execute and 're_cofd__a1ry.-necessaryterminationdocument,
and Developer will pay the costs of recording such teriiii'r'iati'on.......'


7.2 Hearing ExaminerNotice. In reviewingstibseiijifentxiiieveligpmentapplicationsfor
the Project or Property, the Mill Creekhearing examiner shalltakén_Q.t-ir':°e_.ofthis Agreement and
accord it the foregoingstatus under MCMC 4.34.030. ‘ 5‘


7.3 Project Review. Subsequent applications, approvaib,-and'dey.el_dpinentactions for
the Project, including the BSP and consistency review required for'.',_t.l_1e"l_’,r4:>'jcct§un_derMCMC
Section l7.]9.030, enviromnental decisions, and all subsequent perrfiits..-i?jipleriientingthe
Project, shall be reviewed pursuant to the MCMC regulations existing oii-.th'e_..vest_i,ng'_d__a_’t_efor the
applicationfor any such action. No developmentapproval shall be grantedifpglegs--it’is._goi1sistent
with the MCMC, this Agreement and the EGUV Regulations(as definedin"Secti_or_13,2below).
This Agreement, any future approved BSP for the Project, and any future apprpvedjeoiisisteney
review for the Project shall collectively comprise the master development‘-plah‘f_ '


describedin MCMC Sections l7.l9.020 and .030.


BS l5-65 DevelopmentAgreement


J. I
u’


('35 _-.
I


P_.


Page_4-053,03
."-


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 32 of 111







’u
,f_.,.


J 'I. 8.0.--“'_':.‘...-ProjectReview and Evaluation; Vested Rights
.


.r' -.1-.-‘ .
The Project shall be reviewed in accordancewith City's


"-regular_glei{el_gpmentreview procedures. City shall use this Agreement and the EGUV
R’ég_i_1lati.o?sspeci?edbelow during the developmentreview process as additional standardsand
criteriat__o""evalut_iteth_e___.Projectand determine appropriate conditionsand requirements of
develépnientl_]?=.Eoj'éc'fapprovaland subsequentbuild out will require various City permits and
approvals-w


_. _


8.2 Re_gt_1'Jl§'t'1‘o'ns.The Project will be developedconsistentwith the following
as applied duringthe"de3m'lo‘pinentreview process: (i) this Agreement; (ii) the version of Titles
16, 17, and 18"‘-o'f___tl1é" in effect on the date the Agreement is approvedby the City
Council; (iii) ‘Guidelines adoptedJuly 1, 2008 ("Design Guidelines"); (iv) Reid
Middleton EGUV Infrastru‘ctuEeDesign-Repondated December2012 ("EngineeringStudy")
attachedhereto as Exliibit--1),;(v)"'enviro_m‘nentaldecisionsand documentsissued for the Project
under the State Environinent:il.,P6ligy-ikct,RCW Chapter43.2lC, and/or MCMC Chapter 18.04
(collectively "SEPA"); (vi),--th'e.__ve"r'sioji"'c£;theMill Creek ComprehensivePlan in effect on the
date the Agreement is appr'<')vé_.<i’l3'y"tli‘té':;Cit;yCouncil;and (vii) other applicable City, state, or
federal regulationsas those regulafi§ns‘eggist_andapplyat the time of developmentor a vested
application therefore (e.g. buildingperrnits-vvil_l.-besubject to the building codes in effect at the
time a building permit is applied for).--"Al1..ofthe foregpingcomprise development regulations
within the meaning of RCW 36.70Af0§_0'andshall oollécfi-velycompriseand be referred to as the
"EGUV Regulations." Without limiting foregoi1'ig,__th__efollowingcomponents of the EGUV
Regulationsare emphasizedfor clarity: "


‘ 5
,-


,1’, o
5


3.2.1 Applicable Reg;;1atieri§..__Alhapplicableregulations in the MCMC on the
effective date of this Agreement or the vesting 'd'a"te_ofa_ny.,_suhsequentapplicationpertaining to
the Project shallapply to the Project, except as maygbechanged-bythis Agreement.


8.2.2 EGUV Design Guidelines. A?Il"'S'tifi1tE'tur,es._aiidfacilitiescomprisingthe
Project shall comply with the Design Guidelinesas adopted thef'__C_ityCouncil on July 1, 2008,
in Cit)’Council Ordinance No. 2008-684.


8.2.3 Engineering Study. The EngineeringStudy;-'§:ha:ll"b_§=usedas the design
guideline for the public roadway alignment, access management}.traf?c"jm'pactsand analysis,
regional drainage facilities if coordinatingwith adjacent property-.._owi1er§,.p_uF5l'ie_infrastructure
facilities, and utility coordination. All required public infrastructure,__‘rIac'i_1itiesandmitigation
arising from the Project shall be consistentwith the Engineering Stud}'7,.e7iceptt_hePaniesagree
the alignment of Road B as depicted on Exhibit C is an approveddevi%itioiiJ_frc5rn’_I.he_gignment
of that road as contemplatedwithin the Engineering Study. The City Maij_:ager,fIor"?iesi?gnee,in


' With the exception of the alignment of Road B, projectelementsdepicted in Exhibit C (e.g. paltl<irig§'-:b‘qffers;,.--"i'._


determine whethersuch elementscomply with applicable EGUV Regulations.
setbacks, open space, building locations) are provided for conceptual purposes only. The l-learing',‘Exai'niiiefshall-~s;...,_


I’.


BS l5-65 DevelopmentAgreement


..
3.


Page}-oi':20}
_-r. .‘.'


_.a' -.'


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 33 of 111







u_. .
'1' u


__l_1e1"solediscretionmay authorizeadditionaldeviations?om the Engineering Study to the
"""e>g_ten’t_.suchdeviationsdo not prevent the Project from complyingwith other applicableaspects


- --'-o"f,tl1eEGUVRegulations and will not materially impact existing or ?iture developments within


\-
_.--’£l;l§_E.('7._iTl_.fJVgmingdistrict.


‘ff___.--"_8'=3"""'“Cgmpliancewith Project Approvals. Once approved, this Agreement, the
subsequent"a§soc§ated.__§SPand MDP, and all other governmental approvals (e.g., SEPA
determination,buildingperrnits,etc.) required for development of the Project shall collectively
ccmprise..tl1e"’_'_Projectj,l4_ip_}5iQyals."The Project shall comply with the Project Approvals in all
particulars,.triid__Git'y'-jrri'aytakégenforcementaction in accordance with Section 15 at any time to
compelsuch..ct')"m_pl'rair'1c_:_e.__j‘.-'W"_


8.4 pf Develo ment A reement Vested Term‘ Vested Ri hts. This
Agreement shall c':'r'_:r_1_stit_'ute"abindingdevelopment regulation for the Project and Property for
purposesof the City’s,-ievievijcfBindingSite Plan BS 15-65 and related applicationsreceived
within 8 years of the§..effectivé'-date-pfthisAgreement (“Vested Term”). During the Vested
Term, Developershall lia.ve_th_e,.iight.tbdevelop the Project in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement and the Project"Apj5rm__7al‘s-.._regardlessof intervening changes in the EGUV
Regulations or other applleable""tlei_7elopr_nentregulations. After the Vested Term, this
Agreement shall continue to alpp-l_j_'I_'.‘.jto"“tl_1_e_;-'°'use-‘clf_,a1ldevelopment approved pursuant to this
Agreement. Developmentappli'e_ations-r_ecéive_d"afterthe Vested Term or for different projects
shall be subject to review under their:appl'ic_ablE§'develop1’1_:lentregulations.


9.0 Occupancy of Buildings; SalebfLots;__Uses
9.1 Occupancy and Sale. There ‘pd:occupancy or use of the Project


components, and no sale or lease of any lots;_.tIacts__or--parcelscreated by the BSP, until (i) the
BSP is recorded in accordancewith the MCMC;"'a'pd"(ii)__perti?catesof occupancy have been
issuedas required by the MCMC and Section9.2. ,-"" _


9.2 Certi?catesof Occupancy. In addition‘to"tfiZ=3::iFetjii_ireii1entsof the MCMC and the
enforcementprovisions set forth in Section 15, the City niay.-in/ith_l1olHcerti?cates of occupancy
for all or any part of the Project until all building pennit ‘r_eqi1-ire_mé't:l_ts-'a'ndProject conditionsof
approvalhave been met to City's satisfaction. ----------"


-


9.3 Commercial Uses. Pursuant MCMC Section“-lZ.'T'9'.Q40',':,.residentialuses are
prohibited on the Property unless the residential uses are lcc5ted""'_ab6ve__.commercialuses.
Consistentwith the City’s Comprehensive Plan, this restrictionenco_iirageé*L:_a-':mi>§,pf residential
and commercialuses that provide active pedestrian circulationand ec-i)"r'1:9J:1’1'.lC_S~'£EIl}llitSf:within the
East Gateway Urban Village. "


9.3.1 No Residential Accessory Uses. Except as otherwise"éiipre§_sly:'a2gri§edin
Section 9.3.2, the ground ?oor commercial space may not be used as an 5,acc§,E_;:s'sory,..fo_..the
Project’s residentialuses and access to the ground ?oor uses shall notbe limited~.gn_'_=the_'_laasis_


.i5;l:.residency within the Project. '


i


-'.


BS 15-65DevelopmentAgreement Péj_gc_§ucf'2_0E't_-_’
_I".


I’... . u. u


I
u


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 34 of 111







9.3.2 Agreement Regarding Speci?c Commercial Uses Serving the Public and
---------"Kg-isidei1tsi-Notwithstandingthe restrictionset forth in Subsection9.3.1 of this Agreement, the


__.--Partiestrecoigmzethat there may be some commercialuses that can ful?ll the intent of the EGUV
"R'égul'ati9ns,____yvhilealso serving as accessories to the residential aspect of the Project.
Speci?cally,Developerintends to operate al,000 square foot leasing office that will serve
residents_arid:pot§ntial__;esidents(“Leasing Oi‘lice”),and a 2,500 square foot space that will
includgeaibeauty-p_ar1oi5,kitchen,and ?tness center for use by the Project’s residents(“Residential
Ameriity-Spac’§?J)t;'The§Pa:?iesagree that the Leasing Office and ResidentialAmenity Space may
be located the"g°i'e;i2iiidfl_oo'1_==of the Project, subject to the tenns and conditionsdescribedin
Section9.3.72.-If "


_-'\. .-' .. '._
'0' -’\ V-


”.--'9.3'_,2:°l_:_Tennsof CommercialProperty Leases. In exchange for the City
allowing tIi_e,,.Ei§.as'ing__Officeand Residential Amenity Space on the ground floor,
Developer will,~'in_,.g6'odfaith,‘attemptto enter into a lease with a minimum term of 25
years for 2800E-squarefe'et'pf-g"ro_Lind?oor commercialspace with an independent,City
approved, non-pro?t?‘s,enior,.--centerthat offers recreational, social, and/or learning
activities to cornm11_rri't'y'__seiiio;_‘s',""includingresidents and non-residentsof the Property.
Such lease will be oh'i';e?iii1eifciall'y,‘reast)_nableterms and will provide that Developer
will build the initialm11i‘,tuai_l'§f(_-;a~g‘r't3_<_=,£iupdnitenantimprovementsfor the space (including
but not limited to wall§;'*_?oorjng,.,utility-'6utlets,paint, doors, and trim) and lease the
space to the seniorcenter f‘or"_t'1o"'i1'i<_2r<-‘."tha11the Developer’scost of providing utilities to
the allocated space; provide'd.__thatthe lease-shay,allocate certain other commercially
reasonablecosts to the tenant, including__th€responsibilityto pay for any damage caused
by the tenant, and customary mainte__nai'ice_,.an'drgipaiti,insurance,casualty,condemnation
and other provisions. The senior céi;iter'$gi_ri_ll.béresponsiblefor furnishing the space and
operatingits own seniororientedacti'v1._’._ties"-prograrns.The senior center’s members
will have access and use of the Residential-‘Amenity,Space (if any) operated by the
Developer on such terms and conditionsasEDe,v'é1o_p‘erfnayestablish for the use of such
space. However, Developer may, in its discretion,ext'§lude__othermembers of the public
fromaccessing the ResidentialAmenity Space".""""" ,,,,,


In addition,Developer will lease tothe'~Cit'y:.50'0._squarefeet of ground
?oor commercialspace to be used, maintained,an‘d---epf'_erate_c__l.-by:_.theCity as a public
facing police satellite office. Such lease will be on corhmer'ei_aliy-reasonableterms and
will provide that, among other things, Developer"-willbuild»-‘theinitial tenant
improvements for the space (including but not limited to "s2_vall_s,-"?ogging;-.__outlets,paint,
doors) and lease the space to the City for no more than Dei,'{el9pei_",s"cost.91‘providing
utilities to the allocated space; provided that the lease may.--allocatecertainother
commercially reasonablecosts to the tenant, including the responsibilityto‘payfor any
damage causedby the tenant, and customary maintenanceand repair,"in,suiEan'c'e,'casualty,
condemnationand other provisions. 'l‘heCitywill be responsiblefor'fv.'1rnisl_;i_n§"‘t__11espace
and all operating and maintenancecosts. =.,_,_


‘Iu
'1


BS 15-65 Development Agreement
‘


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 35 of 111







9.3.3 Effect of Failure to Lease. Developer will make a good faith effort to


__..--"':__..leasea portion of the ground ?oor commercialspace to an independentnon-profitsenior
' centeron terms consistentwith those describedabove. In the event that Developer is not


._,...-"':able'_tolocate an interestedindependentnon-pro?t senior center, the City may locate and
--""pr,o't/idlepotentialapplicantsfor consideration. In the event that Developerdoes not enter


"I leaseon mutually agreeableterms with an independentnon-pro?t senior center,
,.-"Devel'5per§will notbe permitted to use the ground ?oor space for the Leasing Office or


R:es»icl'<=:r1_t,iva.l-"'A'irier'iit_ySpace, but may lease such space for other commercial uses
"perrnitt:ed"hereb'g'i'-a_i_id.bythe MCMC. In the event the senior center use commencesand
discotitinue§"bjyl1ie‘seniorcenter terminatingthe lease as a result of Developer’sdefault
thereunder,.Develojpé1?7salldiscontinueits use of the ground ?oor for a Leasing Of?ce
and Residential Space no later than six (6) months from the date the senior
center dis6opti?ue,s"'op_erationsand terminatesthe lease. The six "(6)months may be
extended by agreement of the City if the Developer is actively seeking a
replacement:seniorcéntert_‘;'enan_t.--..lnno event shall a casualty or condemnationor other
interruptionof iusel-hy_a"seiiiorfeen'tertenant for any other reason other than Developer’s
default under it§\ntIittén,lease_.xvithsuch tenant in any way diminishDeveloper’srights to
use the other ground-?oor-corm?ercialspace as a LeasingOf?ce or ResidentialAmenity
Space or such 0tllCi".-Cé:).¥l’lfl:l'BI3&:§lalrisesas_may be permitted hereunder and under the
MCMC. “'.


O
5.,‘


10.0 Transportation and Trafhcgequinements
_--


I


10.1 City and County System°"'lihpact‘-MitigationReguirements. Traf?c
impacts and mitigation fees will be analyzed cléterrfiinedby the Developer, City and
SnohomishCounty throughthe City’s SEPA‘and_'_cl_eyelbprnientreview process and in accordance
withthe EngineeringStudy per Section8.2.


"


_ ‘Io
‘.-


10.2 Constructionof 132"“Street SE Im _"ts. ,:lDevelopershall construct or pay
to construct all 132"dStreet SE frontage and related_a<":ce"ss__pdj.ntimprovementsrequiredby the
Washington State Department of Transportationand'the'E1:igi?eerj__rig"-Studyper Section8.2. The
design, construction, and operation of the improvements _,are:.-s;i1bje_°:‘_ct,tothe review and approval
of the Washington StateDepartmentof Transportation.


- 10.3 Dedicationof Road Right-of-Way. In accordance Chapter 16.14,
Developer shall dedicateor cause to be dedicated to the City the..fiill°vsgidtl._1.o‘f'-thepublic Right-
of«Way depicted in Exhibit C as “Road A” and “Road B” as siiqh--vif,idths_.'a?d'-alignmentsare
contemplated in the Engineering Study, except to the extent deviations_are"p.ei'n1ittec_lby-Section
8.2. Dedicationshall be completed either by (i) showing the dedicatiti'r_i..o'iit_l1e"face"_ofthe BSP
for the Project; or (ii) by separate dedicationdeed or easement approved.a'ri__d-acceptedby City
before the BSP is released for recording. Developer is solely responsibljé f_c_)ir'jrie'g'<'$'t'iia£tingall
necessary legal interestsfrom underlyingproperty owners of the public Riglitl'of«-'W,a3f.;iiij2otherto
accomplishthe requireddedication. 5 ’


" "


.u
u


.1


BS 15-65DevelopmentAgreement t_-_’
_-t'.'4'’ J.


_ ...
1
a


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 36 of 111







--...
ll


On-SiteRoad Construction. Developershall design and construct the full width
""""o1:_thé:_publicroadway improvementson the property dedicatedpursuant to Section 10.3 ("Road


" --"C'9ns"crue?on").The Road Construction shall comply with all applicable EGUV Regulations,
ihcludiftgbutnot limited to MCMC Chapter 16.16,the current version of the Mill Creek Design
«':11‘i'<i__...t","or1’_st-1’1_1.g:._t‘i_onStandard Plans, Design Guidelines, and the EngineeringStudy. The Road
Cc'§n_s__trt_i_cti’6nshallinclude the (i) full width of the street and sidewalkcross section;(ii) on-street
parkingas"apiiro\}ed__City; (iii) street and pedestrian lighting;(iv) storrnwater and drainage
facilitiesf-(-V)"s_1_:ré{a'_t"tr"ees‘(gratesand lightingconduit), landscapingand street furnishings;and
(vi) sighage-aIi'_d-sh‘ipirig."-:ff.'....


11.0 Par:ltii1"g...l_{_e<1'1'1i__1'\e_1_r}Jei‘i§tl'>.'.":.


11.1 Parkingshall be provided consistentwith the requirements
establishedin MCF.°{l_(;€ha15te_r171,77.


11.2 Reci ro‘cal;1?.arkin" t for CommercialS ace Parkin Stalls. Theuni?ed
and mixed-usenature oi‘~the.E‘Q,U'Vis-designedto encourage pedestrian activityand discourage
internalvehicletrips.The Developershall--granta reciprocalparking covenant approvedby City
for the parking servingthe P'r~ojeet’§'coThmérciallydesignatedparking stalls to the other
commerciallydevelopedpropei§ties:'_§}_vitlfm_?ie_that provide an equivalent reciprocal
agreement. Theparkingcovena‘r'1tj;shal,l..b'§';'.sliE>v_\_r_n-onthe face of the BSP.


11.3 Use of Commercial Pé'irl_<in'g"'Facilities,.~*De'veloperwillactivelymanage the use of
parking, as approvedby the Hearing Examiner i_n.the1_3_i.ndir1gSite Plan, to ensure the stalls


1


requiredto be availablefor commercialuses,.Willnotbe__i'ised}by residents,guests, and staff of the
Project’sresidentialunits during the operatingho'_lu[s.of'the.Project’scommercialbusinesses.
The Hearing Examinermay requireas a condition'of_appi:o..va_lof the BSP a parkingmanagement
plan that providesan enforceablemethodof requ°i’ri‘iig.-résidepts;,their guests, and employeesto
park only in areas dedicatedto serving the residentialprrf?orioftheProject. Use of the parking
stalls dedicatedto support the commercialuses shall-,_be"Iti'an_agé,d..to_ensurethe spaces directly
adjacent to commercialuses will be availablefor customefs;-'ahci_npti1sedby staff and owners of
the commercialbusinesses. Developer will update the parkingmahagementplan as necessary to


ensure the parking stalls reservedfor the customers, inx-'ite:e_s2in'd~.gué‘:s':ts°f5feommercialground
?oor tenants remain available to such customers, invitees arid°-guests’:


u
u 5.


12.0 Plazas, Public Gathering Areas, and Public Access
Ir


12.] Required. Plazas and public gathering places shall be_'_'°p_r_ovi:de'iialongthe public
roadway of the Project pursuant to MCMC Chapter 17.19 and the DesignGuidelines.Plazas
shall incorporate informal public seating areas, sidewalks, and othe‘r._..p1'1'hlit"spaceson the
Property consistent with the EGUV Illustrative Plan, Design Guidelines;j:and*'CorhpiFehensive
Plan. Plazas and public gathering spaces are subject to review and approvalof Dfesign
Review Boardprior to the issuanceof a building permit. ‘-.,_


H ‘I '


‘u... '-5 -' , ' .
I xi J":.


BS 15-65Development Agreement
0'


-


1>a:g_‘g"c_,9,.cf
"_2'_-,0?‘-'. .


n’ o'.._..- - ..


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 37 of 111







:'°


5": Plazasand Public Gathering Areas Infrastructureand Furnishings. The Developcr
°"“"'§hal.l-"d_esjgn,obtain and install infrastructure and furnishingsin Plazas,subject to provisions of


-v--tiie.,D'esig'i1,Guidelinesand MCMC Chapter 17.34. Plaza designand furnishings are subject to
_,..révi_ew':_andapprovalof the Mill Creek Design Review Board. Maintenanceand replacement of
.,..ir1f!”_%1Sti‘ur~,__trri:e”;a.ndfurnishingsshallbe the responsibilityof Developer.


,.-"12.-3"") Developer shall grant a public access easement allowingpublic
accessitoi-ever_aI;d‘across-.tl1eroadway buffer and perimeter trail as well as through the private
drive eiis1es.an‘g'1.sidewa]ks_f_to_allowpublic access from the public roadway to the perimetertrail
as containe,d-"o'n__the‘-ap13r6v¢d'~-asp.All public access easements, locations, and types shall be
describedai1cl~s"hc>__\2vr1"c>1_.1\tl_1jéface’-ofthe BSP.


13.0 Mainteil-alic:e_-Responsibilities
13.1 DeveloperRespipnsiibilitiveszDeveloperand its assigns shall be responsiblefor the


following ongoingmaint€nancé'-obligations:(i) oversee and coordinatethe use and maintenance
of, and activities and events?-li’eld'o_n-‘theprivately-owned open spaces within the EGUV; (ii)
maintain improvementsin thep,ub1'ic:_'fl'ght-of-wayin accordancewith MCMC Chapters 12.06
and 17.24, including the public,-ri“g'ht-'1of7wayareabetween the street curbs and property lines:
sidewalks, plazas and open sp=§1ceS;"§;2fn‘opies,_,.all‘landscapingincluding tree grates, trash cans
includingdaily servicing, bencHes,_aiid_,_a-ll::out'dooi"?imiture,(iii) maintain the Property; and (iv)
maintainall drainage facilities on theifropertvoutsidethepublicright-of-way.


13.1.1 Multiple Owners’.To the"extent_there,_aremultiple owners of the Property
(e.g., commercialunits are operated fur-rd'er__sep'ar§'tteqiwnershipfrom residentialuses), the
multiple owners shall designate a single:j_’cor_itat':'tfor‘the City to address enforcementof
Section 13.1 of this Agreement. TheIiiiiltip1e_:__o3,vnersare encouraged to enter into
maintenance and cost sharing agreementsfihat__§gu'itablydistribute the cost of the
obligations in Section 13.1. However, nptwithstandingany agreement between the
multipleowners, all owners of the Property ’s.hal-1-'1"e'm,a-i'_i_1_,j.Q1',ntlyand severalty responsible
to the City for compliancewith Section 13.1 ofthis'A'g‘reep3ei1.t.


13.2 City Responsibilities. City shall be respc>:nsil_)le"-t_‘_or"thefollowing ongoing
maintenance obligations within the publicly—ownedright-of=way5'§;xcep_t.as'notedin Section 13.1:
streets, pavement, curbs, gutters, structural sidewalk repairs, 1_ighting,_.ofi~streetparking, raised
crosswalks,street signage, channelization,and drainage facilitie’s....,."""


.r' .
g‘. ".0 _.
s_.~ ,.v


14.0 Transfer of Property


14.] Authoriggto Transfer. Developer's right to sell, transfer:--mortgage,‘113'/pothecate,
convey or take any other similar action regarding the title to or financing fort'l1ej_'Proji'e"rt-yshall
not be infringedby this Agreement, providedany such transfer, sale, etc. shall__besubjejct the
terms, conditions, rights, duties and obligations of all developmentapprovals{pei';t§iniiig_.t'o_.the
Property, and speci?cally including this Agreement, the MDP, and Prcijegt_:j-.,/3.-p'j)


rr'i'va,l;s,,__


BS 15-65 DevelopmentAgreement Page1g.ot"2_9..‘-
.1’ v.’. ,', ..


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 38 of 111







'.
'1


'5


_l_1e\'5elope'r'andany subsequent transferorshall give actual notice and copies to the transferee of
a1_l__de"_velo_pmentapprovals and related documents.


Obli ations of Successors. This Agreement, the MDP, all Project Approvalsand
- *-.I9"e__vel‘oper"phligationsshall be binding on all subsequent owners, purchasers, lessees, lessors,


tei_1arits,_'_a1idt_:rarist_"ereesof every nature of the Property.


15.0 §=.._Eisfo'rceni:e?t'Aiitl1prity;Police Power; Penalties


15.1--""EnfofqeinentAiithorigg.City may enforcethis Agreement, the BSP, theMDP, the
ProjectApproi?al§,,-ahd_\:a.l_L':.-c_giE'}e'1""_relatedapprovalsfor developmentof the Property, in whole or
in part, in any nianpef'a_lleiive__<l"oylaw and this Agreement. Developerand every future property
owner shall be ‘?lly.-resppnjsgiblefor compliance with and full and complete performance of the
foregoing. ‘.3


15.2 Police P-iovsgrer;-._Except-totheextent necessary to comply withRCW 36.70B.170et
seq., the limitations o1°~whie‘3l_1,-shall--'expircat the end of the Vested Term, nothing in this
Agreement shall limit, waive__or"'rel:,_e'a'§e,,or be construed to limit, waive or release, City's
municipal duties, responsibili?es'"6r-Zfnfoicementauthority of any kind, including its police
power authority and its condérnngéitr?on"'authority,‘:yvhetherarising under the MCMC, state or
federallaw, Washingtonconstitiiti_t9n,_pr-any'other"sourceof lawfulauthority.


15.3 Penalties. Without foregoing‘-subsections,the City may take any or
all of the following enforcement actions, and mayin_1ppse"anyor all of the following penalties
for failure to comply with this Agreement: 5 ’


15.3.1 Stopaction on any pendingpehpits°'or_'_apg'£ovalsby Developeror a relatedentity.


15.3.2 Stopaction on any pendingpermits pertainingto the Property.


15.3.3 Withholdcertificates of occupancy


15.3.4 Require cash deposits or other security._.ti:1"'ensiir:e.-"futureperformance and
compliance.


a’ '0
n-'- ‘.


16.0 Conflicts; Dispute Resolution
'


16.1 Con?icts. In the event of an internal con?ict of terms and
conditions of this Agreement or between this Agreement and any Pr6j,ec‘t.A_pprpvaljs,the most
restrictiveshallapply as determinedby City, unless City and Developer‘agrée_.othei_-_wise._


16.2 Disputes. In the event of a dispute between the Parties ab<')"i1t"'t.:li’e_';1,p1'52'_|
i_§zat.ijon


or
interpretationof this Agreement, principals for City and Developer shall p1’g1n’p_t_ly"rn,eét_.and
attempt to resolve the issue. If that is not successful,the Parties shall promp?y,__appi_y'f,.f6r
schedulea mediationusing JAMS, WAMS, JDR or a similarmediationservice. Each-Party-'s_l_aall


BS 15-65Development Agreement
-F..


_.a' v."


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 39 of 111







-I
'2


n-


;_' %ay' costs and expenses and one-half the mediator's cost. If that is not sueeess?il,
,.~' .


e,v-e'I:ope_rshall request an official interpretationfrom the Directorof Communityand Economic
‘------------Developnientpursuant to MCMC Sections l4.09.0l0(A)(7) or (8). Developer may appealsaid


__..-interpretaticinas providedin theMCMC.


Termination


Modi?ea?on.This Agreement may be modi?ed only upon mutualconsent of the
Mill Creek.Gity-Coune§l‘afid.Developer.EitherPartymay seek a modificationby givingwritten
notice thereoft9,.~the-j-‘6t}ier__P2i1jty.No Party is obligated to agree to any modi?cation of this
Agreementim"'Mgditie_atigi51‘I}f'l*l'ayrequire compliance with the public notice and hearing
requirementsof'RCW"3t5}'70"B:2?Cet seq. or other applicablelaws then in effect.


17.2 Ter'r'r'1i.mfion'.'"This~.Agreementmay not be terminatedexcept upon mutual consent
of the Mill CreekCity_Cour?5iland}Developeror order of a court havingcompetent jurisdiction.


17.3 Continua‘tion_..3-AfterVested Term, this Agreement shall continue in whole as
an applicable developrnent_.-regulation"'f‘or_the Property, provided that City may change, and
Developer may request chazige'§""iri;"'_all"';or any portion of the Agreement or land use
characteristicsof the Propertyixin;j§eeo'fd@ee,..vtiith,then~applicablerules for making land use
changes. '*;;.. _ .-. .


,.l- J;


18.0 Authority to Approve Agreement...’" 2


18.1 By executing thisAgreement,e'ach,Barty_.'repfesentsand warrants that it has taken
all necessary steps under its corporate autliQ‘rit)'£_'and/oiapplicablecity or state law to authorize
such act, and that its execution of this Agreementisvoluntary, made upon consultation
with legal counsel, and is valid and binding for al1“‘pii_l:p'os_e_s,,__"


18.2 In the case of City, the Mill Creek has__foundthat this Agreement is
o ".


in the public interestand furthers the public health,safety‘§1'iid'\_ly_el_fa'r'e,all as set forth in Council
Ordinance 2015-798. 5-‘ .3‘ 5


19.0 General Terms


19.1 Integration. This Agreement constitutesthe entire.ra:g‘i°e"errrer'_i:L-b'et_weenthe Parties
as to the subject matter herein. No prior oral or written agreenients:re§pe_gtiiig.,%sameshall be
valid, andany such agreements shall be consideredto be merged andusubstifiiedhex'_ej_r_1.


19.2 Consent and Waiver. Developer acknowledgesand ag1'<3;es-tliat"éons{ructionand
dedication of the public ROW, public pedestrian easement dedications,ere'atign'f6f"publieopen
space areas (together with furnishings and infrastructure),and other Developer,act;i_'6_:ns"jisted
above (i) constitute lawful and appropriatededicationsand/or uses of land underit-.l,es
14 — 13 and applicablestate law, speci?cally includingbut not limited to Mcl\z}<.:,_l,_z_i,‘a_i;;22't>


(l.>;=),,_MCMC 18.04.220(D),RCW Chapter 43.21C, RCW Chapter 58.17, and RCW Chapter §,6:'7_(_9B;2
u'


u


'


BS 15-65 DevelopmentAgreement


I
a


Page_.?,-o'f'é-_05
,-'. _.". .


I" '


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 40 of 111







I
1'


u


I.
's. _


I’. '


(ii-)"£r1eet"ei'nd/orsatisfythe requirements,obligationsand scope of actions set forth in said laws,
"“""an_d/o'i'__.h_avebeen made by the voluntary act of Developer for its bene?t and to enhance the


--"'s'i_i,<:cé§soitheProject; and (iii) are binding on Developer.
a‘ \.


__,..--”'"l’9..3f____‘}/enue.Venue for all disputes arising under or connectedwith this Agreement
_l_’,r<_>'jecfApprovalsshall be in the Superior Court for Snohomish County. This Agreement
and'th_,é1’__roj'e"t_3_tApprovalsshallbe governedand interpretedin accordancewith Washington law.


'2"19.4L-":§Ji5iectiv§’:"F}”a:'t§:The effective date of this Agreement shall be October 16, 2015
(nEffective:Dat§l}-):."*,._;f,.-


.._,.
J"


J


19.5 tiovenanifil-{Eu_"r1gwith Land. From and after the Effective Date, this Agreement
shall be a covei'ia1'it_‘rii-rii1ir_1g"_i}_i,r_i_t_lpthe Property and/or an equitableservitudeon the Property, and
shall be binding t_he'__Par"tiesandtheir successors and assigns,and on all subsequent owners,
purchasers, lessees"or,-Iessc'r's','‘_ten_iants,_,transferees,and transferors of every nature as set forth
herein.


19.6 Authority. 17h'é:"parti.e.:-s__'ié'a'chrepresent and warrant that they have full power and
actual authority to enter inth-this"'A‘grI_eementand__carryout all actions required of them by this
Agreement. All persons executing:_thi§'Agreementin their representativecapacities represent
and warrant that they have fullpowera_nd‘.autho_ri-ty'to bind their respective organizations.


19.7 Responsibiliy. Devr;1_o_per'.isresponsible‘-._forcompliance with this Agreement.
Any act or omission required of orpern1itt_e_,cl~"by._l,)ev‘eloperhereunder may be taken by
Developer's authorized agents, contractors __or"employees,_E>utDeveloper shall not thereby be
relievedof its responsibilityor liability to 1r1'1_'g'l__e_:_r.t-lii'sAgreement.


19.8 Attomevs Fees. in any action.a"fi§ii:i.g"'in_1_d_,e_r"'c:;rrelated to this Agreement, the
prevailingParty shall be entitled to be paid its reasga'na,ble_attor_.i1ey’sfees, expenses and costs by
the non-prevailing Party, whether in arbitration, at:__uial;'°on--appeal,bankruptcy proceeding, or
other legal action.


'


""""""" "'-


19.9 Third Parties. This Agreement is entered§i_nt<§i'-fcr.th§:.s6lebenefit of the Parties.
There are no third party bene?ciariesto this Agreement.


19.10 Severability. If any section, sentence, clause.:cr._._.p'<‘)'r'ti._9rr'_'g':)
t"‘tl=a__is


Agreement is
declaredunlaw?il or unconstitutionalfor any reason, the Parties intenclithéitth_.e."‘rerr1ainderof this
Agreement shall continue in full force and effect. ,--"' ‘


.1a
.1


BS 1565 DevelopmentAgreement Pa2?1.;~of'iio5
1'.


I. I.I ‘.


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 41 of 111







4.’.


The following exhibitsare attachedand incorporated into this Agreement by this
~~.;sf§_re?5e__a$'t]}ough?illy set forth herein:


‘' '.--°"'“_Ex§1ibitA_:_Property Legal Descriptions
E;{_hibif'B:Tax ParcelMap


"-~....-*'_]_3x}"1ibit(_'f.‘,':--'.'.'_",,___Conceptua.1Mapof BindingSite Plan(BS 15-65)
__ EngineeringStudy


o' _'
_.' .- ,.---—--..


: ,‘ 0’ .


t = " .'
u_' . ,,,.-‘ ... '


' I’ IA ' '--~ -- -. _.- ., ' .
u


’
'. o


K
‘I.


APPROVEDAS TO FORM: AS TO FORM:
_
ShaneMoloney City Attorney .:_.- _


Attorney-i:6r"' "


/.— -' ,


RobertJ.M_. "


___. -'


.~\..'__ ‘I’.
0." _-:
-_ .n .-5...__.


.___
.- ‘r-._


:..
—I'.H‘. .0


'
.


-, _.
'-...._..: I _.- ' ' '


': °


.4’ _- I


." _."


:_'
I


BS 15-65DevelopmentAgreement Page.'1'2i'.o.f»2'O


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 42 of 111







'_.


‘:§:.,20_§_tl:"'"Ex?iyits


I. follgyvingexhibitsare attachedand incorporated into this Agreement by this
referenceas-'tl1<.),vJgl'i"ft'illy"s.§_:tforth herein:


_.
'P=ropertyLegalDescriptions


_l3:_f.7"§7'i"a>_<Parcel Map -


;.13xh_n>ii'e:aje«o}1ceptua1Map of BindingSitePlan (BS I5-65)
'E~x'f1i’bit’l')_:,.-»-"::__I-3_~_GUVEngineeringStudy


a‘.


City of Min Creek;
~


Developer: Vintage at Mill Creek, LP


ccccc9. _.- Vintage at Mill Creek Partners, LLC
_-. ____..-Its:General Partner


Rebecca Polizzotto, City Manager
0%‘


'
”


..By= “M V‘
MichaelK. Gancar, Manager


ATTEST:


Kelly M. Chelin,City Clerk
'1'------------:23-.'."'‘cu-Q


APPROVED AS TO FORM: API>Ro"T.\_(?i3--a§'”r;j
(").~1=‘QRM:


Shane Moloney City Attorney
Attorney for


Owner:


RobertJ. Mollgaard
P.


BS 15-65DevelopmentAgreement ’


Page l'4._Qf


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 43 of 111







2 -''_.3e,notarypublic or other officer completing this certi?cate verifies only the identity


«and not the truthfulness, accurac .or validit of that document.


4"
,I’


« 'of.theindividualwho signed the document to which this certi?cate is attached,


u".
I


" Acknowledgment


{sTi9LIE'bjB_jicAL1‘Fo1_2NIA)
//_


_‘
"on.


''-.__.-':I''..'..3:-'._.._.'a.''“
H


I


) SS.


Co1J}.~iTY_pF~<;31?cANGE._.)
_4-' o


C‘ u
'.


'. .
u - ,- w


' "1'..' N.‘\..’.'.‘..
s s


O '.I,2 _. _,.------...


On October l5,"‘2°i)_}5before DebraLyn Scharf,Notary Public, personally appeared
MichaelGancar, v{(ho*'p_roved,.t'o”m&qr_ithe basis of satisfactoryevidence to be the person
whosename is sub's"o:.1;i.];;§;_'Cltc_2./cliegrithininstrumentand acknowledged to me that he
executedthe same in hisaiithoriied-capacity,and thatby his signatureon the instrument
the person, or the entity11p0::i‘l-'beha'_:if-;OfYVhiChthe person acted,executedthe instrument.


I
1


I certify under PENALTY ?nder the laws of the State of Californiathat
the foregoingparagraph is true correct. -‘J


' new LYNscum
WITNESSmy hand and official seal. *3. :‘ C°mmlS$|°" * ‘-993333


‘~._ ------' __ Notary Public- California
' _, Orange county


M Comm.ExpiresDec9.2016


Signature ., ouo q.


NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the StateofCalifomia,5:
residing at Newport Beach, Ca. __.
My CommissionExpires 12/09/2016


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 44 of 111







' “oftheindividualwho signed the document to whichthis certi?cate is attached,
_ andnotthe truthfulness.accurac , or validit of that document.


,a


J’
,-


,f,.


"A-notarypublicor other officer completing this certi?cate veri?es only the identity


n" ..
,9‘ __...---s.__


""""':s’r"gt~1'E“tJ1='::cALi_i3_c.>1zNIA)
:_I - _,',._°'°


'


'-._ ) SS.


co.u1s1-11.01?oigziificiig )


On August 4, 1,6'i§ef6reni'e,_DebraLyn Scharf,Notary Public, personallyappeared
MichaelK. Gan'car;"wh6"13f_ovc7.Idto inc on the basisof satisfactoryevidenceto be the
personésa-whose né.rné€s),_isfaréfsu1;isc_rfbedto the withininstrumentandacknowledgedto
me that helshe#?aey“ex.e.cLtterdthe_sainein hisillaesiltlaeiieauthorizedcapacityéiesa; and that
by hiS signatureés) _9n"fhe_'i?3tr_umentthe persona); or the entity upon behalf of
whichthe personfs)-acted;éxecutt.{§tthe‘instmn1ent.


L
‘\ ..


s.
.9


9


o‘


I certifyunder PENALTYor under t_he’I'a_§_2vsof the State of Californiathat
the foregoingparagraph is true anifcorrect.


._.


'5 DEBRALYNSCHARF
commission# 1998322


2
Notary Public- California §


Orange County -


M comm.ExpiresDec9.2016


WITNESSmy hand and official seal.


......c_


NOTARYPUBLIC in and for the State of California,
residingat Newport Beach,Ca.
My CommissionExpires 12/09/2016 _,


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 45 of 111







~


‘Q1?WASHINGTON


I
r


o


’I.I
)


.1.» ......g. ) 33;


QFSNOHOMISH )


‘T: I know or have satisfactoryevidencethat RebeccaPolizzottois the person
whoa§pear'éd})e£'orern_e_,_andhe acknowledgedthat she signedthis instxurnent,on oathstated .


that w‘as-aut_h,o3jiz"e‘dtoexecutethe instrumentand acknowledged it as the City Manager, of
City of Mill-C_r_ee’k,_.to and voluntary act of such party for the uses and purposes
mentionedjn'th.i,s-ihs?rhrnent::3-=__


.»‘


DA-Ejii:’1a,.:"'f:, 2015.


(4....
l


- -:.'.~.._'..:5‘~PrintN M 42!
_


' NOTARY PUBLICin and for the state of
:_' Washington,residin at:


6E4~e~:: pa’:


STATE_OF ,.
.-"


COUNTYOF ),.


I certify that I know orhavc satisfactoryevid‘en9é"tha‘t
is the person who appeared before me, ahd"s/h"e.a<:_l:mowledgedthat s/he signed this


instrument, on oath stated that s/he was authorizedt6‘exe'c§itfét_1'Le._iri'stmmentand acknowledged
it as the , of Vintage at Mill Criéekg-"LL(’,jbe the free and voluntary
act of suchparty for the uses and purposesmentionedin thisi‘nstru1n§nt:'


0-’ u"-


DATED: ,2o15. " _


.'-s..


Print Name: ' I; .-=
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for-th_estate,df
Washington,residing at:


" "


My Appointment Expires:


.-- ._


35 15-65 DevelopmentAgreement Page1_§.<sf’°§o5'
-r. .


.1’ -."_.


,I


‘J


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 46 of 111







~.QF WASHINGTON


I
r


u -n.- o


3’
,0


‘F


)
) ss:


QFSNOHOMISH )


:’,: personally appearedbeforeme Robert J. Mollgaard , to me known
to Bet:Yie__indi\}}du_'alde.§:_c_:_rjbedin and who executedthe withinand foregoinginstrument,and
acknoiwléd-géd__thi§t'1'1‘e"'sig?edthe same as his free and voluntaryact and deed, for the uses and
purpos'es-thercfgin-ii1ent_i§§i§§_Ei...,_.


D4!-\.:£E1D"§_:'-'.-&r,2o15.


.- Print am WP
'


NOTARYP BLIC in and fort e state of
-


' Washington,residingat:
'


"""" " -'IT‘''';;My ?ppoinmlcntExpires: -I *'


------q.


u .0 .u‘
° ' u .o u - ' ° _, ' .


o" ‘s..
:' -‘
'-go‘


"can't .- .4‘.,. _.r.
'-._‘ _- _


,' -' '-
:


C 3'-_ .r .-x.


_.
-..


_.
I.’.


-~- -
____


~-
.'


." F’.
I.
;


“


.__ _.._ ._ In
.‘ I, .. .


I I
'


K... - -"


I.-
‘O


BS 15-65 DevelopmentAgreement


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 47 of 111







Exl1ibitA


" Property Legal Description


.-"*2 .


THE‘1~;Or§THEAsT,Q_UA‘RTE'R6'E_THENORTHEASTQUARTEROF THENORTHWESTQUARTEROF SECTION33,
TOwNsI1y_=_,2a«NORTH,Rz{NGE_js__EAsT,w.M.,IN SNOHOMISHCOUNTY,WASHINGTON;


EXCEPTTHE'EA$TERLi'3§3éEEE[__.§s_,_MEAsUREDALONGTHENORTHERLYLINEOF sAID NORTHEASTQUARTER
OFTHENOR1FHBA§I-QUARTEROE-THENORTHWESTQUARTER;


..' ,.-' \''__.-'"'h._‘L..'_.''


EXCEPTTHATP‘OR1‘It5N_,cOiu\/_E¥EDTO sNOHoM1sHCOUNTYBYQUITCLAIMDEEDRECORDEDUNDER
AUDITOR'SHLEN0_‘.21'96..4.17:..........
EXCEPTTHATRORT{O'N(.Z{§:N\[E‘?”é'l'5_iTO:‘fHECOUNTYOF sNoHoMIsH,STATE OF WASHINGTONFOR ROAD
PURPOSETHROUGHDEEDRE_(_‘._Q_RDEl_)_MA§3_C~[j23-,1992 UNDERRECORDINGNo. 9203270215,RE RECORDED
av DEEDRECORDEDJUNE3,199;;UNDERREEORDINGNo. 9205030420.


_z .
‘,0 I


..
‘ _.- -5:........._. .


'.
‘ ...._.


I


In. I,
'|


.- as _;
‘


..
'5. ca "-


'3'
' 4-' .1-


’
n


u


I_- ‘Jay
-


o -' _.r


.
' n


o 1, .
0 .. I. .


:. J.
-


_ o


5‘
..


‘
.


I ..II


'0 .-'
o


-.0 —l
..


.
I


' '..
- .‘


.0 o .
; .
' I_ _.


.' “


'5. - ‘-- .......,_....
I
2 c


'. u, n‘ ‘I
0. ‘,-


'0o
'5 n-' u


' ‘
I I - - - —‘ .’ —


. °\
0 '..-


01,: o.,,.. .. ,4. ‘u.
r _-I o ,'. ,r ',,
'5 ‘u .0 _


‘~_- . -,.
u 3


1. ,--. .-\ ..
u.._u..


‘_ I.
n


1,.
o’. ,-


_o ,I. ____
-._


I I
o '


..
.- "' .'


I
2
'5 '-_u '1. '-'"1 ,.o _


"-.. -" ‘_.
a’ _..,. 0.


- .
4 ,- I


r’ a'. .


BS 15-65 Development Agreement Pag’_'é"1_Z.of'§O:‘.-


.
.__J


_r.. .,..- -


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 48 of 111







\


ExhibitD
>


EGUV Engineering Study
‘- .


0' ‘-5
.-' .‘. .
, .
‘.0,.


.- --5.


J" a .
, _ .-'-~»_ :_.


J g
‘


,' --
I U‘


4 u
-I -'


' e..
I.‘


.'nt--isgfayailablefor review on the City’s web site at:
o ‘I. .‘ .. .-


' V‘ .0’ \._ ‘\._ .'::-.,.~...-hit}?//,eify.e?nil1creek.com/DocumentCenter/
View/77


_o-‘
e


If Zhn}-d e_op_y,please contact the City Clerk.
- ‘J "v ". .‘
"s I ". '


I‘
" -.......-' , '°


n" _
'0 I’. __:


'.
lg . ._.
I.


*-n.. _ 5


.‘ '-.. _ _.r
"-A, _,..,__ -_.


J"
J
. .


' .P _.P
-,.. - ,.r° ‘-


1


‘P


0.0


.0‘ . '


:. J.
'5
‘I -----0


'


‘I .-.
-I. 4-..
I


° -..
I


$


1 .' .. .
2 ,'
2 ,-


- _-
' n


O. I


"""""""""""
‘I I, ......._.


'..
X.
: o._ ,_
-, '.


,.
- I -.


G\9LmNme\ww3mnme smammzsmmaaaATmu. CREEK(vuo Iwoos) as IS-65\DEVELOPMEN‘l'Aemelg?smmvé?orligsm (MILLcases
REVISIONS10.01.15)Docx 5 .--' .,,_.


I
O‘ I


I .'-, .-s..


'5'. ' n e
-' :


I
‘ F. -.,.


|. -
‘,-


ul ‘


I’ _n'-
’.-I O


I 1


.‘ 4-.. .
O


I
: 0


5 .__._-\. I-.
~ I _F.


M ". " -’ u
K" ..v '


BS I5-65 DevelopmentAgreement


.__.v'


Pa'g';-_é"';_
(_),.c»'1»“"2'_'_ct-5'


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 49 of 111







‘ Attachment4


c IT Y.0 F
»‘ ,,2..


M111 eek Agenda Item L
W A S H I N G T O N Meeting Date: Jan. 23, 2018


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: SENIOR CENTER UPDATE


PROPOSED MOTION:
N/A


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:
WhenRyan Patterson, the developerof Vintage at Mill Creek, agreed to terms with the City in
2015, he agreed to provide a rent-free space for the Senior Center at 4111 133rdPlace SE in Mill
Creek. The Development Agreement signed with the City required Vintage at Mill Creek to
providewalls, ?ooring, utility outlets, paint, door and trim for the space.


The Mill Creek Senior Center (also known as the Northshore Senior Center) currently utilizes
space in City Hall North. The lease provides2,362-square-feetof space on the building’s second
?oor for free, a valueof $42,500 annually. In addition, the Senior Center is provided access to
other facility space for programming needs, depending on availability based on City operational
needs.The new Senior Center space at Vintage is a 2,800-square-foot modern and diverse space
to accommodatethe Senior Center’s activities.


The developer has gone well above and beyond the Development Agreement in providing
serviceto the Senior Center. At his own cost, the developerprovided a full kitchen, which
includes an oven, sinks, dishwasher, microwave, pantry and barcounter. A dining space is
adjacent to a large, versatile space that can be separated into two classroomsor opened up into a
grand room for bigger events. The space also features a computer room, social worker’s of?ce,
manager’s of?ce, two bathrooms, welcoming reception area, and ample closet space.


The buildout has cost the developer upward of $200,000. Further, the market value of the
ground-?oor space, which otherwise would be used for retail space, has a value of more than
$60,000 armually. The developer has voluntarily made the decision to invest in the community,
and has noted that the Senior Center can remain in the space as long as they desire.


On November 13, Mill Creek Senior Center staff, board members, and members visited the new
Senior Center space at Vintage. Following the hard-hat tour of the space, which was still under
construction,Senior Center staff expresseddisappointmentin the amount of space and design
elementsprovided to the Senior Center. They also shared concerns about limited access to some
of the features at the property.


A Senior Center staff member addressed the City Council on November 14 in the public
comment portion of the meeting. She noted the space was small, but they had been looking
forward to using other amenity space at Vintage, including a gym, media room, community
kitchen and other areas. She noted that those amenities had been moved upstairs and were no


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 50 of 111







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 2


longer available to the Senior Center. As a result, the staff member noted, they would have to
cancel severaldozen classes that they have regularly offered to members. While some of those
amenitieshad indeed moved as allowedby the DevelopmentAgreement, Senior Center users
touredand still will be able to use other Vintage amenities, including the ?tness center, a hair
salon, and an outdoorpatio/garden area. Further, the designated Senior Center space at Vintage
is larger than the existing designated space in City Hall North.


Following the Senior Center’s feedback, the City met with the developer, Northshore Senior
Center CEO Brooke Knight, and a Northshore Senior Center board member to understand
concerns and build consensus among all parties. As part of that discussion and further
demonstratingits commitment to the Senior Center, the City relinquished 500 square feet of
space that would have been a new Police precinct. The space will now serve as a bonus room for
the Senior Center and includesan additionalsink/counterarea.


A grand opening event, also funded by Vintage, is scheduled for April 12 to show off the new
space. The community is invited to tour the new Senior Center between 11 a.m. and 2 p.m. and
learn more about its services. The developer is holding a charity event in conjunction with the
grand opening to help the Senior Center raise funds for new ?arniture, equipment and supplies.
As a non-pro?t service, the Senior Center largelyhas used second-hand furnishings. The
developer provided the Senior Center with access to his designers so they can identify and
purchase fumishings that complementthe look and style of Vintage at Mill Creek. Ms. Knight
estimatedthe furnishings will cost about $10,000, and the equipment and supplies for upgrading
some computing and telephone equipment and other needs will be about $15,000.


The developer of Vintage at Mill Creek continues to demonstrate support for the Senior Center’s
work and has come alongside its staff, board and members to create a beautiful and ?mctional
space to help the Senior Center continue providing great community services.


The City believes all partiesare satis?ed with the outcome of discussions in November.The
Senior Center is slated to relocate to the new facility in April 2018.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:
N/A


Respectfully Submitted:


Rebecca C. Polizzotto
City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #C.


Vintage Development Agreement Amendment (Bob Stowe, Interim City Manager... Page 51 of 111







[it


w
‘.


CITY or /—L,
/§_


Agenda Item #L
W A S H I N G T O N Meeting Date: January 22, 2019


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: 2019 COMMUNITY EVENTS


PROPOSED MOTION:


Motion to approve the recommended event changes for 2019.


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


At the January 8 City Council meeting, information was provide to the Council about the City’s
proposed community events for 2019. While many of the events remain the same, there are three
changes that staff is proposing for Council consideration.


0 Mill Creek Days: Staff is proposing a new event called Mill Creek Days that will run


May 11-18. The concept is supported by Mill Creek Town Center Business Association
and additional support would be solicited from other businesses and partners. The event


will celebrate Mill Creek with various activities and events. It will start off with a
community ?tness activity in the morning on Saturday, May 11, followed by the Town
Center’s Wine and Art Walk in the evening. Other proposed activities throughout the
week include opportunities for Mill Creek’s businesses to participate, such as Health
Care Day, Finance Day and a Car Show. The City plans to conclude the weeklong event


with a parade on Saturday, May 18, called Celebrate Your Community. Local community
and cultural groups, such as the Hispanic Heritage group, will be invited to participate in
the parade. Community members will then be encouraged to close out the week by
volunteering in the Day of Hope hosted by Gold Creek Church on Saturday, May 18, and
Sunday, May 19, to support various activities throughout the community. This event is
intended to bring a sense ofcommunity and celebration to Mill Creek. Further, with the
event held during the tourism “shoulder season" (the period prior to the high tourism
season between Memorial Day and Labor Day), it doesn’t compete as much with other
events in Snohomish County and provides more opportunity for grant funding. With
these changes, the City expects to see increased community participation and increased
sponsorship from local businesses.


0 Memorial Day Events: Staff recommends solely holding a Commemorative Ceremony
on Memorial Day to remember and honor those who have made the ultimate sacrifice.
The team will research stories from Mill Creek soldiers and tell their story to the
community. A local group called Fallen Soldiers is comprised ofloved ones from local
soldiers who have fallen while serving our country will be invited to attend the ceremony.


These new aspects ofthe event will create a local connection with a more personal and
intimate event to honor the purpose of the clay. The Commemorative Ceremony will be
held on Monday, May 27, at 9 a.m. at the Veterans Monument at Library Park.


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Community Events (Joni Kirk, Director of Communications & Marketing... Page 52 of 111







City Council Agenda Summary
Page 2


Farmers Market: Staff recommends changing the Farmers Market day to Tuesdays
from 3-7 p.m. The season will rtm June 18 through August 20. Adjusting the length of the
season will help with availability of produce at the market. The earlier end date will
eliminate the competition of vendors and customers attending the Evergreen State Fair.
The new time will also open up availableparking spaces to communitymembers since
businesses will not need to save parking for their clients after they close for the day at 5
p.m. ~


Other days of the week were considered and Tuesday was the best option. Several other
markets in Snohomish County occur on Wednesday, and that day is also a con?ict for the
Summer Evening Concerts in Mill Creek. The Snohomish market occurs on Thursdays
and our market manager is responsible for that market, making it a con?ict. Feedback
from the communitypertainingto the Friday day for the market was not supportive of
continuingon Fridays. People noted that they were more inclined to get ready for the
weekend or go out for an evening, so they didn’t attendduring market hours. The local
farmers could not extend the close time any later on Friday evening since several of them
travel long distances to attend the market and they had to leave time to prepare for other
farmers markets in the County on Saturday and Sunday. The available market dates are
Monday and Tuesday.


One suggestion made during the previous Council meeting wasto partner with the Pike
Place Market for a “remote” market location.CouncilmemberJohn Steckler and staff
reached out separatelyto the market and have not received a response.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


Approve the City’s recommended event changes for 2019.


ATTACHMENTS:


N/A


' obert S. Stowe
Interim City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #D.


2019 Community Events (Joni Kirk, Director of Communications & Marketing... Page 53 of 111







H!


V


CITY OF
wt)


/\_/"-’
Agenda Item #L


W A S H I N G T O N Meeting Date: January 22, 2019


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: SUCCESSOR CONTRACT FOR PROSECUTORIAL SERVICES
WITH ZACHOR-THOMAS INCORPORATED, P.S.


PROPOSED MOTION:


Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with Zachor-Thomas Incorporated to provide
unifomi prosecution of City charges and prosecutor legal services to the City.


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


This agreement is a successor contract with Zachor-Thomas for the purpose of providing
criminal prosecutorial services to the City. During an extensive review of this contract by the
City’s Police Department and the City Attorney, several housekeeping items were identified.
Additionally, three substantive changes were made to the contract which include the following:


- The addition of asset forfeiture support to be provided by Zachor-Thomas. This includes
a $300 base rate for each case, unless such is removed to District or Superior Court, at


which point Zachor-Thomas would bill at the hour rate of $150.00 per hour.
I The addition of City representation for the prosecution of Extreme Risk Protection Orders


(ERPOS) that are filed in District or Superior Court, billed at the rate of$150.00 per
hour.


I The liability insurance maintained by Zachor—Tho1nasincreased from $1,000,000.00 to


$2,000,000.00.
The monthly retainer will be increased from $9,053 in 2018 to $9,500.00 in 2019 with a 4%
escalator in January of both 2020 and 2021. The City’s 2019-2020 Budget anticipated and
supports the proposed contract amounts.


This contract represents continuity of service for the City. The services provided to the City by
Zachor-Thomas have met expectations and the ?rm has been responsive to the needs of the
Police Department. During the term of the previous contract and in addition to standard
prosecutorial services, the firm provided training and educational opportunities to the Police
Department, supported efforts on policy review and implementation, and assisted with asset


seizure and forfeiture cases. This contract provides for that same continued support.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


Authorize the proposed contract with Zachor-Thomas Inc. for the 2019 — 2021 term to provide
uniform prosecution of City charges and prosecutor legal services to the City.


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Prosecution Services Agreement (Greg Elwin, Chief of Police) Page 54 of 111







ATTACHMENTS:


0 Attachment A: 2019-2021Zachor—Thomasprosecution servicesagreement


nterim City Manager


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Prosecution Services Agreement (Greg Elwin, Chief of Police) Page 55 of 111







AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE CITY OF MILL CREEK


AND
ZACHOR &THOMAS, Inc., 1>.s.


City Contract No. 2018-


A. PARTIES


THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the CITY OF MILL CREEK, a
municipal corporation located in Snohomish County (“City”), and Zachor & Thomas, Inc.,
P.S., ’ an independent contractor and Washington State professional services corporation
(“Zachor & Thomas”), as of the effective date indicatedbelow.


B. RECITALS


1. The City wishes to. retain a City Prosecutor on a contractual basis to provide
uniform prosecution of City charges;


2. Zachor & Thomas have demonstrated that they are capable of providing City
Prosecutor legal services to the City;


3. After review of their credentials, background and experience, Zachor & Thomas
were selected by the City to provide City Prosecutor legal services;


4. The parties wish to enter into an Agreement for Zachor & Thomas to provideCity
Prosecutor legal services.


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, and mutual bene?ts
of the Agreement, the parties agree as follows:


C. OPERATIONAL TERMS


1. Services to be provided. Zachor & Thomas will serve as City Prosecutor and
have the following duties and perform the following services:
a. Prosecution of driving under the in?uence (DUI) or Physical Control cases


charged by the City law enforcement of?cers;
b. Prosecution of domestic violence cases charged by the City law enforcement


of?cers;
c. Prosecution of other misdemeanor and gross misdemeanor cases charged by


City law enforcement of?cers;
p


d. Review of misdemeanor and gross misdemeanor cases investigated by City
law enforcement of?cers and referred to the City Prosecutor for a charging
decision;


e. Prosecution of those cases referred to the City Prosecutor for a charging
decision when the Prosecutor issues charges;


CONTRACTFOR PROFESSIONAL LEGAL SERVICES - l
(ProsecutingAttorney for the City of Mill Creek)


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Prosecution Services Agreement (Greg Elwin, Chief of Police) Page 56 of 111







f. Prosecutionof contested infractions,including case preparation,presentation
and/or negotiation of cases of cases;
Defense of the City as to contested tow cases at District Court;
RALJ appeals of criminal and infraction cases to the Superior Court or
Appellate Courts;


i. Provide legal updates and training to the City’.senforcement of?cers;
j. Provide services for the forfeiturepursuant to the felony forfeiture statute


RCW 10.105.010, the drug forfeiture statute RCW 69.50.505, the ?rearm
forfeiture statute RCW 9.41.098 and the vehicle DUI forfeiture statute RCW
46.61.5058;


k. Appear for the video jail calendar at Everett Division of the Snohomish
County District Court every week day as required;


1. Represent the Police department in the prosecution of Extreme Risk
Protection Orders that are ?led by the City in District and Superior Courts.


F'°.'°


2. Personnel Performing Services. Zachor & Thomas shall be attorneys
responsible to perform the services speci?ed in paragraph C.l. Supplemental
coverage may be provided by a similarly quali?ed and experienced attorney in
the event of Zachor & Thomas’ illness, vacation, other con?ict, or workload
considerations.


The City reserves the right to, at its sole discretion, appoint a special prosecutor
to prosecute offenses which would otherwise be covered by this Agreement.


3. Pament for Services. That in consideration for the servicesto be rendered by
Zachor & Thomas as the Prosecuting Attorney, the City agrees to pay to Zachor
& Thomasa monthly retainer in the sum of $9,500.00.


RALJ appeals of criminal and_infraction case to the Superior Court or Appellate
Courts will be billed at an hourly rate of $150.00 per hour.


Represent the City of Mill Creek in the prosecution of Extreme Risk Protection
Orders that are ?led by the City in District and Superior Courts, representation
which shall be billed at an hourly rate of $150.00.


Forfeitures, pursuant to RCW 10.105.010 (felony forfeitures) and RCW
69.50.505 (drug forfeitures), shall be billed a ?at rate of $300.00 per case, unless
such is removed to the District or Superior Court, whereupon the appellate hourly
fees shall apply. Forfeitures of ?rearms, pursuant to RCW 9.41.098, if not
resolved within an accompanying misdemeanor or gross misdemeanor, shall be
billed at the rate of $300.00 per case, unless ?led into District Court, whereupon
such shall be billed at the appellate hourly rate. DUI Vehicle forfeitures
pursuant to RCW 46.61.5058 if not resolved within an accompanying
misdemeanor or gross misdemeanor shall be billed at the appellate hourly rate.


CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL LEGAL SERVICES - 2
(ProsecutingAttorney for the City of Mill Creek)


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Prosecution Services Agreement (Greg Elwin, Chief of Police) Page 57 of 111







Services outside the scope of the duties described in paragraph C.l above, shall,
in addition to the base rate set forth herein above, be billed at the rate of $150.00
per hour.


4. Pamgent Rate Adjustment. The payment rate shall be increased each January 15‘
by 4%. This shall take into account the cost of doing business as well as the cost
of nominal ?ling increases, increase in legal research costs and malpractice
insurance. Should the ?lings exceed a 10% increase or decrease per calendar
year, the parties may renegotiate the terms of this retainer agreement.


5. Reimbursable Expenses. The City will not be charged separately for clerical or
secretarial support and the copy expenses related to the email transfer and
copying of police reports for discovery response and court use, the expense of
which has already been included in Zachor & Thomas rate of pay described in
paragraph C.3. Reimbursement above and beyond the rate of pay will be made
by the City for expenditures related to court costs and fees, parking when travel
other than to City is required on City business.


The City shall reimburse Zachor & Thomas for any reasonable out—of-pocket
expenses that may be required in the performance of its duties as Prosecuting
Attorney on behalf of the City. Expenses of witnesses, expert witnesses,
transcripts, court documents, ?ling fees, and interpreters, as may be required
from time to time, shall be the sole responsibilityof the City.


6. Ownership of Work Product. All data, materials, reports, memorandum, and
other documents developed by Zachor & Thomas under this Agreement


0


speci?cally for the City, are the property of the City, shall be forwarded to the
City at its request, and may be used by the City as the City sees ?t. Zachor &
Thomas agree to maintain all work product in accordance with records retention
schedules set by the State of Washington and the City. The City agrees that if
such data, materials, reports, memorandum, or other documents prepared by
Zachor & Thomas are used for purposes other than those intended in this
Agreement, the City does so at the City’s sole risk.


7. Work for Other Clients. Zachor & Thomas may provide services for clients
other than the City during the term of this Agreement, but will not do so where
the same may constitute a con?ict of interest unless the City, after a full
disclosure of the potential or actual con?ict, consents in writing to the
representation. Any potential con?icts ‘shallbe handled in accordance with the
Rules of Professional Conduct referred to below.


8. Rules ofProfessional Conduct. All services provided by Zachor & Thomas or
agents of Zachor & Thomas, under this Agreement will be performed in


CONTRACTFOR PROFESSIONAL LEGAL SERVICES - 3
(ProsecutingAttorney for the City of Mill Creek)


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Prosecution Services Agreement (Greg Elwin, Chief of Police) Page 58 of 111







accordance with the Rules of Professional Conduct for attorneys established by
the Washington Supreme Court.


D. INDEMNIFICATION


Zachor &-Thomas agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City, its
elected and appointed of?cials, employees and agents from and against any and all
claims, judgments or awards of damages, arising out of or resulting from Zachor &
Thomas’ negligent, illegal, or unauthorized acts, errors or omissions. The City agrees
to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend Zachor & Thomas from and against any and all
claims, judgments or awards of damages, arising out of or resulting from the negligent,
illegal or unauthorized acts, errors or omissions of the City, its elected and appointed
officials,employeesand agents.


E. LIABILITY; RELATIONSHIP; INTERPRETATION


Zachor & Thomas is an independent contractor with respect to the services to
be provided under this Agreement. The City shall not be liable for, nor obligated to pay
Zachor & Thomas, or any employees of Zachor & Thomas, retirement bene?ts, health
bene?ts; sick leave, vacation, or holiday pay; overtime pay; or any other bene?t
applicable to employees of the City. Additionally, the City shall not be obligated to pay
any social security, income tax, or other tax from the payments made to Zachor &
Thomas which may arise as a result of Zachor & Thomas performing services for the
City. The City shall not be obligated to pay industrial insurance for the services
rendered by Zachor & Thomas. No third parties shall have or claim any rights or
bene?ts arising from or under this Agreement and this Agreement shall not be
construed to create any such rights. This Agreement has been mutually negotiated and
neither party shall be considered as the drafter of this Agreement.


F. PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE
I


Zachor & Thomas shall maintain professional liability insurance throughout
the duration of this Agreement in the minimumamount of $2,000,000.00.


G. DISCRIMINATION


Zachor & Thomas agree not to discriminate against any employee or applicant
for employment or any other person in the perfonnance of this Agreement because of
race, creed, color, national origin, sex, honorably discharged veteran or military status,
sexual orientation, or the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical disability or the
use of a trained dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability is recognized
as and declared to be a civil right except where a bona ?de occupational quali?cation
exists.


CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL LEGAL SERVICES - 4
(ProsecutingAttorney for the City of Mill Creek)


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Prosecution Services Agreement (Greg Elwin, Chief of Police) Page 59 of 111







H. DURATION; TERMINATION; AMENDMENT


1. This Agreement shall commence on the 15‘day of January, 2019, and shall continue
in effect until 31“ day of December, 2021, unless terminated or amended pursuant
to this section.


This Agreement may be terminated (a) upon 60-days advance written notice ?om
either party to the other party delivered by certi?ed mail; or (b) immediately by the
Cityfor cause or by Zachor & Thomas for non-payment or failure by the City to
assist in prosecution. In the event of termination, work in progress will be
completed by Zachor & Thomas under the terms of this contract if authorized by the
City. If completion of work in progress is not authorized, Zachor & Thomas will
submit all un?nished documents, reports, or other material to the City and Zachor &
Thomas will be entitled to receive payment for any and all satisfactory work
completed prior to the effective date of termination. Zachor & Thomas will
cooperate with the City to transfer work in progress to a replacement attorney.


By mutual consent, this Agreement may be extended for an additional two year
period.


Any amendment or modi?cation to the terms, conditions or obligations of this
Agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties in the same marmer as this
Agreement.


I. DISPUTES


Any disputes regarding this Agreement shall be referred to the City Manager
(or his designee) and Zachor & Thomas, who shall work in good faith to resolve the
dispute expeditiously.


J. GENERALTERMS


1. Venue. Venue for any lawsuitarising out of this Agreement shall be in the Superior
Court for Snohomish County. This Agreement shall be governed by Washington
state law.


2. Entire Ag:cement. This Agreement represents the entire integrated agreement


3.


between the City and Zachor & Thomas, superseding all prior negotiations. This
Agreement may be modi?ed, amended, or added to only by written agreement
properly signed by both parties hereto.


Severabilit_v_.If any provisions of this Agreement is found to be invalid or contrary
to law, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby.


CONTRACTFOR PROFESSIONAL LEGAL SERVICES - 5
(ProsecutingAttorney for the City of Mill Creek)


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Prosecution Services Agreement (Greg Elwin, Chief of Police) Page 60 of 111







4. Authorigg. By their signature below, each party warrants that it has taken all
required steps to authorize and validate this Agreement, and each party agrees to be
bound by the terms and conditions set forth above.


5. Effective Date. The effective date of this Agreement shall be the 15‘day of January,
2019.


DATED THIS
A


day of , 2018


TI-IECITY OF MILL CREEK


Robert S. Stowe, InterimCity Manager


ZACHOR & THOMAS, Inc.,P.S.


H. James Zachor, Jr. WSBA#6327
President


ATTEST/AUTI-IENTICATED: APPROVED AS TO FORM:
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY


Gina P?ster, City Clerk WSBA #


CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL LEGAL SERVICES - 6
(ProsecutingAttorney for the City of Mill Creek)


AGENDA ITEM #E.


Prosecution Services Agreement (Greg Elwin, Chief of Police) Page 61 of 111







CITY 0 I:


,_
Agenda ltem #L


W A S H I N G T O N Meeting Date: January 22, 2019


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City ofMill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (ILA) FOR EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT SERVICES WITH THE SNOHOMISH COUNTY
DEPARTMENT OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT.


PROPOSED MOTION:


Authorize the City Manager to execute an lnterlocal agreement with the Snohomish County
Department of Emergency Management for the purpose of receiving Emergency Management
Services.


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


The City of Mill Creek has been a participating agency with the Snohomish County Department
of Emergency Management (DEM) under our current lnterlocal agreement since February 4,
2016. A workgroup with representatives from large and small jurisdictions from around
Snohomish County provided DEM with input to amend the now—expiredagreement; that work
resulted in this current ILA submitted for consideration. Key changes from the previous ILA
include:


- Schedule A and C were modi?ed to align emergency management efforts across the
county. The goal is to ensure that all operations centers have trained staff; that staff know
how to communicate with each other using multiple modes of communications; that staff
is familiar with what information needs to be shared and when; and that there is a clear
understanding of the process for requesting resources from each other.


0 This will continue to be an ongoing effort and the City will remain actively involved in
that effort.


In addition to the “Basic Services” provided in Schedule A, Schedule B provides for an election
of additional services. The City may elect to receive services above and beyond the standard
services at additional cost. Schedule B does not currently include the cost of the elective
services. The DEM committee that created the Schedule, including!representatives from a


number of the cities, towns, and tribes from Snohomish County, advocated that DEM leave the
cost blank. This allows DEM to adjust the cost of exercises to accommodate the difference
between a relatively low-cost tabletop exercise to a more labor—intensivefull-scale exercise.
Should the City elect to receive services outlined in Schedule B, the cost a11dtiming ofthe
delivery of any Additional Service(s) shall be agreed upon by the Administrators of this
Agreement. At this time, the City does not foresee electing additional services.


7‘)75Z3.2/0l445S.0007l


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 62 of 111







0 The assessment method that sets the per capita assessment rate was amended. No longer
will a formula based on the CPI—Wbe used; rather a formula that equitably distributes the
cost of DEM’s general fund budget among all participating jurisdictions will be used. In
brief, this formula begins with DEM’s proposed General Fund budget, deducts the costs


associated with positions predicated by DEM’s status as a county department, and
assesses member organizations based on the annual Of?ce of Financial Management
Estimate ofCities, Towns and Counties UsedforAllocation ofSelected State Revenues
(Included as Schedule D of the ILA).


o For 2019, our assessment will be $25,989. This expenditure was anticipated in the 2019-
2020 biennial budget.


The City will continue to work collaboratively to identify more efficient and effective ways to


receive training, conduct exercises, receive assistance with our planning, and support for our


community’s disaster preparedness efforts.


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


Authorize the proposed Interlocal agreement with Snohomish County Department of Emergency
Management for the purpose of providing emergency management services to the City of Mill
Creek.


ATTACHMENTS:


0 Attachment A: Interlocal agreement between the City of Mill Creek and the Snohomish
County Departm u of Emergency Services.


obert S. Stowe


iterim City Manager


7975232/0144S5.0007l


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 63 of 111







INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES


THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
SERVICES (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into this day of , 20_,
by and betweenSNOHOMISH COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Washington (the
“County”), and the CITY OF MILL CREEK, a municipalcorporation of the State of Washington
(the “City”) (individually “Party” and collectively “Parties”) pursuant to the Interlocal
CooperationAct, Chapter 39.34 RCW.


RECITALS


A. The County has established the Snohomish County Department of Emergency
Management (hereinafter “SCDEM”) as an emergency management agency within County
government pursuant to Chapter 2.36 SCC.


B. The County, acting through SCDEM, operates as a local organization for
emergency management in accordance with relevant comprehensive emergency management
plans and programs pursuant to Chapter 38.52 RCW.


C. The City and the County have previously contracted for coordinated emergency
management services through a series of Interlocal Agreements for Emergency Management
Services, most recently dated February 4, 2016.


D. The coordinated emergency management services that SCDEM provides
augment, but do not supplant, the City’s responsibilities and obligations under Chapter 38.52
RCW.


E. The County and City believe that it is in the public interest to provide coordinated
emergency management servicesas provided herein.


AGREEMENT


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the respective agreements set forth below and
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and suf?ciency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the County and the City agree as follows: '


1. Purpose of Agreement.


This Agreement is authorized by and entered into pursuant to Chapter 39.34 RCW. The
purpose and intent of this Agreement is to provide an economical mechanism for administration
and coordinationof County and City emergency management programs, generally to protect the
public peace, health, and safety and to preserve the lives and property of the people of the
County and City.


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES 1 of 8


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 64 of 111







2. Effective Date and Duration.


This Agreement shall not take effect unless and until it has been duly executed by both
Parties and either ?led with the County Auditor or posted on the County’s Interlocal Agreements
website. This Agreement shall remain in effect through midnight December 31, 2021, unless
earlier tenninated pursuant to the provisions of Section 12 below, and the tenn of this Agreement
may be extended or renewed for up to one (1) additional three (3) year term, upon the City
_providingthe County written notice on or before April 30, 2021. The County shall in writing
approve or reject the extension or renewal within thirty (30) days of receiving notice of intent to
extend or renew; PROVIDED FURTHER, that each Party’s obligations after December 31,
2018, are contingent upon local legislative appropriation of necessary funds for this speci?c
purpose in accordance with applicablelaw. In the event that funds are not appropriated for this
Agreement, then this Agreement shall tenninate as of the last ?scal year for which funds are
appropriated.The Party shall notify the other Party in writing of any non-allocation of funds at


the earliest possible date.


3. Administrators.


Each Party to this Agreement shall designate an individual (an “Administrator”), who
may be designated by title or position, to oversee and administer such Party’s participation in this
Agreement. The Parties’ Initial Administratorsshall be the following individuals:


County’s Initial Administrator: ' City’s Initial Administrator:


Jason Biermann, Director City Manager .


Snohomish County Department of City of Mill Creek
Emergency Management 15728 Main Street
720 80"‘Street SW, Building A Mill Creek, WA 98012 .


Everett, Washington 98203


Either Party may change its Administrator at any time by delivering written notice of
such Party’s new Administratorto the other Party.


4. Emergency Management Services.


The County shall provide emergency management services, as described herein, to the
City during the term of this Agreement in accordance with Chapter 38.52 RCW. The County will
endeavor to provide the Services as described in its comprehensive emergency management plan
and in Schedule A, attached hereto and incorporated herein. At its option, the City may elect to


.
receive any or all of the additional services described in Schedule B, which is attached hereto
and incorporated herein, upon at least 30 days’ written notice provided to the County and subject
to the availability of County resources. All Services shall be provided without warranty of any
kind, including but not limited to the suf?ciency or adequacy of the actions of the Parties in
response to an emergency or disasteror for support of search and rescue operations with regard
to any person or property in distress. The City shall remain responsible for the provision of all


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR ‘


EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES
I


2 of 8


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 65 of 111







those services identi?ed in Schedule C, attached hereto, as well as any other services the City is
otherwise required by law to perfonn. ’


5. Advisory Board.


The City shall be entitled during the term of this Agreement to voting representation on
the SCDEM Advisory Board established by SCC 2.36.100. The duties of the Advisory Board are
set forth in SCC 2.36.130, as it now exists or is hereafteramended.


6. Independent Contractor.


The County will perform all Services under this Agreement as an independent contractor
and not as an agent, employee, or servant of the City. The County shall be solely responsible for
control, supervision, direction and discipline of its personnel, who shall be employees and agents
of the County and not the City. TheCounty has the express right to direct andcontrol the
County’s activities in providing the Servicesin accordance with the speci?cations set out in this
Agreement. The City shall only have the right to ensure performance.


7. Compensation.


7.1 Annual Service Charge. The City shall pay an Annual Service Charge to the
County. Beginning January 1, 2020, and as adjusted atmually each January 1 therea?er, the
Annual Service Charge shall be a per capita rate based on: 1) SCDEM’s proposed General Fund
budget, minus funding for those positions predicated by SCDEM’s status as a county department
(speci?cally, the director and accounting analyst), and; 2) the City’s population number from the
annual Of?ce of Financial Management (OFM) Estimate for Population ofCities, Towns and
Counties UsedforAllocation ofSelected State Revenues State of Washington, the 2018 version
of which attached hereto and incorporated herein at Schedule D. By July 15 of each year, the
County shall issue a revision to Schedule D to re?ect changes to the City’s population number
from the armual Of?ce of Financial Management (OFM) Estimate for Population of Cities,
Towns and Counties UsedforAllocationofSelected State Revenues State ofWashingtonand the
resulting Annual Service Charge for the subsequent year. For 2019, the Annual Service Charge
shall be set at the median between a rate of $1.22 per capita and the per capita assessment based
on the 2020 Annual Service Charge model.


7.2 Invoicing. The Annual Service Charge includes the services described in this
Agreement’s Schedule A, and reasonable operation and maintenance costs for which there will
be no separate billing. The County shall invoice the City or its designee for the Annual Service
Charge for all services performed by the County. The City shall be responsible for complete and
timely payment of all amounts invoiced regardless of whether the City opts to participate in the
invoiced services. Invoices will be sent quarterly or on any other schedule that is mutually
convenientto theParties. Payment of the Annual Service Charge is due and payable in quarterly
installments on January 31, April 30, July 31, and October 31.


2


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES 3 of 8


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 66 of 111







7.3 Additional Services. If a City elects to receive additional service(s)s as described
in Schedule B, one half of the cost of additional service(s) shall be added to the quarterly invoice
after the City noti?es SCDEM and the remaining half shall be added to the quarterly invoice that
follows the delivery of the additional service(s).


7.4 - Homeland Security and Emergency Management Performance Grants. The
Parties acknowledge the importance of sustaining SCDEM staff currently funded by federal
grants. In the event that SCDEM receives notice of cuts to federal grants that may jeopardize
SCDEM’s ability to ful?ll the Services outlined in this Agreement, the County agrees to notify
the City within 15 days of receipt of notice of such cuts from proponent of the federal grant.
Following such noti?cation, the Parties agree to reassess the Services and Annual Service
Charge. The City agrees that by entering into this Agreement, it will forego applying for
Emergency Management Perfonnance Grant (EMPG) monies.


8. Hold Harmless and Indemni?cation.


Except in those situations where the Parties have statutory or common law immunity for
their actions and/or inactions and to the extent permitted by state law, and for the limited
purposes set forth in this Agreement, each Party shall protect, defend, hold harmlessand
indemnify the other Party, its of?cers, elected of?cials, agents and employees, while acting
within the scope of their employment as such, from and against any and all claims (including
demands, suits, penalties, liabilities, damages, costs, expenses, or losses of any kind or nature


whatsoever including attomey’s fees) arising out of or in any way resulting from such Party’s
own negligent acts, errors, or omissions or willful misconduct related to such Party’s
participationand obligations under this Agreement. Each Party agrees that its obligations under
this subsectionextend to any claim, demand, and/or cause of action brought by or on behalf of
any of its employees or agents. For this purpose, each Party, by mutual negotiation, hereby
waives, with respect to the other Party only, any immunity that would otherwise be available
against such claims under the industrial insurance act provisions of Title 51 RCW.


9. Privileges and Immunities.


Whenever the employees of the County or the City are rendering outside aid pursuant to


the authority contained in RCW 38.52.07O and 38.52.080(1), such employees shall have the
same powers, duties, privileges, and immunities as if they were performing their duties in the
County or the City in which they are normally employed. Nothing in this Agreement shall affect
any other power, duty, right, privilege, or immunity afforded the County or the City in Chapter
38.52 RCW.


10. Liability Related to City Ordinances, Policies, Rules and Reg1_llations.


In executing this Agreement, the County does not assume liability or responsibility for or
in any way release the City from any liability or responsibilitywhich arises in whole or in part
from the existenceor effect of City ordinances, policies, rules or regulations. If any cause, claim,
suit, action or administrative proceeding is commenced in which the enforceability and/or
validity of any such City ordinance, policy, rule or regulation is at issue, the City shall defend the


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES 4 of 8


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 67 of 111







same at its sole expense and, if judgment is entered or damages are awarded against the City, the
County, or both, the City shall satisfy the same, including all chargeable costs and reasonable
attomey’s fees.


11. Compliance with Laws.


Inthe performanceof its obligations under this Agreement, each Party shall comply with
all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations.


12. Early Termination.


Either Party may tenninate this Agreement, with or without cause, upon written notice to
the other Party by no later than March 30 of the year of termination. Terminationpursuant to this
Section 12 will become effective on December 31 of the calendar year in which the termination
notice is given.


13. Dispute Resolution.


In the event differences between the parties should arise over the terms and conditions or
the performance of this Agreement, the parties shall use their best efforts to resolve those
differences on an infonnal basis. If those differences carmot be resolved informally, the matter
shall be referred for mediation to a mediator mutually selected by the parties. If mediation is not
successful, either of the parties may institute legal action for speci?c performance of this
Agreement or for damages.


14.
,


Notices.


All notices required to be given by any Party to the other Party under this Agreement
shall be in writing and shall be delivered either in person, by United States mail, or by electronic
mail (email) to the applicableAdministrator or the Administrator’s designee. Notice delivered in


, person shall be deemed given when accepted by the recipient. Notice by United States mail shall
be deemed given as of the date the same is deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid,
and addressed to the Administrator, or their designee, at the addresses set forth in Section 3 of
this Agreement. Notice delivered by email shall be deemed given as of the date and time


receivedby the recipient.


15. Performance.


Time is of the essence of the Agreement in each and all of the provisions and scope of
services in which performance is a factor.


16. Entire Agreement; Amendment.


This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties regarding the
subject matter hereof, and supersedes any and all prior oral or written agreements between the
Parties regarding the subject matter contained herein. This Agreement may not be modi?ed or


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
p


EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES 5 of 8


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 68 of 111







amended in any manner except by a written document executed with the same formalities as
required for this Agreement and signed by the Party against whom such modi?cation is sought to
be enforced.


17. Conflicts between Attachments and Text.


Should any con?icts exist between any attached exhibit or schedule and the text or main
bodyof this Agreement, the text or main body of this Agreement shall prevail.


18. Governing Law and Venue.


This Agreement shall be governed by and enforced in accordance with the laws of the
State of Washington. The venue of anyaction arising out of this Agreement shall be in the
Superior Court of the State of Washington, in and for Snohomish County. In the event that a
lawsuit is instituted to enforce any provision of this Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be
entitled to recover all costs of such a lawsuit, including reasonable attorney’s fees.


19. Interpretation.


This Agreement and each of the terms and provisions of it are deemed to have been
explicitly negotiated by the Parties, and the language in all parts of this Agreement shall, in all
cases, be construed according to its fair meaning and not strictly for or against either of the
Parties hereto. The captions and headings in this Agreement are used only for convenience and
are not intended to affect the interpretation of the provisions of this Agreement. This Agreement
shall be construed so that wherever applicablethe use of the singular number shall include the
plural number, andvice versa, and the use of any gender shall be applicable to all genders.


20. Severabiligg.


If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person or
circumstance shall, for any reason and to any extent, be found invalid or unenforceable, the
remainder of this Agreement and the application of that provision to other persons or
circumstances shall not be affected thereby, but shall instead continue in full force and effect, to
the extent permitted by law.


21. No Waiver.


Failure by either Party at any time to require performance by the other Party under this
Agreement or to claim a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be construed as
affecting any subsequent breach hereof or the right to require perfonnance or affect the ability to
claim a breach with respect hereto.


22. No Assignment.


This Agreement shall not be assigned, either in whole or in part, by eitherParty without
the express written consent of the other Party, which may be granted or withheld in such Party’s


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES 6 of 8


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 69 of 111







sole discretion. Any attempt to assign this Agreement in violation of the preceding sentence shall
be null and void and shall constitute a default under this Agreement.


23. Warranty of Authority.


Each of the signatories hereto warrants and represents that he or she is competent and
authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the Party for whom he or she purports to
sign this Agreement.


24. No Joint Venture.


Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as creating any type or mannerof
partnership,joint venture or other joint enterprise between the Parties.


25. No Separate Entity Necessary.


The Parties agree that no separate legal or administrative entities are necessary to carry
out this Agreement.


26. Ownership of Propem.


Except as expressly provided to the contrary in this Agreement, any real or personal
property used or acquired by either Party in connection with its performance under this
Agreement will remain the sole property of such Party, and the other Party shall have no interest
therein.


27. No Third Papty Beneficiaries.


This Agreement and each and every provision hereof is for the sole bene?t of the City
and the County. No other persons or Parties shall be deemed to have any rights in, under or to


this Agreement.


28. Execution in Counterparts.


This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall
constitutean original and all of which shall constituteone and the same agreement.


.


IN WITNESSWHEREOF,the Parties have executedthis Agreement as of the date first
above written.


COUNTY: CITY:


Snohomish County, a political subdivision City of Mill Creek, a Washington municipal
of the State of Washington corporation


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES 7 of 8


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 70 of 111







By____::_____. By
Name: Name:
Title: Title:


Approved as to indemni?cation Approved as to Form:
provisions:


Risk Management City Attorney


Approved as to Form:


DeputyProsecuting Attorney


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES 8 of 8


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 71 of 111







Schedule A
Description of Emergency Management Services


The County shall provide Emergency Management Services (the “Services”)through its
Department of Emergency Management (“SCDEM”) to Cities, Towns, and Tribes (individually
“Participating Jurisdiction”, and collectively “Participating Jurisdictions”). These Services shall
include the following.


1. General: SCDEM will maintainan emergency management organization that
complies with state law and federal guidelines. This organization willimplement the concepts of
the National Incident Management System (NIMS) and incorporate best practices of emergency
management into its operations. These best practices include a focus on developing disaster
management relationships within geographic sectors within the-county, sectors de?ned by
expected damages to critical transportation and communicationsinfrastructureduring a
catastrophic incident.


2. Planning: SCDEM will assist Participating Jurisdictions in the development of
executable disaster-relatedplans. SCDEM will maintainemergency management plans in
accordance with applicable state and federal laws, regulations, and guidance. SCDEM will use,
and encourage the use of, systematicplanningprocesses that engage the whole community.


a. SCDEM will maintainthe Snohomish County ComprehensiveEmergency
Management Plan (SCCEMP) and provide technicalassistance (templates, meeting facilitation,
and plan review) to ParticipatingJurisdictions in order for them to maintain a CEMP, as either a
standalone plan or as an annex to the County’s CEMP, which meets the requirements set forth in
RCW 38.52.030 and WAC 118-30-060. CEMPS shall include an analysis of the natural,
technological, or human caused hazards that could affect the County or jurisdiction, respectively.
CEMPS will also describe a NIMS-compliant incident management structure for use during
multiagency/multijurisdictional operationsand include the procedures to be used during
emergencies for coordinating local resources, as necessary, and the resources of County
agencies,departments,commissions,and boards.


b. SCDEM will maintain the Snohomish County Hazard Mitigation Plan, a
FEMA-approvedmulti-jurisdictionalhazard mitigation plan that complies with the Disaster
Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMAZK) and 44 CFR §20l .6, and, upon request, provide technical
assistance (templates, meeting facilitation, and plan review) to Participating Jurisdictions in
order for them to maintain an armex to the County’s FEMA-approved hazard mitigation plan that
meets the requirements set forth in 44 CFR §20l.6.


Ac. SCDEM will maintain the Snohomish County Disaster Recovery
Framework and, upon request, provide technical assistance (templates, meeting facilitation, and
plan review) to Participating Jurisdictionsdesiring to develop a jurisdictional Disaster Recovery
Framework.


d. SCDEM will maintain standard procedures for its Emergency
Coordination Center and provide technical assistance (templates, meeting facilitation, and


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES — Schedule A A-1


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 72 of 111







document review) to Participating Jurisdictions in order to develop complementary procedures
for their respective Emergency Operations Centers.


e. SCDEM will participate in regional—and state-level planning efforts,
representing Snohomish County and, unless otherwise speci?ed, the Participating Jurisdictions
within SnohomishCounty. Examples of such efforts include the Mount Baker/Glacier Peak
Response Plan and the Statewide CatastrophicIncident Planning Team.


3. Training and Exercise:SCDEM will assist Participating Jurisdictions to
develop, maintain, or expand their emergency management capabilities. The prioritized
capabilities to train and exercise are operational coordination, operational communications,
situational assessment, logistics, public information, and plarming.


a. SCDEM will conductan annual training and exercise planning workshop
(TEPW) in order to develop a coordinatedtraining and exercise calendar. SCDEM will also send
representativesonbehalf of Snohomish County and theParticipating Jurisdictions to the State’s
annual TEPW.


b. SCDEM will maintain a Training and Exercise Plan (TEP) that describes
the outcomes of the TEPW. SCDEM will produce and electronically distribute a training and
exercise calendar each month to the ParticipatingJurisdictions.


c. SCDEM will maintaina training program that adheres to state and federal
guidance, including the National Incident Management System (NIMS) Training Plan and
FEMA’s Core Capability Development Sheets. This training program includes:


i. SCDEM will assist each Participating Jurisdictionin the
development of a jurisdiction-speci?c NIMS complianceplan. This includes
providing assistance in determining applicable courses and identifying online and
in-person resources that can providecompliance-relatedcourses. Participating
Jurisdictions retain the responsibility to track individual training of their staff
members and, per the State’s policy, submit NIMS compliance reports.


ii. Countywide, SCDEM will facilitate the delivery of one ICS-300
(Intermediate ICS for Expanding Incidents) course and one ICS-400 (Advanced
ICS for Complex Incidents) course each year.


iii. Countywide, SCDEM will facilitatethe delivery of four G191
(Emergency Operations Center/Incident Command System Interface) workshops
each year.


iv. Countywide, SCDEM will facilitate the delivery of four
community points of distribution (CPOD) courses each year.


v. Countywide, SCDEM will facilitate the delivery of four initial
damage assessment courses each year.


vi. Upon request, SCDEM will deliver ICS-402 (ICS Overview for
Executives/Senior Of?cials) or its equivalent to each requesting Participating
Jurisdiction in order to educate the Participating Jurisdiction’s policy makers and


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES — ScheduleA


,
A-2


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 73 of 111







to help them meet the requirements of the National Incident Management System
(NIMS).


vii. Annually, SCDEM will host at least two local deliveries of courses
from FEMA’s Emergency Management Institute and/or the National Disaster
Preparedness Consortium.


viii. On behalf of each ParticipatingJurisdiction, SCDEM will process
applications to host training opportunities available through FEMA’s Emergency
Management Institute and/or the National Disaster Preparedness Consortium. The
Participating Jurisdiction requesting such courses will be responsible for
identifying a location and any costs associated with the course delivery, e.g.
refreshments. .


I


‘


ix. Countywide, SCDEM will deliver two offerings of an ARRL-
approved HAM radio technician class each year.


x. Countywide, SCDEM will facilitate the delivery of two
Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) trainings each year. Facilitation
includesassisting in the provision of instructors and coursematerials needed to
successfully conduct the course. In order to build CERT capability within the
ParticipatingJurisdictions, SCDEM will request and host CERT Train-the-Trainer
courses when there are an adequate number of students.


xi. SCDEM will deliver, or facilitate the delivery of, two trainings per
year on SCDEM’s incident management software, WebEOC.


xii. SCDEM will deliver at least two offerings of ComVan operator
training per year.


d. SCDEM will maintain an exercise program that adheres to state and
federal guidance,"including the HomelandSecurity Exercise and Evaluation Program (HSEEP)
and applicable grant requirements. Unless otherwisespeci?ed, the intent of SCDEM’s exercise
program is to evaluate establishedplans and/or procedures, and identify ways to improve those
plans and/or procedures. The exercise program includes:


i. Every three years SCDEM will conduct a countywide functional
exercise that evaluates Snohomish County’s CEMP, the procedures used in the
Snohomish County Emergency Coordination Center, and our ability to coordinate
with jurisdictions throughout Snohomish County. SCDEM strongly encourages
all Participating Jurisdictions to participate in that exercise and will provide
technical assistance in the development of their exercise plan.


ii. Countywide, SCDEM will facilitate four tabletop exercises (TTXS)
per year. These TTXs will evaluate Participating Jurisdictions’ response plans and
capabilities against various hazards that threaten Snohomish County.


iii. Countywide, SCDEM will facilitate four CPOD exercises per year
in conjunction with the CPOD training.


iv. Countywide, SCDEM will facilitate one damage assessment
exercise per quarter in conjunctionwith damage assessment training.


v. SCDEM will facilitate one EOC workshop each month. These
workshops will be used to develop or update the scheduled Participating
Jurisdiction’s EOC procedures.


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES — ScheduleA A-3


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 74 of 111







vi. SCDEM will facilitate one EOC drill each month. These drills will
be used to validate the scheduledParticipatingJurisdiction’s EOC procedures.


vii. Countywide, SCDEM will conduct monthly communications drills
with ParticipatingJurisdictions to ensure the viability of various means of
communications.


4. Coordinating Disaster Response Activities: SCDEM and Participating
Jurisdictions will coordinate their emergency response activities in order to endeavor to
minimize death, injury, and damages to property, the economy, and the enviromnent during
natural, technological or human-caused disasters.


a. SCDEM will maintain a 24 hour per day Duty Of?cer, who will serve as
the primary point of contact to address emergency management-related requests on behalf of
Participating Jurisdictions.The Duty Of?cer will be available via Snohomish County 911.


b. As resources allow, SCDEM will utilize multiple means of
communication to notify, warn, and/or provide information and instruction to the general public
regarding impendingor occurring disasters.


c. SCDEM will maintain and, when necessary, activate the Snohomish
County Emergency Coordination Center (SCECC) and implement the Snohomish County CEMP
and applicable procedures. The SCECC may activate in anticipation of, or immediately after,
disasters as defined by RCW38.52.010(6). The SCECC may also activate to provide support
during pre-plarmedevents or at the approved request of a Participating Jurisdiction. Requests to
activate the SCECC will be made via the Duty Officer to the SCDEMDirector. The decision to
activate the SCECC, and at what level, is made by the SCDEM Director or the appropriate
designee in the SCDEM line of succession.


d. SCDEM will maintain and, when necessary, activate the Snohomish
County Joint Information Center (SCJIC) and applicable procedures. The SCJIC may activate in
anticipationof, or immediately after, disasters as de?ned by RCW _38.52.0lO(6).The SCJIC may
also activate to provide support during pre-plarmedevents or at the request of a Participating
Jurisdiction. Requests to activate the SCJIC will be made via the Duty Of?cer to the SCDEM
Director. The decision to activate the SCJIC, and at what level, is made by the SCDEM Director
or the appropriate designee in the SCDEM line of succession


e. When activated, the SCECC will coordinate resource requests among
affected jurisdictions within Snohomish County. The SCECC will also make available the
County’s emergency resources not required for use elsewhere during emergencies, the use of
which shall be determined and prioritized by SCECC. When necessary, SCDEM will request
state and federal resources on behalf of the Participating Jurisdictions through Washington’s
established emergency management protocols, i.e. from the SCECC to the Washington State
Emergency Operations Center. The Participating Jurisdictions agree that the County shall remain
harmless in the event of non-availability or non-performance of requested resources.


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES — ScheduleA A-4


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 75 of 111







f. When activated, the SCECC will coordinate situational awarenessamong
affected jurisdictions within Snohomish County, and with regional and state partners.


g. When activated, the SCJIC shall coordinate public information and
messaging about critical lifesaving and life-sustaining information by all means necessary to
expedite the delivery of emergency services and aid the public to take protective actions.
Participating Jurisdictions will identify appropriate points of contact with whom the JIC will
communicate to fonn the information network commonly referred to as the Joint Information
System (JIS).


h. When requested, and at the discretion of the SCDEM Director or the
appropriate designee in the SCDEM line of succession, SCDEM will deploy a liaison to the
participating jurisdiction to directly assist with incident management, technical support and
assistance, and/or use of mobile assets. During activation of the SCECC, SCDEM may request
that Participating Jurisdictions deploy liaisons to the Snohomish County ECC to enhance
communicationbetween the SCECC and the incident site(s).


i. Upon determining that a disaster as defined by RCW 38.52.010(6) has
happened or is imminent, SCDEM will, under the provisions of SCC Chapter 2.36, initiate
through the County Executive a Proclamation of Emergency for Snohomish County. Upon
determining that a disaster as de?ned by RCW 38.52.010(6) has happened or is imminent,
Participating Jurisdictions will, under the provisions of applicable code, initiate through the
Participating Jurisdiction’s appropriate authority a Proclamation of Emergency for their
jurisdiction. Participating Jurisdictions will notify SCDEM as soon as practicable of their intent
to proclaim a disaster and provide SCDEM with a copy of the proclamation as soon as
practicable.


5. Coordinating Disaster Recovery Activities. SCDEM and Participating
Jurisdictions will coordinate their disaster recovery activities in order to endeavor to restore


'


critical servicesand establish a new normal for the affected area(s) as quickly as possible.


a. SCDEM, in conjunction with the State’s Emergency Management
Division (EMD) and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), will coordinate the
formal post-disaster preliminary damage assessment (PDA) process. Participating Jurisdictions
will be responsible for tracking and reporting activities potentially reimbursable by federal
and/or state disaster assistance programs. Each participating jurisdiction remains responsible for
the costs it incurs.


b. In the aftermath of a disaster as de?ned by RCW 38.52.010(6), SCDEM
will initiate the transition of disaster response to disaster recovery. This includes implementing
the Snohomish County Disaster Recovery Framework and establishing the Recovery Support
Functions found therein. When requested, Participating Jurisdictions will identify points of
contact to be integrated into this process.


6. Volunteer / Emergency Worker Management: SCDEM will work in
collaboration with participating jurisdictions to develop volunteer capabilities that augment


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES — ScheduleA A-5


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 76 of 111







participating jurisdictions’ local disaster response efforts; speci?cally, Community Emergency
Response Teams (CERT) and/or the Snohomish County Auxiliary Communications Service
(ACS)


a. Participating Jurisdictions will identify potential CERT and/or SERV
volunteers. SCDEM will facilitate their registration as emergency workers in accordance with
the Washington State Emergency Workers’ Program and maintain a central database of these
volunteers. Annually, SCDEM will provide to the participating jurisdictions a list of the
volunteers living within each jurisdiction’s respective boundaries.


b. SCDEM will provide oversight for a countywide CERT capability based
on self-organized and governed CERT teams. In this construct, SCDEM will facilitate initial
CERT training and support volunteer team coordinators that will be responsible for coordinating
with SCDEM for ongoing training, recruiting, and meeting place logistics.


i. As described in section 3.c.x. of this Schedule, SCDEM will
facilitate initial training for CERT volunteers. Initial training will consist of the
CERT program as outlined by FEMA’s Emergency Management Institute (EMI)
and damage assessment (i.e. windshield survey) training.


ii. SCDEM will meet with the team coordinators annually to establish
a yearly training calendar for each CERT team. Each team’s coordinator, with the
support of SCDEM, will be responsible for additional meetings and trainings.


iii.
I


SCDEM, in collaboration with the team coordinators,will develop
and maintain countywide CERT policies that ensure consistency and are
applicable to all of the regional teams.


A


c. SCDEM will provide oversight to the Snohomish County Auxiliary
Communications Service (ACS) function, which provides redundant emergency communications
services to SCDEM, its Participating Jurisdictions, as well as hospitals and the Snohomish
County Regional Chapter of the American Red Cross. SCDEM will assign trained ACS
volunteers to augment Participating Jurisdictions’ EOCS.


(1. Using volunteers (as groups or individuals) for activities outside of the
scope of their intended purpose and/or training places them outside of the scope of RCW
38.52.180, Chapter 118-04 WAC, and this Agreement. These volunteers carmot be afforded
protection under the Washington State Emergency Workers Program; therefore Participating
Jurisdictions desiring to expand the use of volunteers beyond the scope established by SCDEM
are required to provide coverage in accordance with L&I Industrial Insurance regulations.


7. Outreach and Education: SCDEM will work in conjunction with participating
jurisdictions to provide disaster-relatedoutreach and education in order to improve overall
community resilience.


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES - Schedule A A-6


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 77 of 111







a. SCDEM will develop, promote, and make available to Participating
Jurisdictions preparedness materials related to its “Individually Prepared, Together Resilient” A


campaign, and procure and make available FEMA-producedpreparedness materials. The amount
of preparedness materials provided will be made on a case-by-case basis and based upon
available supply.


b. SCDEM will develop and promote individual preparedness messages to be
delivered via its af?liation with local radio stations.


c. Upon request, and when practicable, SCDEM will facilitate the delivery of
the Map Your Neighborhood program on behalf of a Participating Jurisdiction. Such requests
shouldbe made at least 30 days prior to the presentation.


(1. Upon request, and when practicable, SCDEM will deliver preparedness
presentations on behalf of a Participating Jurisdiction.Such requests should be made at least 30
days prior to the presentation. Participating Jurisdictions are responsible for providing an
adequate facility and incurs any extraordinary costs associated with such events, e.g.
refreshments, room rental costs, etc.


e. Annually, SCDEM will produce an armual report that summarizes its
major activities for the previous year. The annual report will be distributed to the Participating
Jurisdictions and the Director will be available to present it to each Participating Jurisdiction’s
elected of?cials.


8. SCDEM Resources: SCDEM maintains a number of resources that, when
practicable, will be made available to Participating Jurisdictions. Requests fortheir deployment
shall be made to the SCDEM Duty Of?cer or, when activated, the Snohomish County ECC.
These resources include:


a. Command vehicle, commonly referred to as a “ComVan.” A command
vehicle provides a motorized, self-contained, climate-controlledcapability to augment incident
management. SCDEM provides operator training, but does Q typically provide an operator.
Requests for an operator will be considered on a case-by-case basis, but it is the primary
responsibilityof the requesting Jurisdiction to identify, maintain, and provide quali?ed operators.


b. Communications vehicle, commonly referred to as “DEM 10.” The
communications vehicleprovides a motorized, self-contained, climate-controlled capability to


augment communications.


c. Mobile emergency response trailer. This trailer provides a towed
capability that can be used to augment community points of distribution, volunteer reception
centers, or emergency operations centers.


(1. Traf?c signs. Two towed, programmable traf?c signs provide visual and
limited AM band radio warning about emergency conditions.


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES — Schedule A A-7


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 78 of 111







V


e. Alert and Warning.SCDEM will maintain a system that providesalert and
Warning to county residents.Access to this system will be through the SCDEM Duty Officer or,
when activated; the SnohomishCounty ECC. -


’


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR .


EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES — ScheduleA A-8


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 79 of 111







ScheduleB
Description of Additional Emergency Management Services


The County offers additionalservices that the ParticipatingJurisdiction may choose from in
addition to the basic emergency management servicesdescribed in Schedule A. If, during the
course of this Agreement, a ParticipatingJurisdiction desires additional service(s)s as described
below, the City shall notify SCDEM in writing as early as practicable prior to the delivery of the
desired additional service(s). The cost and timing of the delivery of any Additional Service(s)
shall be agreed upon by the Administrators of this Agreement. One half of the cost of additional
service(s) shall be added to the quarterly invoice after the ParticipatingJurisdictionnoti?es
SCDEM and the remaining half shall be added to the quarterly invoice that follows the delivery
of the additional service(s)


1. Planning:


a. SCDEM will providetechnical assistance in order to develop a functional
emergencymanagement plan or procedure. Examples of a functional plan include mass fatality
plans and disaster debris management plans.


Participating Jurisdiction elects this service:
(initial)


2. Training and Exercise:


a. SCDEM will provide one jurisdiction-speci?c training opportunity.


Participating Jurisdiction elects this service:
(initial)


b. SCDEM will provide one jurisdiction-speci?c exercise opportunity.
Scheduling these exercise shall occur at the annual TEPW.


Participating Jurisdictionelects this service:
(initial)


c. SCDEM will process Participating Jurisdiction’s application for FEMA’s
Integrated Emergency Management Course.


Participating Jurisdictionelects this service:
(initial)


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES — Schedule B B-I


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 80 of 111







3. Coordinating Disaster Response Activities


a. On behalf of the Participating Jurisdiction, SCDEM will maintain
membership with the Northwest Incident Management Team and request its deployment on
behalf of the Participating Jurisdiction.


Participating Jurisdiction elects this service:
(initial)


4. Outreach and Education:


a. SCDEM will develop and promote a jurisdiction-speci?c outreach
campaign. '


Participating Jurisdiction elects this service:
(initial)


5. Communications Support:


a. SCDEM’s Communications Of?cer will provide technical support to
ensure interoperable radio communications; speci?cally, procure and install compatible
communicationshardware.


Participating Jurisdiction elects this service:
(initial)


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES —- Schedule B B-2


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 81 of 111







Schedule C
Expectations of Participating Jurisdiction


As stated in Section 4 of the Agreement, the services provided by SCDEM augment the
~ participatingjurisdictions. This schedule outlines some, but not all, of the areas for which the


Participating Jurisdictions retain responsibility.


1. General:


a. In accordance with RCW 38.52.070, each ParticipatingJurisdictionwill
establish a local emergency managementorganization and appoint a director who will serve as
the point of contact for SCDEM.


b. In accordancewith SCC 2.36, each Participating Jurisdiction will
designate representatives to the DEM Advisory Board and attend the quarterly meetings. The
Advisory Board shall advise the director of emergency management in recommending to the
executive actions on emergency management plans; the department’s budget; rate schedules for
emergency management service charges paid by contracting agencies; grant applicationsand
utilizationof awarded grant ftmds; and other matters as requested by the county executive or the
director.


2. Planning:


a. Participating Jurisdictionswillmaintain a CEMP that meets the
requirements set forth in RCW 38.52.030 and WAC 118-30-060. CEMPS shall include an
analysis of the natural, technological, or human caused hazards that could affect the jurisdiction;
will describe a NIMS-compliantincident management structure for use during
multiagency/multijurisdictionaloperations; and include the procedures to be used during
emergencies for coordinating local resources.


b. Participating Jurisdictionswill identify a primary and alternate point of
contact for each plarming effort. Participating Jurisdictions will convene work groups and
provide meeting space asnecessary to facilitate the development of plans including the
jurisdiction’s comprehensive emergency management plan, hazard mitigation plan, functional
emergency management plans, etc., as applicable.


3. Training and Exercise:


a. With SCDEM’s assistance, Participating Jurisdictions will develop
jurisdiction-level NIMS compliance plans. Participating Jurisdictions retain the responsibility to


track individual training of their staff members.


b. . Participating Jurisdictionsdesiring to schedule specific training and
exercise opportunitiesshould do so by sending a representative the annual Training and Exercise
Planning Workshop (TEPW). Facilitating training and exercise opportunitiesnot scheduled at the
TEPW shall be at the discretion of the SCDEM Director.


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES — Schedule C C-1


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 82 of 111







4. Coordinating Disaster Response Activities: Participating Jurisdictions will
coordinate their emergency response activitieswith and through SCDEM in order to endeavor to
minimize death, injury, and damages to property, the economy, and the enviromnent during
natural, technological or human-causeddisasters.


a. During, or in anticipation of disasters as de?ned by RCW 38.52.010(6),
affected Participating Jurisdictions will activate their incident management structure and
Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan, and notify SCDEM as soon as practicable.


b. When activated, Participating Jurisdictions will request County, state
and/or federal resources through established emergency management protocols, i.e. from the
SCECC to the Washington State Emergency Operations Center. The Participating Jurisdictions
agree that the County shall remain harmless in the event of non-availability or non-performance
of requested resources.


c. Participating Jurisdictions shall submit incident-related information to the
SCECC and the SCECC shall develop and provide comprehensive situation reports to the
Participating Jurisdictions, as well as to regional and state partners.


d. Participating Jurisdictionswill identify appropriate points of contact with
whom the SCJIC will communicate to form the informationnetwork commonly referred to as the
Joint Information System (JIS).


e. When requested and practicable, Participating Jurisdictions will deploy ‘


liaisons to the Snohomish County ECC to enhance communication between the SCECC and the
incident site(s).


f. Upon determining that a disaster as de?ned by RCW 38.52.010(6) has
happened or is imminent, Participating Jurisdictions will, under the provisions of applicable
code, initiate through the jurisdiction’s appropriateauthority a Proclamation of Emergency for
their jurisdiction. Participating Jurisdictions will notify SCDEM as soon as practicable of their
intent to proclaim a disaster and provide SCDEM with a copy of the proclamation as soon as
practicable.


’


5. Coordinating Disaster Recovery Activities. SCDEM and Participating
Jurisdictions will coordinate their disaster recovery activities in order to endeavor to restore
critical services and establish a new normal for the affected area(s) as quickly as possible.


a. Participating Jurisdictions will be responsible for tracking and reporting
activities potentially reimbursable by federal and/or state disaster assistance programs. Each
participatingjurisdiction remains responsible for the costs it incurs.


b. In the aftermath of a disaster as de?ned by RCW 38.52.010(6), SCDEM
will initiate the transition of disaster response to disaster recovery. This includes implementing
the Snohomish County Disaster Recovery Framework and establishing the Recovery Support


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES — Schedule C C-2


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 83 of 111







Functions found therein. When requested, Participating Jurisdictions will identify points of
contact to be integrated into this process. '


~


6. Volunteer / Emergency Worker Management: SCDEM will work in
collaboration with participating jurisdictions to develop volunteer capabilities that augment
participating jurisdictions’ local disaster response efforts; speci?cally, Community Emergency
Response Teams (CERT) and/or the Snohomish County Auxiliary Communications Service
(ACS)


a. Participating Jurisdictions will identify potential volunteers to af?liate
with CERT and/or ACS.


b. ParticipatingJurisdictions acknowledge that using volunteers (as groups or
individuals) for activities outside of the scope of their intended purpose and/or training places
them outside of the scope of RCW 38.52.l80, Chapter 118-04 WAC, and this Agreement. These
volunteers catmot be afforded protection under the Washington State Emergency Workers
Program; therefore Participating Jurisdictions desiring to expand the use of volunteers beyond
the scope established by SCDEM are required to provide coverage in accordance with L&I
Industrial Insurance regulations.


7. Outreach and Education: SCDEMwill work in conjunction with participating
jurisdictions to provide disaster-related outreach and education in order to improve overall
community resilience. Participating Jurisdictions desiring presentations will make such requests
made at least 60 days prior to the presentation.


8. SCDEM Resources: SCDEM maintains a number of resources that, when
practicable, will be made available to Participating Jurisdictions. Requests for their deployment
shall be made as early as possible to the SCDEM Duty Of?cer or, when activated, the
Snohomish County ECC. When requesting a ComVan, the Participating Jurisdiction bears the
primary responsibility for providing a quali?ed driver and should not expect SCDEM to provide
an operator.


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES — Schedule C C-3


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 84 of 111







Schedule D
2019 Service Fees by Jurisdiction


2019 Service Fees


2019 Per Capita
Rate’


April 1, 2018
Population Est.‘ 2019 FeessJurisdiction


Arlington - $127


$1.27


$1.27


$1.27


$1.27


$1.27


$1.27


$1.27


$1.27


$1.27


$1.27


$1.27


$1.27


$1.27


$1.27


$1.27


$1.27


$1.27


$1.27


$24,503


$8,386


$1 .777
$53,095


$2,761


$4,590


$222


$41 .351
$48,575


$25,989


$23,945


$27,373


$27,068


$12,886


$8,678


$6,41 1


$1 .701
$6,069


$437


Brier


Darrington


Gold Bar


Granite Falls


Lake Stevens


Lynnwood


MillCreek


MountlakeTerrace


Snohomlsh


Stanwood


Woodway


Tulalip Tribes“ -


Stillaguamish Tribe5


‘Source: Based on projected growth and the State of Washington, Of?ce of Financial Management. April 1, 2018
Estimates; http://www.ofm.wa.govlpoplapril1ldefault.asp
2Aper capita breakdown of DEM's 2018 General Fund budget, minus salary and bene?ts of the Director and
Accounting Analyst II. ($1.2696)
3The2019 fees are based on the April 1, 2018 population estimate multiplied by DEM's general fund budget.
minus the allocation for the DEMDirector and Accounting Analyst.
‘The Tulalip Tribes population numbers willbe obtained from the Tulalip Tribes Enrollment Department once every
yean
5TheStillaguamish Tribe population numbers willbe obtained from the Stillaguamish Tribe Enrollment Of?cer once
everyyear.


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES — Schedule D D-1


AGENDA ITEM #F.


Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Services with Snohomish Co... Page 85 of 111







5?‘
CITY CI; ,u


Agenda Item # L
WASHINGTON Meeting Date: January 22,2019


CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY
City of Mill Creek, Washington


AGENDA ITEM: APPOINTMENT OF COMMUNITY INTERVIEW PANEL FOR
THE CITY MANAGER


KEY FACTS AND INFORMATION SUMMARY:


A robust engagement process is planned for the City Manager interviews that incorporates staff
and the community. The interview schedule for the City Manager candidates is set to occur on
March 22 and 23. Council previously agreed to interview the candidates on Saturday, March 23.
Below is a summary outline of the interview process.


City Staff & Community Interviews for City Manager— Friday, March 22, 2019


Executive Leadership Team Interview‘
Staff Panel Interview ~ 5 to 7 reps]
CM Candidate & Staff Lunch (City Hall Council Chambers)
Community Panel Interview — 5 to 7 reps‘
Open Public Meeting/Social — Evening hours with Location TBD


0 CM Tour ofCity by two staff reps‘


1 — Interviews /0 rim concurrently


Although there will be many individuals to help with the City Manager interview process, the
decision on who to hire is solely the responsibilityofthe Council. Therefore, all groups will be
asked to focus on candidate strengths and weaknesses rather than a preferred individual or
ranking ofthe candidates.


The Interim City Manager will assemble the staff interview groups. Council previously agreed to


appoint community members serve on a community interview panel by each Councilmember
identifying one community member (plus alternates in the event the same community member is
also identi?ed by another Councilmember) to serve on the community interview panel and to


bring those names forward at the January 22 meeting. Once five to seven community members
are identi?ed, the Council will appoint a panel to help interview City Manager candidates on
March 22, 2019 (anticipate an all—dayevent).


CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION:


City Council appointment of a community interview panel for the City Manager.


ATTACHMENTS:


City Manager Recruitment Brochure


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Appointment of Community Interview Panel for the City Manager (Bob Stowe... Page 86 of 111







I’
U


»


§ 4 ért S. Stowe
Interim City Manager .


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Appointment of Community Interview Panel for the City Manager (Bob Stowe... Page 87 of 111







AGENDA ITEM #G.


Appointment of Community Interview Panel for the City Manager (Bob Stowe... Page 88 of 111







THECOMMUNITY
Situated in Snohomish County
approximately20 miles north of Seattle


and 10 miles south of Everett, the


City ofMill Creek, Washington, is a


picturesquecommunity nestled just
inland from the Puget Sound, north


ofLake Washington, and west ofthe


Cascade Mountains. lnitially developed
as a golfcourse community in a densely
wooded area and incorporatedin 1983,


Mill Creek (pop. 20,470, 4.6 sq. mi.) is


exceptionallywcl1—p1annedand offers a


hometown atmosphere with many of


the amenities of urban living.


Mill Creek is a vibrant, safe, and


friendlycommunity where residents


enjoy active lifestyleswithout all the


big city commotion. The City provides
many opportunities to enjoy sports and


the great outdoors. Parks and trails are a


hallmark of the City with over 43 acres


of parks and 23 miles of nature trails.


Mill Creek enjoys 10 neighborhood
parks,as well as a SportsPark, that


features a ball ?eld for Little Leagueand


youth soccer, as well as a skate park.The


City offers recreation services, classes,


and specialevents designedto serve the


active and passive recreation needs of


preschoolers,youth,adults, and seniors.


The Citylscenterpiece is the award-


winning Mill CreekTown Center,


featuring over 80 shops,restaurants, and


services. Situated among nature trails


and creeks, the outdoor shopping area


has a park—likesetting and hosts a variety


ofevents including5k runs, art walks,


live entertainment, and sporting events.


Town Center is :1 model for successful


urban development.


Centrally located with proximity to


major employmentcenters along the


I-5 and I-405 corridors, Mill Creek


is extremelydesirable to homebuyers
and renters. The City offersa variety
of neighborhoodsranging from those


with traditional single-familyhomes


to others with smaller Cottage housing,
as well as numerous high-quality
townhomes and apartments.


Mill Creek is servedby the Everett


Public Schools, which is one of the best


in the State with an elementaryschool, a


middle school, and a high school within


municipalborders. Other nearbyschools


just outside Mill Creek's borders also


serve local students. Seven excellent


collegesand universities are found within


a 17-mile radius. Mill Creek residents


are well educated with 49% having
a bachelors degree or higher. Mill


Creek Library is popular and one


of the busiest branches ofthe well-


regarded Sno-Isle Libraries system,


and the City's Senior Center is a


valuable resource. Community Transit


provides both local and bus rapid
transit (BRT) service to connect Mill


Creek to the larger metropolitan area.


In six years, BRT will also connect the


City west to neighboring Lynnwood,
and the new light rail planned there.


Mill Creek offers an exceptional
community experience, where natural


beauty is preserved,neighborhoods
?ourish, businesses thrive, and
recreational opportunities abound.


To learn more about the City of


Mill Creek, pleasevisit https://
www.cityofmillcreek.com,


THEORGANIZATION
The City ofl\/lill Creek operates


under the C0uncil—Managcrform of


government. Citizens elect seven City
Council Members at large to staggered,
four-year terms, without limit. Every
two years, the City Council elects from


its Members a Mayorand MayorPro
Tem. The Mayor serves as the chair of the
Council. The City Council sets policies,
adoptsordinances, and passes resolutions,


developingstrategies and objectivesto


achieve the City's vision and mission. The


Council appoints a City Manager, who


is the City's Chief Executive O?icer,


responsiblefor carrying out the Councils


policiesand ordinances and overseeing
the day-to~dayoperations of the City.


The 2019~2O Biennial Budget is $59.1


million (GF $28.1 million, reserve $6


million) supporting a stat? of61 FTEs.
City services include policeprotection,


publicworks, street maintenance, storm


water, planning and zoning, parks,
recreation, and generalgovernment


services (human resources, ?nance,
information technology,communications,


marketing, and administration). The


City contracts with Snohomish County
Fire District 7 for ?re and emergency


medical services. The Alderwood and


Silver Lake Water districts providethe


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Appointment of Community Interview Panel for the City Manager (Bob Stowe... Page 89 of 111







City’swater and wastewater services. The


City also has a robust service issuing U.S.


passports at City Hall.


With the recent election ofone ofits


Members to the Washington House of


Representatives,City Council will select


a new Member to fill the vacancy after


January 1, 2019. The Council Member


so appointed,plus four others, may, if


they choose, stand for reelection at the


next election cycle.In other words, five


Council Members (all but the Mayorand


l\/layorPro Tem) stand for reelection in


November, 2019. Historically, council


positionshave been stable with members


serving multipleterms. Council intends


to hire a professionalmanager, who


appreciatesMill Creek and is committed


to its future.


Key issues facing Mill Creek include the


following:


' Developinglong-term sustainable


funding to support desired services;


' Replacementof aging storm water


infrastructure;


' Creating a new vision and sub—area


plan for Mill Creek Boulevard,
an area that connects an existing
commercial in-line retail center to the


Town Center;


' Exploringrecreation tourism and
economic developmenton 10 plus
acres of land owned by the City; and


' Developmentof one of the last


remaining privatelyowned large
parcelsofland, a 17-acre tract


on which mixed residential and
commercial uses are contemplated;


THEPOSITION
Serving at the pleasureof the City
Council (contract), the City Nlanager
coordinates City resources and the work


ofall departmentsand employeesto


implementthe City Council’spolicies,
plans, and priorities. The City Manager
heads the Executive Department (City
Manager'sOffice, City Clerk, Human


Resources, Information Technology,and


Legal).Departments reporting to the


City Manager include:Police, Public


VVorksand Development Services,


Finance and Administration, and
Communications and Marketing.


THEIDEALCANDIDATE
Mill Creek seeks an experienced,
professionalmanager, and a person of the


highest integrity and ethical standards as


its next City Manager.


The City is looking for its next City
Manager to establish stabilityin the


position by serving for many years. The


ideal candidate must be able to hit the


ground running and deal with strong


personalitiesfrom every corner, requiring


not onlya true command presence,
assertiveness, and self-con?dence, but


experience in principledleadershipand
e?cctive management. She or he must be


decisive, unafraid of hard decisions, yet


also collaborative and respectful at all


times. The ideal candidate is dedicated


to transparency in government and


maintaining the public trust.


The next City
Manager has a


strong work ethic
and is committed


to continuous


improvement,


executing City
Council’s policy
priorities, and


keepingemployees
engaged. Byemphasizingthe Council-
Manager form ofgovernment and


coachingall involved in their proper roles,
the ideal candidate leads by example,
bringing all parts of the organization
together.The new City Manager is a


positive presence, expectedto stabilize
and quicklyadvance an organization


dealing with momentum losses caused by
leadershipchanges.


The successfulcandidate is dynamic,
visionary, and strategic. She or he


will share her or his strategic analysis
and fresh-eyedperspective as to


Mill Creek's strengths and areas


for improvement, with the goalof


advancinga long-termstrategy for
the City. The next City Managerhas


common sense and humility, checking
his or her ego at the door.


The next City Managermust have a


good business sense, and considerable


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Appointment of Community Interview Panel for the City Manager (Bob Stowe... Page 90 of 111







experience in municipal finance


and budgeting.She or he will have
signi?cantproject management


expertise, and experience in economic


and community development.


The ideal candidate is a team-builder. She


or he is open, inclusive, and adaptive
with the ability to motivate, develop,and


inspire City employees,maximizing their


potential. The ability to delegateand


empower the City’steam is essential for


the collective success of the organization.


The successfulcandidate must be an


expert collaborator,able to maintain and


strengthen the City’srelationshipswith


neighboringmunicipalities,and building
partnershipsin the community. The


next City Manager will foster relations


with regionalpartners and stakeholders


includingneighboringgovernments, the


Mill Creek Chamber ofCommerce, Mill


Creek Town Center Business Association,


Nlill Creek Community Association and


other HOAs, Puget Sound Regional
Council, Community Transit, Economic


Alliance Snohomish County, the State


Legislature,and others.


The new City Managermust be highly
personableand engaging, with expert-


level outward- and inward-facing
communications skills. Council expects


the City Manager to be appropriately


SEARCHSCHEDULE


Filing Deadline:


Preliminary Interviews:.


Recommendation ofC:1ndidates: ..
Finalist lnterview Procc.


ruary 18, 20]‘)


....... I“el)r1r.1ry26— 1\larch 5, 2019


...........................l\larch 12, 201‘)


...................... Marcli 22-23, 201‘)


Thesedates have been con?rmed, and it is recommended that you plan you 1'


calendar accordingly.


visible in the community. The ideal


candidate will foster a positive culture


within City government.


A bachelor’sdegree(public
administration, business, or related),


and seven to ten years of progressively
responsibleexperience as a professional
city manager, assistant city manager,


or equivalentare required. A master's


degreeand ten plus years of experience
are preferred.Residence within the


municipalboundaries is encouraged.


THECOMPENSATION:
The salary range for this position is


$160,000 to $195,000 dependent
upon experience and quali?cations.
The City ofMill Creek providesan


excellent benefits package including
comprehensivemedical, dental, vision


and life insurance, paid holiday,vacation


and sick leave,vehicle allowance and


professionaldevelopment.Along
with several other local cities, Mill


Creek participates in a 401(a) Social


Security ReplacementPlan through
MEBT (Municipal Employees’Bene?t
Trust). Employeesare enrolled in the


Washington Department of Retirement


Systems Public Employees’Retirement


System (PERS) Pension Plan, and


may also take advantageofdcferred


compensation plansofferings.


THERECRUITMENT
PROCESS
To apply for this exciting career


opportunity, pleasesend your cover letter


and resume electronicallyto:


Peckham &.McKenney
apply@pecl<hamandmckenneycom


Please do not hesitate to contact Andrew


Cvorgeytoll-free at (866) 912-1919, if


YOU1\flVL‘flny qUCStlUUSYCg‘;\l'dlngtl]CSC


positions or the recruitment process.


}—_


MCKENNEY
EXECUTIVE SEARCH


wwwpeckhamandmckenney.com


AGENDA ITEM #G.


Appointment of Community Interview Panel for the City Manager (Bob Stowe... Page 91 of 111







Date: January 22, 2019 WASHINGTON


We, the undersigned Finance/Audit Committee of the City of Mill Creek, recommend approval of the


Payroll Check Batches
Dated Check Numbers Amount
1/10/2019 ACH Wire—Assoc.of WA Cities $81,987.61
1/10/2019 ACH Automatic Deposit Checks $148,067.62
1/10/2019 ACH Wire- FWT & Medicare Taxes $26,137.07
1/10/2019 ACH Wire MEBT—Wilmington Trust $21,509.99
1/10/2019 ACH Wire- ICMA RC- Def. Comp $1,762.87
1/10/2019 ACH Wire- BAC- Flex Spending Acct $1,278.00
1/10/2019 ACH Wire- BAC- Health Savings Acct $324.98
1/10/2019 ACH Wire- MCPD Guild Dues $2,040.00


Total $283,108.14


Voided Checks
Numbers Explanation


CLAIMS APPROVAL


ACH Automatic Deposit checks and ACH Wire Transfers in the amount of $283.l08.14.


We recommend approval of the above stated amount with the following exceptions:


Councilmember


Councilmember


G:\F|NANCE\Restricted (old 1drive)\Payro||\Voucher Coversheets\2019\Payro|| Voucher Approval O1222019.docx
1/16/2019


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $283,108.14 (Audit Com... Page 92 of 111







ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON CITIES


MILL CREEK, CITY OF


ACCOUNT SUMMARY - contains all changes to this account as of 01/09/201902:24:42 PM


FUND: 100 ACCOUNT NUMBER: 186 L


BILLMONTH: 01/2019
COVERAGEMONTH: O1/2019
PAYMENTDUE BY: . - O1/10/2019
CURRENTBILLINGAMOUNT:


I


. $81,987.61


PRIOR OVERAGEOR SHORTAGE: A $0.00


ADJUSTMENTS: - $0.00


TOTALAMOUNTDUE: $81,987.61


100 186 L 012019 0


01/2019 $ S4:(297. G(


If you have duestionsconcerning your billing, please contact the Association of Washington Cities Office at
(800) 562-8981 or (360) 753-4137 or Northwest Administrators, Inc. at (206) 726-3345.


MAIL PAYMENT TO: If payment is made by check, please print a copy of this page and mail it with your payment to the


following address.


ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON CITIES


PO BOX 34303 I


SEATTLE, WA 98124-5603


Page 1 of 3


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $283,108.14 (Audit Com... Page 93 of 111







C
o


F m
am


a


3
4.8.2. _.


3.3%
;


_.
8.3~.§


r
___._a_._.38.


am
ecsm _8_.m


_E
m


3.8u.£
_.


$8
to _.._.am


eE
=


m
_8_m


_§m


__o._a.
£5


w
coz


oo.o
m


u_o>
\>


aao..n=
m


E
oE


.m
:.__u<


cod
m


xom
no


>
...___nm


_.._
.550


a
....._naascam


.::ooo<
50>


E
9".


uounooE
:oE


<
_S


o._.
5


.2
..8<


._8%
o


.85
8_a$


___:_


___£m
:o


.m
am .=


.._O
>


.m
m


xa._.


~o.$o.m
$


m
<


>
a


m
._o~m


:m
._._.
.550


53.2.8
.


u3_._....n
8.3»


.33
8...


xm
._..u_=


m
_o.858


8d
,T


T.
xm


._.oE
8..__


_m
oo._


00.0
M


m
s


E
m


E
m


m
m


w
m


< b::n_
E


m
com


.w
._m


v_._o>
>


00.0
m


m
-


.cm
E


m
m


m
w


m
< U


_._:u_E
m


com
.m


._9_._o>
>


00.0
T. ..


T.T T
m


m
-


xm
._.u_m


cm
.._.


m
o.m


0N
.


.m
m


-
m


o:m
5m


c_
m


>
m


m
._ _m


o_um
s_99%


B
9:


T


T
T.


T


T


m
m


-
8523...


9.3..
.85»:


2am
00.0


..
.


.
T


m
m .


m
o:m


=
._m


:_m>
m


o._ >
__E


m
n_29w


_.o.m
w


r T


.
T


.
T,


m
m


-
oo:m


.S
m


c_
m


>
m


¢._
>


__E
m


u_28w
8...


,T
_


T


m
m


-m
s a__3$_o=


=
oe>


o_aE
2:


22m
00.0


T
T


.
m


m
-.__.<8.§=


m
.__


a___%
m


_o22m
T,


T


8...
m


m
-


852:2.
a___e$_o


22w
......T


X
..m


T
..


T
cod


T


m
m


-
_u<oocm


=
._m


:_Em
E


>
o.nE


m
_5


E
?w


T.
T.


cod
T


m
m


-
m


ocm
._:m


:_=._m
E


>
o_aE


m
c:E


?w
00.0


xm
h


m
E


oo:_
22w


E
oam


m
m


:02
00.0


.8...
m


E
Q


o:_
93%


00.0
.8...


u:m
E


>
o_Q


E
O


:_..._2w
_...m


u_


00.0
m


E
m


E
>


m
n_m


ocm
.w


_m
m


<E:_E
o._n_


<
N


_m
O


O


8...
m


m
-.__.<xssw


o.8__.os_


8...
m


m
-xssm


23_8s_


8...
m


m
-.__o<28:85.


8.m
~o_m


m
m


-
«.8622


«nam
ed


m
m


-
28_B


s_


8...
m


m
-


_c<225$
_m


_8m


8...
m


m
-€38


_a_8w


8...
m


m
-22.0%


_m
_8m


00.0
m


oo:m
>


_u<0590
m


_._._ooc_
uo?m


m
.


xm
oE


oo:
S


o
m


assoc
m


cxm
h


2oQ
8:o


S
m


_>
_n_Rnonm


nem
oaec


S
m


E
oua?ouo?o


>
9...


~%
_$>


>


.82,
532


oc_8n_
o...oou2S


o
8E


8
.390


___s_6
E


0
-


>
>


o<
é__3soo


>
._m


E
E


:m
_w


o_um
_u3w


a
S


Q
— um


sczo
2o~:e~:9m


n_
m


i
2m


_aE
oo


o_o>
oH


m
_.=


m
.w


A
G


EN
D


A ITEM
 #H


.


Payroll and Benefit AC
H


 Paym
ents in the Am


ount of $283,108.14 (Audit C
om


...
Page 94 of 111







Payment Confirmation


Company: City of MillCreek
Requester: Kottke, Sandy


Run Date: 01/11/2019 4:00:45 PM CST


Domestic High Value (Wire)
Payment Categoryturgent/Wire


Status: Pending Approval
Transaction Number: 191BH0025CW90U87


Debit Account Information


Debit Account:
Debit Bani


Debit Account Name: Treas Checking
Debit Currency: USD


Beneficiary Details


Beneficiary Name: MATRIXTRUST COMPANY
Beneficiary Address: NA


Beneficiary City: NA
Beneficiary Postal code: NA


Beneficiary Country: US » United States ofAmerica


Payment Details


Credit Currency: USD
Credit Amount: 21,509.99 /


Optional Information


Senders Reference Number: CITY MILLCREEK


Additional Routing


Intermediary Bank ID:


Control Information


Input: sankottke


/


Bank of America
Merrill Lynch


Template Name: MATRIX/MEET
Template Code: WILTRUST


Beneficiary Account=Beneficiary Bank ID.
JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, NA
1111 POLARIS PKWY
COLUMBUS
US - United States of America


Beneficiary Email:
Beneficiary Mobile Number:


Value Date: 01/11/2019


Beneficiary Information: City of MillCreek n3177e


Receiver Information:


Input Time: 01/11/2019 4:00:36 PM CST


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $283,108.14 (Audit Com... Page 95 of 111







Payment Approval Confirmation Bank of America o’/}(
Company: City of MillCreek "


Requester: Kottke.Sandy
errl? Lynch


Run Date: 01/10/2019 5:22:30 PM CST


Domestic High Value (Wire)
Payment Category:UrgentlWire


Status: Processing by Bank Template Name: ICMA457 Plan
Transaction Number: 191Al1753MX91867 Template Code: ICMA


Debit Account information


Debit Accoun
Debit Account Name: Treas Checking


Debit currency: USD


Bene?clary Details


Beneficiary Name: ICMARC Beneficiary Account-
Beneficlary Address: P.O. Box 64553 Beneficiary Bank ID-


Beneficiary City: Baltimore MANUFACTURERSANDTRADERSTR C
Beneficiary Postal Code: 21264-4553 ONE MANDT PLAZA.15TH FL


Beneficiary Country: US - United States of America BUFFALO
US - United States of America


Beneficiary Email:
Beneficiary Mobile Number:


Payment Details


Credit Currency: USD Value Date: 01/11/2019
Credit Amount: 1,762.87


Optional Information


Senders Reference Number: 302029 Bene?ciary |nfom1ation: City of MillCreek 302029


Additional Routing


Intermediary Bank ID: Receiver information:


Control lnforrnation


Input: sankottke Input Time: 01/10/2019 5:18:01 PM CST
Approved: sankottke Time: 01/10/2019 5:21:21 PM CST


Initial confirmation: \NTX:2019011000467708


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $283,108.14 (Audit Com... Page 96 of 111







RptBatchSumViewForm 1 Page 1 of 1


ACH Cash Pro Online Report Date: 01/10/2019


City of Mill Creek Report Time: 05:33:12 PM


Batch Summary Report by ID Number


Company Name: City of Mill 01 Effective Date: 01l11I2019


ACH ID: — Batch Sequence: 2


Application Name: CCD Payments and Collections Database Name: BAC


Batch Status: Entered Created By: SANKO1'I'KE


Released By:


Name ID Amount D/C Bank ID Account #
Egg Trace #


BAC EENEF”ADM“
$1,273.00 C j C C


Total Amount in Batch Total Countin Batch
Debits $0.00 0


Credits $1 .278.00 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


Grand Total Amount Grand Total Count


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $1 .278.00 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


https://cpo-ach.bankofamerica.com/wcmpr/rptbatchsumviewform.jsp?source=BATCI-ISU... 1/10/2019


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $283,108.14 (Audit Com... Page 97 of 111







RptBatchSumViewForm Page 1 of 1


ACH Cash Pro Online Report Date: 01I1012019


City of MillCreek Report Time: 05:30:25 PM


Batch Summary Report by ID Number .


Company Name: City of Mill01 Effective Date: 01I11I2019


AcH ID: T Batch Sequence: 1


Application Name: CCD Payments and Collections Database Name: BAC


Batch Status: Entered Created By: SANKOTTKE


Released By:


Name ID Amount D/C Bank ID Account # ?t Trace #


BAC 3E”EF'T’‘D'‘’'''‘'
$324.98 c j j. c


Total Amount in Batch Total Count in Batch


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $324.98 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


Grand Total Amount Grand Total Count


Debits $0.00 0


Credits $324.98 1


Prenotes $0.00 0


https://cpo-ach.bankofamerica.com/wcmpr/rptbatchsumviewform.j sp?source=BATCHSU... 1/10/2019


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $283,108.14 (Audit Com... Page 98 of 111







Payment Approval Confirmation


Company: City of MillCreek
Requester: Kottke, Sandy
Run Date: 01/10/2019 5:22:30 PM CST


Domestic High Value (Wire)
Payment Categoryzurgentlwire


Status: Processing by Bank
Transaction Number: 191AI1821I280D86


Debit Account lnfonnation


Debit Bani<:—
Debit Account:_


Debit Account Name: Treas Checking
Debit Currency: USD


Bene?ciary Details


Bene?ciary Name: MillCreek Police Of?cer Guild
Bene?ciary Address: PO Box 13261


Beneficiary City: MillCreek
Beneficiary Postal Code: 98082


Beneficiary country: US - UnitedStates of America


Payment Details


credit currency: USD
Credit Amount: 2,040.00


Optional infonnation


sender's Reference Number: Police Guild


Additional Routing


Intermediary Bank ID:


Control Information


input: sankottke
Approved: sankottke


initial confirmation: WTX:2019011000467707


Template Name
Template Code


Beneficiary Account
Beneficiary Bank ID


Bankof America
MerrillLynch


: GUILDDUES
: GUILD


D
T


BANKOF AMERICA, NA
1424 164TH ST SW
LYNNWOOD
US - United States of America


Beneficiary Email:
Beneficiary Mobile Number:


Value Date


Beneficiary Information


: 01/11/2019


: Police Guild Dues Direct Deposit


Receiver Information:


Input Time
Time


: 01/10/2019 5:18:29 PM CST
: 01/10/2019 5:21:21 PM CST


A”/


AGENDA ITEM #H.


Payroll and Benefit ACH Payments in the Amount of $283,108.14 (Audit Com... Page 99 of 111







October 2, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


MINUTES
City Council Regular Meeting
6:00 PM - Tuesday, October 2, 2018
Council Chambers, 15728 Main Street, Mill Creek, WA 98012
 


 


Minutes are the official record of Mill Creek City Council meetings. Minutes document 
action taken at the council meeting, not what was said at the council meeting.


A recording of this City Council meeting can be found here. 
The agenda packet for this City Council meeting can be found here.


CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Pruitt called the meeting of the Mill Creek City Council to order at 6:00 p.m.


PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Led by Boy Scout Troop 120.


ROLL CALL
Councilmembers Present:
Pam Pruitt, Mayor
Brian Holtzclaw, Mayor Pro Tem
Vince Cavaleri, Councilmember
Mike Todd, Councilmember
Mark Bond, Councilmember
Jared Mead, Councilmember
John Steckler, Councilmember


Councilmembers Absent:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


PRESENTATIONS
A. Check Presentation: 35th Ave SE Reconstruction Project Grant 


Snohomish County Council Member Terry Ryan presented a $50,000 grant to the City 
for reconstruction of 35th Ave SE. 


AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION
B. Robert Fletcher, a Mill Creek resident and member of the Parks HOA, asked Council 


to consider a tree and sidewalk replacement program to be included in the upcoming 
Capital Improvement Plan to address problems with the trees and sidewalks of the 
City owned planter strips. Mr. Fletcher left written comments and pictures of tree and 
sidewalk concerns with the Clerk to be entered into record. 
 
Edward Stroman, a Mill Creek resident and member of the Parks HOA, asked Council 
to consider a tree and sidewalk replacement program to be included in the upcoming 
Capital Improvement Plan to address problems with the trees and sidewalks of the 
City owned planter strips. Mr. Stroman left written comments with the Clerk to be 
entered into record. 


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Council Meeting Minutes of October 2, 2018 Page 100 of 111



https://www.cityofmillcreek.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_9100852/File/Agendas%20and%20Minutes/Audio%20Recordings/2018/Audio%2010-2-18.mp3

https://millcreek.civicweb.net/filepro/documents/26071

https://millcreek.civicweb.net/document/26159/10-2-18%20Audience%20Communication%20-%20Robert%20Fletcher.pdf

https://millcreek.civicweb.net/document/26160/10-2-18%20Audience%20Communication%20-%20Ed%20Stroman.pdf





October 2, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


 
Anne Chamberlain, a Mill Creek resident, spoke on behalf of James Stibich asking 
Council to consider a tree and sidewalk replacement program to be included in the 
upcoming Capital Improvement Plan to address problems with the trees and sidewalks 
of the City owned planter strips.
 
John Turner, a Mill Creek resident, concurred with previous speakers and asked 
Council for help with this issue.    
 
Herbie Martin, a Mill Creek resident, asked Council to consider allowing Mill Creek 
AMVETS Post 2018 free use of space in City Hall North. Mr. Martin provided a letter 
summarizing his comments. 
 
Jon Ramer, a Mill Creek resident, spoke on behalf of AMVETS Post 2018 Commander 
Paul Fredrickson asking Council for permanent use of a vacant office in City Hall 
North for the Post. 
 


NEW BUSINESS
C. Appointment to the Art & Beautification Board 


 
Councilmember Bond announced that he and Councilmember Steckler interviewed 
Guy Armfield to fill one of the two vacant positions on the Board. 


Councilmember Bond made a motion to appoint Guy Armfield to the Art & 
Beautification Board. Councilmember Steckler seconded the motion. The 
motion passed unanimously.  


D. Interfund Loan from the General Fund to the Surface Water Utility Fund  


Interim City Manager Bob Stowe explained that a $500,000 loan from the General 
Fund to the Surface Water Fund will account for the Sweetwater Ranch infrastructure 
failure, a rate analysis, and consultant design package that will address many of the 
surface water issues over the next several years. 
 
Director of Finance Peggy Lauerman shared a PowerPoint presentation that gave an 
overview of the loan. 


Councilmember Cavaleri made a motion to approve Ordinance 2018-836 AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MILL CREEK, WASHINGTON, PROVIDING FOR 
AN INTERFUND LOAN FROM THE GENERAL FUND NO. 001 TO THE SURFACE 
WATER UTILITY FUND NO. 401 IN ORDER TO FINANCE EMERGENCY REPAIRS 
AND ESTABLISHING THE TERMS FOR REPAYMENT OF SAID INTER-FUND 
LOAN. Councilmember Todd seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously.  


E. Estimates of Revenue and Expenditures for Current 2017-2018 Budget and 
Preliminary 2019-2020 Budget Estimates
 
Interim City Manager Bob Stowe introduced Director of Finance Peggy Lauerman to 


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Council Meeting Minutes of October 2, 2018 Page 101 of 111



https://millcreek.civicweb.net/document/27201/10-2-18%20AMVETS%20Letter%209-27-18.pdf

https://millcreek.civicweb.net/document/26157/10-2-18%20Interfund%20Loan%20-%20Surface%20Water.pdf





October 2, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


provide Council with an update on the biennial-to-date revenues and expenditures in 
comparison to the City's 2017-2018 amended biennial budget, and estimates of the 
2019-2020 budget estimates. 
 
Director Lauerman walked Council through a PowerPoint presentation that highlighted 
the budget schedule, 2017-2018 General Fund estimates and financial drivers, 2019-
2020 budget outcomes, general fund estimates, revenue assumptions, operating 
expenditure estimates, salary and benefit considerations, personnel requests, and key 
CIP issues. 
 
Council engaged in discussion. 


F. City Manager Rebecca Polizzotto Employment Agreement Termination
(to be considered following the Executive Session) 


CONSENT AGENDA
G. City Council Meeting Minutes of August 2, 2018
H. City Council Meeting Minutes of August 22, 2018


The minutes were removed from the consent agenda and will be brought back at a 
later date. 


REPORTS
I. Mayor/Council


Mayor Pruitt reported on the new FCC rules regarding 5G technology and asked 
Interim City Manager Bob Stowe to start looking into City preparedness.  


J. City Manager
 Council Planning Schedule 


K. Staff 
 Farmers Market Recap 


 
Council engaged in discussion. 


AUDIENCE COMMUNICATION
L. Carmen Fisher, a Mill Creek resident, expressed concerns over the potential lack of 


parking if the Farmers Market is moved to Tuesday.


RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION
(Confidential Session of the Council)


M. At 7:25 p.m. the meeting recessed to executive session for up to 90 minutes. City 
Attorney Scott Missall was present during the executive session. 
 


 Discussion of the performance of a public employee per RCW 42.30.110(1)(g)
 Discuss potential litigation pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)


 


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Council Meeting Minutes of October 2, 2018 Page 102 of 111



https://millcreek.civicweb.net/document/26158/10-2-18%20Estimate%20of%20Revenue%20and%20Expenditures.pdf





October 2, 2018 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES


At 7:25 p.m. Councilmember Todd made a motion to extend the regular meeting 
up to 90 meetings. Councilmember Steckler seconded the motion. The motion 
passed unanimously.  


RECONVENE TO REGULAR SESSION
N. At 8:35 p.m. the executive session concluded. At 8:40 p.m. the meeting reconvened to 


regular session. 
 
Mayor Pruitt read a personal statement in support of former City Manager Rebecca 
Polizzotto. 
 
Extension of Interim City Manager Bob Stowe's contract will be brought to Council on 
October 9, 2018. 
 
Councilmember Bond thanked staff for their hard work. 


Councilmember Steckler made a motion to approve Resolution 2018-574 
immediately terminating the Professional Services Agreement of Rebecca C. 
Polizzotto as Mill Creek City Manager and approving a separation agreement, 
each effective October 2, 2018. Councilmember Mead seconded the motion. The 
motion passed unanimously.  


ADJOURNMENT
With no objection, Mayor Pruitt adjourned the meeting at 8:47 p.m. 


Pam Pruitt, Mayor


Gina Pfister, Acting City Clerk


AGENDA ITEM #I.


City Council Meeting Minutes of October 2, 2018 Page 103 of 111







 


Tentative Council Meeting Agendas 
Subject to change without notice 


Last updated: January 17, 2019 
 


 


February 5, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due January 28) 


 Council Position #2 Interviews 


 Police Motorcycle Replacement 


 


February 12, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due February 4) 


 AWC Center for Quality Communities 


Scholarship Nominee Selection 


 MCMC Amendments – Code Enforcement 


 The Farm Development Agreement 


 


February 26, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due February 18) 


 


March 5, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due February 25) 


 


March 12, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due March 4) 


 


March 22, 2019 


 City Manager Finalists – Community & Staff 


Engagement 


 


March 23, 2019 


 City Manager Finalists – Council Interviews 


 


March 26, 2019 


(Agenda Summary due March 18) 


 Sports Park Concession Stand Contract 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


FEBRUARY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


          1  2  


       


3  4  5  6  7  8  9  


       


10  11  12  13  14  15  16  


       


17  18  19  20  21  22  23  


       


24  25  26  27  28      


       


MARCH 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


          1  2  


       


3  4  5  6  7  8  9  


       


10  11  12  13  14  15  16  


       


17  18  19  20  21  22  23  


       


24 31 25  26  27  28  29  30  


       


APRIL 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


  1  2  3  4  5  6  


       


7  8  9  10  11  12  13  


       


14  15  16  17  18  19  20  


       


21  22  23  24  25  26  27  


       


28  29  30          


       


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


AGENDA ITEM #K.


City Manager Council Planning Schedule Page 104 of 111







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Possible Work Session Topics for Discussion 


 Business signs  


 Business License Fee Increase 


 MCCA storm water discussions  


 Utility Project Management  


 Hotel/Motel Theater Tax  


 Mill Creek Blvd Vision  


 ST3 Stations 


 EGUV Development Agreement 


 SR 96 – Consideration of Speed 


 5G Presentation 


 Legislative Retreat 


 Gold Star Memorial 


 


MAY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


      1  2  3  4  


       


5  6  7  8  9  10  11  


       


12  13  14  15  16  17  18  


       


19  20  21  22  23  24  25  


       


26  27  28  29  30  31    


       


JUNE 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


            1  


       


2  3  4  5  6  7  8  


       


9  10  11  12  13  14  15  


       


16  17  18  19  20  21  22  


       


23 30 24  25  26  27  28  29  


       


JULY 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 


  1  2  3  4  5  6  


       


7  8  9  10  11  12  13  


       


14  15  16  17  18  19  20  


       


21  22  23  24  25  26  27  


       


28  29  30  31        


       


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


Council 


AGENDA ITEM #K.


City Manager Council Planning Schedule Page 105 of 111







...
:;


_i
.


I


Z
E


N
H


.
8


m
m


w
_<


__
2c


:m


>
2


m
w


m
m


cz
m


nm
zo


z
w


om
an_


<
_m


m
::


m
is


_u
_<


_ -
<


<
m


n_
._


m
m


Q
m


<
_


zo
<


2=
_.


2
3.


N
o;


O
o:


:o
__


O
:m


:,E
m


_.
m


_r
?m


m
_<


_m
E


m
qm


?
_<


__
__ O


qm
m


f
<


<
> 8


3»


_<
_E


S
m


m
m


?m
E


m
o3


o_
m


_
80


08
9.


>
2


w
w


m
m


S
_2


om
:o


:
w


om
a 3m


m
=


:o
m


__
<


=
_.


::
m


m
n8


o:
3m


_.
:


m
on


o:?
m


w
m


: m
? E


m
oo


::
o_


_
3m


m
::


©
_


:2
sE


m
.H


<
<


m
mm


m
a m


a Em
w


om
a


B
m


m
zs


c.._
.:m


m
m


m
sq


m .6
1


E
5


>
1


m
w


8s
_.


._
8a


o:
w


om
a S


m
m


zz
mm


m
:U


m
8:


38
E


m
w


m
.


O
>


_:
_u


._
.O


om
cm


m


_~
O


_.
._


.
0>


_:
_u


im
am


m
xm


>
um


m
:~


...
m


m
E


.m
=


=
.:


m
im


m
E


m
:
m


cm
m


m
zm


z.
m


i:
gm


m
sz


m
m


am
:


\§
.m


:m
=


m
m


Q
s\


m
B


.m
um


im
D


8x
3m


:


®
S


\
>


3,
S


.m
E


8:
:


m
am


a?


>
zz


oc
zo


m
_s


m
zq


m


w
om


a <<
m


m m
so


oc
w


m
m


m
a


3
U


_«
m


o8
?


Z
12


0
m


zm
sq


E
m


U
m


om
3U


m
? 2


09
50


:
_<


_m
m


.::
@


m
mE


m
:_


m s
E


m
:


E
m


:_
m


81
om


_
§m


m
m


2m
:o


:
_o


8_
.m


o.
n


<
5:


cm
E


m
m


m
s?


m
a.


>
_u


_u
_~


O
<


>
_.


om
_<


__
zc


._
.m


m


_<
_o


.._
o: 8


m
_u


_u
8<


m
E


m
gm


_o
<_<


_m
3_


om
«


m
3m


:.
m


_o
v8


<
m


Q 3
m


__ E
m


zm
sq


m
so


m
.


O
_u


U
m


cm
_z


m
m


m


>
.


_.
__


m
8:


om
_


_u
?m


m
m


2m
:o


:
_u


3_
.m


o.
.


_<
_m


3c
m


a
>


E
s.


_m
_Q


m
m


xm
a


: E
m


oo
:8


3
<


5:
cm


m
vu


8<
m


o_
o:


E
m


U
m


o.
2


O
oc


:o
__


_<
_m


m
::


@
.U
:m


o8
w


3%
E


83
80


.
E


m
:
:<


5:
m


m..
_:


m
_ .4


03
E


m
w


om
aw


<
<


O
_.


_A
.


U
S


E
m


oo
cs


oz
<


<
__


__o
m m


gm
8


9<
m


$8
.8


?
.2


85
5


m
ac


E
m


m
xu


m
o8


:o
:8


ow
m


m
?m


m
E


m
a


U
m


m
m<


<
_E


m
__ o


o:
82


3o
<


E
@


82
,5


8.


_U
_.


o.
_m


0.
h


E
83


_<
_m


=
m


m
m U
cg


cm
<


<
m


_o
o3


m
q


m
qa


su
oo


33
m


:8
8


:m
_v


..E
m


__
N


m
oo


im
i


8:
E


m
E


m
m


m
am


zo
s.m
rm


m
_m


o _:
8_


.3
m


Q
E


m
w


om
a E


m
:m


:m
:3


m
co


xm
:


<
<


_E
30


8
vm


o_
o_


m
_o


ox
_:


m ..2
m


n_
Q


:_
o:


m
_


m
8:


m
m


.m
:m


8.
3


2
:<


<
oc


_o
_ B


m
xm


m
m


sm
m 8


?m
m


os
oz


.”
8


O
oc


:o
__


3m
3_


om
B


.
O


o:
:o


=
3m


3c
m


w
m


$%
_m


1m
_:


:2
m


m
az


m
=


. E
m


<:m
<


m m
:<


_1
o3


.m
:o


:
<


<
o:


_q


cm
m


am
.


U
S


8
3&


8
m


c?
m


:2
8


m
:m


w
m


2:
83


8:
82


w
e


2
_m


:9
2


8
E


m
no


c:
o_


_
sE


m
:


E
m


m
m


im
q.


U
cg


cm
E


m
zs


m
q


8
?m


m
o:


oi
<


_m
m


3m
:.


U
:m


o8
?


5%
38


25
m


m
U


cn
cm


E
m


:
m


:m
zm


m
gm


a 8
E


m
sm


om
m


x_
m


m
o8


:o
:m


m
o E


m
.“


E
..o


«3
m


:o
:


om
m


w
m


q S
o


3
O


oc
:o


__
5m


m
:9


m
cm


?m
im


m
g 8


no
58


E
m


U
om


?q
m


.
w


rm
8:


E
m


?
oc


.:m
m


o: 36
3


:2
cm


o<
m


:<:m
_v


E
_ m


?
E


m
m U


92
E


E
m


_o
3_


.m
oHm


mo
o:


82
E


m
m


_o
m


_:
©


.._
:m


=
N


m
o_
8w


E
m


m
m


s?
m


zo
s.


Z
o<


m
3_


om
_.


3.
B


3
m


m
m


c_
.>


m
O


O
C


Z
O


__
u


_<
_m


m
:z


m
_<


__
Z


C
._


.m
m


AGENDA ITEM #L.


Staff Art & Beautification Board Meeting Minutes of November 14, 2018 Ar... Page 106 of 111







_<
_m


3_
om


1_
.u


.:_
m


m :m
am


::
m


__
m


a E
m


oo
::


3m
:2


m
8


U
:m


o8
?


K
in


sE
_o


:
m


:m
:o


2m
a


m
:m


<
<


oc
_a


_:
oo


8o
_.


m
2m


.


U
cg


cm
m


2m
8a


E
m


.”
m


o3
m


2
E


m
m


8:
m


m
m


:m
:m


m
1a


.4
03


m
aa


2_
o:


m
_


_:
2m


_.
<


_m
<


<
m <<


m
«m


am
-


oo
:3


::
m


a.
m


:m
:o


2m
a


E
m


2E
m


a<
:m


32
m_


oo
m


:o
: <


<
m


mU
m


m
m


ao:
m


_.
_m


«m
_a


m
:_


o_
m


_
92


E
m


w
ma


m
a_


m
oa


m
U


m
:o


< E
2:


E
m


co
ox


E
m


.“ E
m


m
90


,3
8


m
mm


?m
m


oc
?o


m
.


._
.:m


~m
<


<
m


m m
?m


m
_a


m
:2


E
m


.“
oo


:2
::


m
a


E
m


_o
om


2_
o:


.


U
cn


cm
:..


m
:a


o:
m


a Em
”


E
m


?m
36


:2
U


m
oo


::
._


_o
2


o<
m


?
E


m
?m


m
_a


m
:2


E
m


a
U


m
_:


m_
:..


_c
m


:.a
m


_ _:
3m


_a
:©


.2
o<


<
: O


m
:8


1
:m


_m
vm


:.
2


<
<


m
m m


cm
m


m
m


?m
a


3
E


81
3


o2
<


_<
_m


:m
©


m
_.m


o:
m


8<
<


m
E


m
.“E


m
am


<
<


m
m:


88
_:


8:
:m


.a
o:


m
:a


m
m


a <<
m


m :
2


E
m


m
o_


m _
:a


_<
_a


cm
_ _


:<
o_


<
m


a m
2E


m
2.


3m
m


:a
m


:o
:_


a
cm


ao
<


<
:U


_m
<


m
a.


<
<


_E
E


om
m


E
m


__
_:


_:
m


2 «
m


3m
2A


m
. U
cn


cm
cm


m
m


:
3o


<
_:


n
E


35
:


E
m


_.
:a


_<
_a


:m
_ _m


m
:m


_m
:m


m
_:


:_
:m <<


2:
__


_.
_<


_:
o


O
:


E
m


rm
:a


._
_


o:
m


: w
co


:m
::


m
: m
:a


_<
_m


::
:m


1
m


::
m


1:
.m


2 E
m


.“ E
m


m
:m


oa
o2


m
m <


<
m


w
m 2


.:u
o:


m
:2m


:a
m


:o
c_


a
cm


oo
:m


aa
m


«m
a


..2
_:


o_
:m


_o
:.


_u
8_


.m
o2 U


m
m


_.
@


:m
a


O
::


m
w


m
_a


<
<


_: m
m


am
m


a
E


m
..


2E
m


_.
m


<
<


m
m 3


0:
:


E
m


<o
oc


_a
cm


_.
:o


_c
am


a m
:a


E
m


.“ m
__


m
2 9.


m
:m


oa
o2


m
m <


<
m


m:
_o


m
_:


2:
2


8
o:


oo
m


m o:
m


m
9.


_:
:_


m
o:


m
:o


m m
:a


m
_N


m
. O


o:
:o


__
3m


::
cm


«
w


8o
_a


m
1


__
2m


a E
m


_:
8:


:m
.a


o:
E


m
28


2$
m


_o
oS


E
m


om
mEm


..m
..m


m
a: :


m
w


m
.


O
:m


:
_w


:o
:m


:m
: <


<
m


m_
: m


9m
m


:._
m


:2
.w


m
_a


<
<


_:
m


m
_a :


m
<


<
o:


_a
=


m
2 E


m
_:


8«
::


m
:o


:
.4


03
3o


m
2


am
m


:m
_o


_m 8
_m


m
m


2. _
<


_m
3_


om
w >


3:
.._


m
_a


m
m


xm
a


2
_.


_m
::


m
2m


m
:a


zm
<


m
_ ®


m
E


m
2


<
<


m
«m


o<
<


:m
am


. U
cn


cm
:o


..m
a Em


2
Im


::
m


2m
:m


a c
m


m
m


m
a


:m
:.2


m
E


m
Q


m
m


ao
:


o.
“U


m
__


_u
m


_.
::


. O
:m


:
w


co
:m


:m
: m
aa


m
a


E
m


<<
<


m
?m


E
m


o<
<


:m
«m


69
.0


3
2


_m
m


om
::


m E
m


_u
m


::
. O


oc
:o


__
_<


_m
::


cm
«


m
8o


x_
m


1
m


aa
m


a Em
.“


U
oo


®
m


E
m


:
:m


a m
<


_m
_o


: 8
._


_.
_<


m 0
:“


E
m


_.
m


:a
._


_
92


E
m


<
_m


_o
: <


<
m


m_
.m


m
__


<
81


:_
m 03


35
:


8
m


m
m :


92
8


__
<


m 9
4


E
m


_m
:a


. _
<


_m
3_


m
m


?>
32


_m
_a


..m
2E


m
.“


O
m


E
m


:
:m


m
am


a
:8


8
:_


m
8:


om
_


w
m


2m
<


m
:o


m
.


U
cg


cm
22


3
E


m
.“
2E


m
<E


m
?m


c:
m


c_
m


8
22


_:
cm


ox m
82


E
m


.E
m


..m
3=


<:m
3m


oo
c_


a
U


m
1m


3o
<


m
a.


O
o:


:o
__


::
m


3_
om


«
m


8o
x_


m
«


m
m


w
m


a
E


m
2E


m
am


3
m


:a
qm


m
m


2o
2


m
:o


c_
a


cm
«m


3o
<


m
a


.4
03


cm
:m


_.._
.:m


w
om


w
a


m
m


qm
m


a.
_<


_m
3c


m
«


>
::


.._
m


_a
m


aa
m


a Em
»


E
m


E
_:


m
m


:E


2m
m_


m _
m


m
m <.


m
2m


_m
E


m
:


E
m


0.
39


.
_o


om
ao


:m
. U


:o
__


._
mm


m
_a m


:m
<


<
oc


_a
oo


:.a
:c


m _
oo


::
@


8:
m


8:
m


m
. U


cg
cm


m
m


xm
a


2
_<


__
__ O


am
m


xm
:o


:_
a


U
m


om
__


m
a 92


m
_:


om
2


_m
_o


m
_o


<
< <
<


:m
2m


_m
m


o_
m


_m
<


2:
cm


m
.m


:a
_:


m
.


0:
m


__
.
w


co
:m


:m
: m
:a


_<
_m


:._
:m


w >
::


.._
m


_a
82


E
m


.“
2


m
:o


c_
a
am


om
__


m
a 92


.


_<
_m


3U
m


«
_w


:_
m


m
. :o
8m


::
m


::
o:


m
a m


a_
m


oa
m


um
:o


<
E


E
m


m
ow


m
m


m
m


__
m


2m
a o


:
E


m
m


m
oo


:a
_m


m
:m


__
_.


_u
83


_u
m


3.
.m


8
_u


_m
::


m
a O


o:
:3


c:
2<


... U
cn


cm
m


x_
o_


m
_:


m
a


E
m


2 m
o3


m
_m


:a
<


<
m


m
m


o_
a o


:._
m


m
8«


m
2


<
<


m
mm


<
m


:.E
m


__
<m
o_


a 8
am


<
m


_o
vm


7o
..


_<
_m


:2
m


m
«


>
3.


2_
m


_a
m


m
xm


a
2


58
:m


m
a 8


1m
2m


?m
:o


m E
m


m
m


oo
:a m


oa
m


m
m


m
.


U
cn


cm
m


m
_a


2
<


<
m


m_
m


8:
m


_m
_<.._


:m
8


9.
2


2.
_<


_m
3_


om
a U


_o
_4


:m
:


m
m


xm
a


<
<


:<2
_m


_m
m


_:
@om


__
m


a m
:


__
cU


m
om


_m_2
m


m
.2


_m
._


_
_<


_m
3_


m
m


«
m


::
m


2
m


ow
m


m
a


m
:a


_:
m


8m
a


$5
8


m
aa


__
<


<
m


m _2
m


m
m


:..
m


a m
m m


:
S


m
m


om
_m_


2m
m


.Q
_m


._
_


_u
_«


m
o8


«
X


22
8:


E
m


2 E
m


C
O


O
<


<
m


m:c
_<


c_
m


m
om


_m
.


92
E


m
m


::
m


xm
a m
w


m
m


m 3m
<


:o
2


?m
2m


o.
_ E


m
:


.w
:m


am
<


m
_o


b:
:m


:2
m


2m
:m


a9
...


m
mc


vm
om


_m 92
:9


2
_:


o_
:a


m
m m


__ J
?m


m
2


:o
3m


m
.


_<
_m


::
_o


m
1


m
::


m
2


m
g:


82
__


§m
m


m
:8


a.
_


E
m


m
:8


8
m


_m
_u


8_
u:


m
8.oo


_.
_:


o_
_3


m
:


m
2m


ox
_m


1:
8:


.:m
a


E
m


U
om


qa
E


m
.“


E
m


o:
©


_:
m


_
am


<
m


_o
U


::
m


:2:m
a m


a_
:.m


w
m


:2
<


_m
8:


.
._


.:m
o:


o_
:m


_ am
m


?:<
<


m
m8


o
m


x:
m


<
m


om
:2m
:a


U
m


om
3m


U
m


:2
E


_o
._


. Im
m


_m
o m


aa
m


a Em
2 2


_m
_:


2m
<


m
m


.a
:m E
m


:c
3:


m
w


9.
:.m


__
E


m
m E


m
.“


_m
m


a 8
E


m
m


co
om


m
mo


_.
. E
m


2a
m


<
m


_o
c:


:m
:2


._:
_<


_o
o>


_ E
m


w
ma


o:
_<


o:
m


am
<


m
_o


_u
::


m
:2 :0


2
<


<
2:


_:
_<


_O
O


>
.<<


:_
o:


_m
_u


m
26


.a
m


m
:a


Im
8:


_u
m


2A
. >


_m
a< <


<
:o


o<
<


:m
a


E
m


2_
m


:a
<


<
oc


_a
:_


2
m


m
__ 8


E
m


am
vm


:m
m


m
cm


om
cm


m
:m


w :c
m


:m
:a 8


:9
2


E
m


3
_:


<
<


<
<


__
.


_<
_m


::
_o


m
w


U
ao


23
m


:
82


E
m


2E
m


?m
<


<
m


m8
o


3:
0:


38
o:


E
m


_<
_O


O
>


m
:a


:.m
2 3


06
vm


ou
_m


Z
o<


m
::


_o
m


«
K


:
N


oa
m


_m
m


m
c_


.>
m


O
O


C
Z


O
__


.
_<


_m
m


:z
m


_<
__


Z
C


._
.m


m


AGENDA ITEM #L.


Staff Art & Beautification Board Meeting Minutes of November 14, 2018 Ar... Page 107 of 111







<
<


__
_ ”m


_m
”m


”o
E


_”
6m


__
w


m om
_m


U
”m


”E
m :m


”:
”m


.
_<


_m
””


E
m


” >
””


”.
”_


m
_n


_”
m


_”
E


m
”


”<
<


o x
m


<””.
o”


:m
:”


m
8”


_<
__


__ O
”m


m
xm


<
<


m
”m


E
m


®
m


”:
m


_.
”m


m
sg


E
m


_<
_O


O
>


.
._


.:m
n_


m
<


m
_o


c”
:m


”.
”


_m
<


<
”.


_m
” c”


oc
©


:”
um


ou
_m ”


”o
3


m
m


m
””


_m
”o


o”
m


m
”m


_<
__


__ 0”
m


m
x.


_<
_m


3_
om


”_
u_


ow
3m


:
m


”m
”m


q E
m


”m
:m


<
<


m
m


”.
_”


m
”m


:E
m_”


”.
_o


o”
”m


:o
m E
m


”<o
_c


3m
o”


_”
:.o


””
”.


m
”_


o:
.


U
cn


cm
”m


_”
E


m
”
”:


m
<


U
mEm


”m
_m


<
<


m
<”o


ca
se


3
”:


o”
m


m
8”


_m
m


.
_<


_m
””


8m
”>


””
:”


_m
_q


”m
nc


m
m


”m
Q


E
m


”
E


m
”m


U
m


3o
”m


E
8”


3m
”_


o:
oz


E
m


”.
m


”:
”m


.
””


m
=


mm
ag


_m
m


”x
m


.


U
cg


cm
_m


”m
m


m
”.


”m
n_


E
m


sm
x”


vm
:m


_ __
m


6_
um


o”
m


8:
._


_
>


__
3m


”:
cm


”m
m


m
m


am
q ”


o
__


_m
E


m
um


”.
m


_.
_o


:”
_<


_m
””


._
om


” >
”3


”_
m


_Q
m


m
xm


q _”
”m


”m
”m


:o
_:


©
E


m
m


3o
:”


.”
o”


_o
2o


:_
m


”8
”. m


m
_”


.m
Q E
”


m
”.


”_
m


xm
”8


”.
m


<
<


m
mU


om
m


_c
_m


. U
cm


cm<
<


m
m c


oi
n


8
_o


o_
1:


”o
E


_m
.


zm
x”


_m
m


”.
m


_
__


u_
m


om
om


__
m


Q
:o


3m
._


_
O


oc
”.


o_
_”


”.
m


3U
m


”
m


”m
ox


_m
”
vo


E
”m


Qo
c”


m
”<


_m
oo”


__
:m


Q
8


_m
m


<
m


._
_


O
:m


_”
w


:o
:m


”.
m


”.
m


m
xm


q E
m


”
_.


_m
:”


<m
. Lm


ox
m


o:
E


m
<


m E
m


”.
_o


_3
m


3m
o”


_.
m


oo
ov


__
E


o_
co


_m
Q


m
m 3


o”
m


_o
om


_m x
sm


s”
E


”:
3”


E
m


”
_:


m
”m


m
g


9.
Im


:”
<


.O
o:


:o
=


3m
””


__
um


”
m


”m
ow


_m
”


83
m


m
”. <


<
m


m”
8”


E
m


<
_m


_o
”.


m
”<


_
E


m
”m


<
<


m
mm


o”
”_


m
o:


m
m


_m
m cc


”
U


cg
cm


m
:o


c_
Q


”m
m


o:
oc


”
8


._
.m


””
<_m


<
m


:
sE


o
<


<
m


mm
”o


::
n_


o_
:”


E
©


E
m


”
”_


B
m


.
U


_”
m


o8
”


Z
2”


o”
”m


”m
Q 8


E
m


”_m
m


<
m o


c”
E


m
”.


m
””


.m
m


”8
3o


<
m


8”
<


<
m


”q
_


U
cg


cm
m


m
xm


q m
co


c”
E


m
m


ro
umm”


a
_”


”m
_x


_”
6 m


co
c”


E
m


_E
”m


”<<
<


oc
_Q


U
m


_m
m


m U
o_


_”
_o


m
_. O
o:


:o
=


3m
:


m
”m


ox
_m


”
m


m
_o


_ E
m


._
.o


<
<


: O
m


:”
m


” <
<


m
mm


o_
o_ 8


”m
m


_q
m


:”
m


m
mm


_m
_m


om
8


$2
0


m
o E


m
<<


<
o:


_n
_”


._
” :


m
<


m 8
m


o8
>


E
m


”<
<


oo
a.


_.
m


m
” n


cm
m


”_
o”


. ””
o3


U
cp


cm
E


m
m


8
c_


<
m E


m
_.


u.
om


”Q
:o


””
_m


<
<


o”
x


8
Q


m
m


o”
E


m_
<


__
__ O


”m
m


x E
”m


”.
<


m
m


”m
8”


E
m


”E
m


_
_m


m
”.


m
_.U
cg


cm
”m


_”
.”


<
<


m
mm


oo
oq


oU
uo


””
c”


._
”< 8


”
E


m
co


m
a 8


n_
”m


<
<


oc
”


m
uo


m
m


__
o_


m
<


_m
8:


.
_<


_m
3c


m
”


>
”3


”_
m


_q
”m


_”
E


m
”


E
m


O
o3


””
E


”.
_”


< U
m


<
o:


q
oz


”
_m


o”
o_


m
”m


Q
m


m
o”


=
m


m
o__


<
__


__ O
”m


m
w


._”
_m


m
__


””
_m


m
m


_”
.m


m
”<


_”
_m


.
cc


”
m


um
m


xm
8


sE
m


”
E


m
”m


m
=


”<_m
. _<


_m
3U


m
”


U
_o


x”
:m


”_
m


c”
m


m
QEm


”
<


<
oo


o_
_”


.<
__


_m
m


ag
_w


oE
m


__
m


”m
””


<
E


m8
:m


<
m s


E
m


”
_<


__
__ O


”m
m


x 3
m


m
3


E
m


”
”m


m
”m


m
o”


.
O


oc
”8


=
””


.m
”_


m
”m


ox
_m


”
_m


”o
:m


E
” cu


E
m


m
xm


””
6_


m9
.


O
m


””
:m


_. O
>


-
_”


:m
m m


8”
.


o”
”o


c”
_m


”m
m


sq
_m


o”
o<


<
E


©<
<


_E
8:


”_
m


””
_.


3
_<


=
__ O


”m
m


x_
<


<
m


m
”m


©
”o


<
s”


5<
<


_E
”m


m
am


:”
m


.
m


<
m


”<”_
3m


<
<


m
m


”S
m


x_
<


<
m


:m
<


mE
o”


m
m


m
m


q
oc


”
”m


m
vo


:m
=


o_
__


”_
m


m
.


<
<


mm
:o


c_
q


_o
ox


m
”


m
_”


o<
<


_”
.© 3


”c
m


oo
3_


”.
©


m
Q


m
m


”E
m


”_
o”


. E
m


”m
m


ao
”


m
”E


m
xm


”_
o:


U
m


om
cm


m E
m


”
<


<
oc


_Q
cm


”m
<


<
m


”
”m


m
U


o:
m


E
__


_”
_m


m
8”


m
m


”<
_o


m
m


. U
cn


cm
”m


_”
E


m
”


”m
m


ov
_ms


E
o


so
_o


”6
m


”_
_<


m E
_<


__
__ O


”m
m


x
m


m
m


”:
E


”m
”m


m
”m


a E
E


8
_m


”o
_.


m
o”m
ag


m
m


xm
q E


m
”


_”
_o


m 9
5:


8
oc


”
8


E
m


”:
_”


U
om


m
8_


m
.


O
o:


:o
__


3m
:


m
”m


ox
_m


” ”
m


_”
E


m
”


E
m


”m
m


m
m


””
.m


8
cm


m
_o


”
o”


”m
m


o_
o_


m
oo


3E
o


””
o3


oc
”m


E
m


o”
2:


:
O


”m
m


xU
m


om
cm


m o”
m


: 9.
oz


”
m


<
m


:”
m


.w
oE


m
__


m
m


m
3m


8
_o


m n
o.


8
m


56
U


cm
”.8”


”o
c”


_m
3


m
m<


<
m


__
.


U
.”


m
o8


” Z
2”


E
8”


3m
o_


E
m


_m
om


”Q
E


m
”


m
3”


m
Q


n_
_”


_o
:m


_ o
o”


”.
””


.m
”.


”mz
m


m
qm


q 8
cm


m
:c


”:
_”


”m
q


8
E


m
” 9


”
_u


”E
m


<
.


zm
s”


w
cm


_z
m


m
m


m
m


_u
om


”m


>
u.


_o
cm


z_
sm


z.
”


<
<


_E
so


o_
o_


.m
o”


8”
._ E
m


”_
:©


m
o_


_.
o:


”3
m


q m
”m


”:
v.


3.
I


D
02


8”
.


w
”_


”_
_n m


a:
E


m
_m


o:


Z
o<


m
”:


U
m


” 3
.


M
03


m
m


m
c_


.>
m


O
O


C
Z


O
__


u
_<


_m
m


”_
zm


_<
__


zc
”m


m


AGENDA ITEM #L.


Staff Art & Beautification Board Meeting Minutes of November 14, 2018 Ar... Page 108 of 111







§E
A


N
H


.m
,_ W


_<
:2


C
._


.m
m


>
2


m
m


m
m


cz
m


nm
zo


z
w


om
an_<


_m
m


::
m


fo
o


E
s


-
<


<
m


a_
._


m
m


Q
m


<
.


U
m


om
3_


om
..


.3
.


N
o.


5
O


oc
:o


__
03


33
3.


a?
m


_s
m


_:
m


qm
m


r_<
__


__ 08
¢?


<
<


>8
3»


_s
_:


S
m


m
m


6
S


m
o3


o_
m


_
68


3
9.


>
3


m
.w


m
m


cz
m


om
zo


s
_.


u.
om


3_
B


m
m


as
om


.
_<


__
:E


m
m


Q
oo


ca
m


a
m


em
o: H


m
xm


:E
E


m
oo


c:
o_


_
3m


m
::


o_
:2


2:
3


E
m


m
m


m
: m


m Em
w


om
a


32
2.


8.


._
.:m


m
m


m
sq


m 31
:5


>
2


m
w


m
m


c§
._


.o
m


:o
:


w
om


3_
S


m
m


zz
mom


:
U


m
.n


oc
:o


_ 3
2¢


.


n>
F


._
.O


om
om


m


Z
O


E
.


o>
_.


_.


£9
35


3
>


um
m


:~
..


im
ac


m
xm


.U
$m


m
:‘


._
..


«$
33


m
3m


:.
E


m
:
m


co
am


zm
s.


Q
5?


>
s.


o:
m


=
mmq


ém
xq


m


m
m


E
.m


:=
.:


m
im


m
.U


m
E


mD
§§


m
:


®
5\


E
33


5
ge


n:
m


w
m


oi
m


a


>
zz


oc
zo


m
_<


_m
zq


m


O
oo


&
_:


m
.8


«
9%


:o
:..


_m
...


_ co
m


a. 9
.


3m
3:


35
3


o?
m


_o
u_


_o
m


3m..
oa


co
m


a_
oo


m
:_


o:
m


m
ag


m
m


xm
q ..2


m
<


oE
3m


m
«


.8
m


:o:
E


m
::


m
_.


<
_m


<
< _u


m
:m


_
w


io
m


E
m


O
:m


__
. <


<
m


w E
u


..o
_. 6


-


m
u_


oo
_:


.3
_m


3.


U
_6


o.
§


3%
m


zs
oc


so
m


a
3m


O
5


09
50


:
<


m
om


:o
<Q


m
m


?m
a 3


L
m


w
m


a_<
_m


m
Q


.mm
_m


o:
o:


.8
E


m
m


?m
?m


_.
m


o_
m


_m
.E


_.
m


m
ag


m
x_


u_
m


_:
m


o_
E


m
m


_u
U


__
om


=
o: E
oo


m
m


m+
9


E
om


m
_:


._
m


«m
m


.n
m


Q
.


>
_u


_u
_~


o<
>


r
om


_<
__


zc
._


.m
m


>
_o


9o
<


m
n_


.


o_
.u


w
cm


_z
m


m
m


>
.


m
m


m
qc


m
ox .2


63
00


:3
0:


o:
I_


m
.8


_.
_o


m
__


u$
m


m
2m


:o
:


_u
8_


.m
o.


n
_U


__
.m


0_
“O


_. 3%
m


xu
_m


_:
m


o_
E


m
:E


m
O


o:
:o


__
_=


8n
_


E
m


m
xg


m
sm


zo
s


9.
3m


vm
:m


_m _
o<


U
m


m
az


m
a


O
::


m
w


m
_Q


<
<


_:
. w


e m
xm


3c
_m


__s
=


8
._


.o
o_


n_ Q
53


cs
qm


a?
m


sq
_o


m
:m


_
35


:2
:


:
<


<
m


mm
x_


o_
m


_:
m


n_
.


.2
68


E
m


m
_o


_m
:._


<
9"


U
om


E
<


m
im


qm
m


?
m


an
so


0:
25


3
<


66
E


nc
m


m
?m


a.


O
:m


:
w


co
sm


sm
sm
m


xm
a


:9
2


B
co


:
E


m
0o


_.
_:


o_
_


E
m


m
_:


33
.m


n_
m


do
c?


m
sm


so
m


m
.


U
:m


o.
§


Z
}


m
x_


u_
m


_:
m


Q
E


m
.“ 3


m
<_


3o
<


<
m


co
c?


S
m


Q
62


U
m


om
cm


m: E
m


m
E


m
m


m
im


g
3


._
.m


:<
E


m
:


m
ag


.3
m


<m
8


m
ém


w
m


9.
33


:9
E


zg
zm


.3
3m


O
__


u.


U
m


om
si


um
w\_


m
. N


03
_»


m
®


C
_.


>
_»


O
O


C
Z


O
F


_<
_m


m
:z


o
_<


__
Z


C
._


.m
m


AGENDA ITEM #L.


Staff Art & Beautification Board Meeting Minutes of November 14, 2018 Ar... Page 109 of 111







_<
_m


3_
0m


”_
u_


0w
3m


:
__


xm
0
:9


2
E


m
00


:3
0:


<
<


m
mm


3_
_E


mm
:0


$3
U


:m
08


«
S


E
0.


0
m


m
w


m
m


”
_.


0_
0 §m


m
m


:”
3m


E
m


”0
8_


.m
o”


.O
:m


:.
w


c0
:m


:m
:


00
33


m
:”


m
0


0:
:0


5”
<


<
m


__ $
52


.:
0.


0
m


”
m


xu
_m


3_
:m


E
m


38
”3


m
”_


o:
m


:0
.._


m
_0


3n
nc


m
m


””
0:


m
.


w
.


oa
m


m
”O


m
am


:
>


<
<


m
am A


®
®


>
m


V
”.


_u
8o


m
m


m


N
j3


m
_3


m


m
._u


1N
m


.2
8


co
m


a 3
0<


m
0


0:
8


E
m


®
®


>
m


m
za


E
m


”_
3m


__
:m


E
m


m
E


m
:8


”
m


m
um


o””0
cm


”m
_x


m
0


m
_0


0c
”_


_<
_m


3”
0m


wU
_0


x3
m


:
3m


:”
_o


:m
0


E
m


”
E


m
_<


__
__ O


_.
m


m
_A


O
m


8m
:


O
_c


_0
00


m
m


E
m


:
m


ém
am


m
8:


:o
_


,_
::


m
B


m
s.


”8
””


_”
36


:”
_0


m
m


_0
0_


.0
01


m
”m ”o


m
”m


_.
” .0


05
8


m
”:


03
m


m
m


8:
_.


a
E


m
:


m
m<


<
m


__
. O
oc


:0
__


3m
:


m
”m


0x
_m


«
m


m
xm


q 2
E


m
m


s”
...0


..
,:3


m
<


<
o:


_0
cm


E
m


cm
m


””_
3m


..v
Im


<
E


m
3m


30
m


”m
m


”m
_.


” _
00


xE
©


m
” E


m
:


N
os


m
m


0m
©


_:
:_


:m
E


_<
_m


<
<


<
_E


E
m


0m
o_


m
_0


:
3m


m
”3


o3
.E


_<
. 0


3.
”


w
:0


:m
:m


:
3m


:”
_0


:m
0


m
m


oo
sq


<
<


m
m


xm
:03


,_
::


m
m


mE
m


m
c©


©
m


m
”m


0
”_


3m
8


m
m


m
?sm


am
m


mm
:0


@
m


E
m


”E
8w


3m
”_


o:
”o


:m
<


m 0
<.


E
_<


3m
m


”3
u._


<
_m


3_
0m


”>
13


”_
m


_0
m


m
xm


q
”0


:m
<


m N
oz


m
m


0:
”_


3m
o_


_<
_m


<
”0


©
_<


m
m


30
_m


”_
3m


8”
E


m
”m


m
m


m
8:
m


sm
m


__
0<


< E
om


m
5.


”:
22


3
om


am
sm”0


_0
m


oo
:”


m
:o


_m
_.


m
.


”.
:m


w
om


am
cw


m
m


q
<


<
_E


E
_m


”_
3m


.4
m


3m
.


03
..


w
co


rm
sm


z
”m


_x
m


o_
m


_0
0c


”
E


oo
m


m
m


.>m
m


_©
:3


m
N


oz
m


m
<


<
o:


_0
_.


_m
0_


0m
:


E
_<


_m
<


.
E


m
w


om
a


_<
_m


3_
0m


”m
<


<
0:


_0
:m


<
m_


<
_m


<m
an


.:3
m


”0
85


:m
_m


_.
.”


0o
E


oo
0m


_
”m


w
m 0


:0
”0


mm
an


” 2
:


0:
”


83
m


.
>


<
<


m
_d


<
<


E
:m


a
50


:8
_0


m
_0


m
:”


_”
_m


q
m


” E
m


.E
_<


3m
m


”_
:m


.


O
0c


:0
__


3m
:


m
”m


%
_2


m
m


xm
a


:0
<


<
m


m
:0


:_
0


:m
<


m m
:0


3E
m


”_
0:


m
<


m
”m


3__
<


_m
3_


om
w m


”_
_$


..m
_”


E
m


”
_m


m
” <


m
m


_._
” E


m
m


m
0.


”
33


2
”0


”_
.:o


_ @
00


0
:0


33
m


”_
0:


m
m


:0
:m


<
3@


:m
_m


:0
0”


m
0”


os
3m


«m
:0


33
m


”m
36


:”
U


m
m


=
””


_m
m


m
m


_m
: ._
.:m


co
m


a m
m


_.
m


m
0


E
m


”
:0


3E
m


”8
:


m
:o


:_
0


cm
m


s
0_


0”
_0


:. 9
80


8”
E


1”
30


80
m


:m
<


<
0c


_o
_ 8


5
m


83
8


E
m


<
<


m
_0


m
_”


m 8
..m


o=
””


m
”m


:0
3E


m
”_


0:
m


.


._
.:m


w
om


a E
m


oc
m


m
m


a nz
m


m
m


8”
00


>
.


._
.:m


_0
0m


&
m


ow
m


m
q


E
m


”
_:


0_
:0


E
m


E
m


<
m


m
_,0


:
E


m
m


ém
a


_m
_3


00
:m


:”
.


O
0:


:o
”_


3m
:


m
”m


%
_2


__
x3


E
m


8m
m


0”
E


m
<


<
m


”m
::


@o
m


:
E


m
”


E
m


m


_0
80


0m
m


o__
m


m
” <


m
m


:_<
_m


3_
om


a w
am


mm
m


xm
q sE


m
”m


_<
_m


3”
0m


”>
”3


:m
_0


.3
2


E
m


_0
1N


m
.


_<
_m


3_
0m


_” >
«3


.._
m


_0
m


x_
0_


m
3m


0 E
m


0_
m


0_
m


<
m


0
_”


E
E


m
03


0m
.


O
00


a_
:m


8«
01


%
m


m
xm


q _”
E


m
O


?m
m


”Q
m


am
z


>
<


<
m


_8
w


asE
m


”
_m


”m
3”


00
1m


_.
__


<
U


_m
om


03
<


m
&


mm
:o


:_
o_


cm
E


m
nz


m
m


m
.


_<
_m


3_
0m


?m
ag


m
:0


>
«3


”_
m


_0
m


o?
m


m
g E


m
”


E
m


m
az


m 36
:”


cm
m


@
00


0
0:


0”
0m


.
O


0c
:0


__
3m


:
m


”m
0x


_m
«


E
oc


m
s”E


m
”


3m
<


_o
m m


0:
08


0.
. E


m
m


m
am


:
<


<
”E


E
m


m
a:<


<
0:


_o
_
cm


m
@


00
0


=
.:3


©
8


o_
<


m 8
E


m
3


sE
m


:
E


m
<0


03
m


8
E


m
00


:3
0:


3m
m


”3
©


._
<


_m
3_


0m
< >


«3
”_


m
_0


E
0c


o:
”E


m
”


3m
<


_o
m m


m
3m


__
m


«
w


as
36


:”
_o


m m
”0


m
””


m
”0_
0”


_o
:.O


0c
:0


__
3m


:
m


”m
ox


_m
”


m
:u


m
m


m
”m


n_ E
m


”
E


m
25


...
.9


0:
.”


:m
m


0
8


cm
3


E
m


m
m


am
s; m


mE
m


:m
m :0


”
m


m
m


: m
:<


m
?s


m
__


m
”E


o <
<


3:
m


”m
.4


03
”0


”m
<


_0
cm <


m
m


”m
.:5


o_
_m


o:
m


m
_0


: 0
:


uz
nm


m
<


<
m


m”
m


”0
_m


0 .
3”


:
E


m
zm


x”
3m


m
”_


:m
.


Z
m


<
<


m
cm


_z
m


m
m


0.
c”


__
_2


w
ox


C
”0


0m
”m


03
m


:
_.


u.
:0


:m
:m


:
”m


_”
E


m
:”


__
_”


<_0
0x


m
m


E
m


a m
@


00
0
xm


m
uo


sm
m


o<
m


«m
__


m
za


E
m


”
_”


<
<


m
m”


_3
m


8
80


””
m


” 0
0.


3
m


:o
E


m
«.


._
.:m


co
m


m
”_


nm
_” E


m
”


_0
0w


E
@


m
”_


u:
3m


m
W


0
m


ag
m


m
” <


<
m


mE
m


U
m


m
” sm


x”
m


”m
_0


.
_<


_m
3_


0m
_. w


am
mm


m
xm


a
3.


E
m


m
_.


” :
m


0
cm


m
: 03


0m
m


: 8
”


E
m


”
_0


0m
”_


0:
.


O
:m


_«


_w
:0


:m
:m


:
3m


:”
”0


:m
0


E
m


”
_<


_m
3_


om
«


m
3m


_”
E


m
a


am
om


_<
m


0
m


c0
3_


m
m


_o
:m


.4
03


E
m


:6
:


U
m


om
3U


m
«


3.
N


03
m


m
m


cr
pm


O
O


C
Z


O
__


.
_<


_m
m


:z
m


_<
__


Z
C


._
.m


m
.


AGENDA ITEM #L.


Staff Art & Beautification Board Meeting Minutes of November 14, 2018 Ar... Page 110 of 111







m
o:


oo
_.


O
oo


aE
m


.8
1


w
ls


x
23


8
E


2
E


m
m


am
c_


o3
_:


m
Q


<
<


m
m<


o.
H


m
n_
oz


93
8


m
s >


2
<


<
m


_x
U


m
ox


E
>


co
cm


.H
.


O
:m


:
w


co
sm


sm
s


m
m


xm
g E


m
.“


E
m


m
_%


__
om


:o
: vw


oo
m


m
m


cm
m


.n
m


:m
o:


.o
1E


om
mc


ox
m


m
.


O
oo


&
E


m
.8


«
m


zs
x E


..o
«3


m
Q


E
m


co
m


a E
m


:E
m


m
a<


<
oc


_Q
sm


m
q .


8
cm


o:
om


m
: Um


?o
?m


E
m


m
_o


U
__


om
:o


:oo
ca


U
m


m
:c


3_
:m


Q
.


03
:


w
co


rm
sm


z
m


m
w


m
g ?o


w
E


m
m


: 8
cm


90
52


8
E


m
._


m
::


m
2


E
m


m
zz


m
.


_<
_m


3c
m


<
U


_o
x3


m
:


E
m


sz
os


m
q


E
m


.“
E


m
co


m
am


:o
:_


q
«m


m
__


<o
os


m
am


? E
m


m
nm


omE
m


:
_m


E
U


m
.2


<
m


m
:E
m


co
xm


m
.


O
:


E
m


_m
m


.H S
ca


n.
: E


m
m


_m
: E


m
sw


m
ag


E
m


m
<


m
Q


:o
.n


_o
m


m
U


_m
.


m
m


uo
m


am


>
U


._
O


:_
~z


_s
m


z.
_.


<
<


_E
so


og
m


oz
os


. Em
E


m
m


sz
mm


Q
_.


o:
3m


Q m
?9


3
v.


3.


00
30


:
m


in
m


o:


_u
m


om
3U


m
_.


A
m


.83
m


m
m


c_
.>


m
O


O
C


Z
O


F
_<


_m
m


:z
m


_<
__


Z
C


._
._


m
m


.


AGENDA ITEM #L.


Staff Art & Beautification Board Meeting Minutes of November 14, 2018 Ar... Page 111 of 111





		Agenda

		B. Snohomish Health District Presentation

		C. Vintage Development Agreement Amendment

		D. 2019 Community Events

		E. Prosecution Services Agreement

		F. ILA for Emergency Management Services with Sno. County Dept. of Emergency Management

		G. Appointment of Community Interview Panel for the City Manager

		H. Payroll Vouchers

		I. City Council Meeting Minutes of October 2, 2018

		K. Council Planning Schedule

		L. A&B Board Meeting Minutes of November 14, 2018

		L. A&B Board Meeting Minutes of December 12, 2018




